
 

Page 1 of 2 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 09, 2022 

5:30 PM AT CEDAR FALLS COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes of February 23, 2022 

Public Comments 

Old Business 

2. Zoning Text Amendment – Daycare Uses in the M-1 Light Industrial District (TA22-002) 
Proposal:  Amend the Zoning Code to allow daycare centers in the M-1 District 
Previous discussion: February 23, 2022  
Recommendation: Approval 
P&Z Action: Public hearing and make a recommendation to City Council 

3. Amendment of RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge Development 
Location: South of W. 1st Street and West of Union Road 
Applicant: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 
Previous discussion: November 24, 2020 
Recommendation: Re-introduction and discussion 
P&Z Action: Discuss and continue to the next meeting 

4. Preliminary Plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions (PP20-004) 
Location: South of W. 1st Street and West of Union Road 
Applicant: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 
Previous discussion: November 24, 2020 
Recommendation: Re-introduction and discussion 
P&Z Action: Discussion and continue to the next meeting 

New Business 

5. RP Site Plan Review – The Cove at Spruce Hills (Case #SP21-013) 
Location: North of Greenhill Road and east of Spruce Hills Drive and Prairie Parkway 
Applicant: Brian Wingert (Developer); The Cove at Spruce Hills LLC (Owner);  
Snyder & Associates (Engineer)  
Previous discussion: None  
Recommendation: Introduction and discussion  
P&Z Action: Discuss and continue to the next meeting 

6. MU Master Plan Amendment for Pinnacle Prairie Development 
Location: South of Greenhill Road, between Bluebell Road and Prairie Parkway 
Applicant: Western Home Communities 
Previous discussion: None 
Recommendation: Introduction and discussion 
P&Z Action: Discuss and continue to the next meeting 

Commission Updates 

1



 

Page 2 of 2 

Adjournment 

Reminders: 

* March 23 and April 13 - Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* March 21 and April 4 - City Council Meetings 

2



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 

February 23, 2022 
In person and via videoconference  

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 

MINUTES 
 

The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on February 23, 2022 at 
5:30 p.m. at City Hall and via videoconference due to precautions necessary to prevent the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus. The following Commission members were present: Crisman, Hartley, Leeper, 
Lynch, Moser and Saul. Grybovych, Holst and Larson were absent. Karen Howard, Community 
Services Manager and Michelle Pezley, Planner III, were also present.  
 
1.) Chair Leeper noted the Minutes from the February 9, 2022 regular meeting are presented. Ms. 

Lynch made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Leeper, Lynch, Moser 
and Saul), and 0 nays.  

 
2.) The first item of business was a site plan review for 3717 Midway Drive. Chair Leeper 

introduced the item and Ms. Pezley provided background information. She explained that the 
review involves commercial property south of University Avenue and east of Cedar Heights 
Drive. Commercial site plan reviews within the C-2 District typically are not brought before the 
Commission, however the zoning ordinance states that mini-storage requires review by P&Z 
and City Council.  The applicant proposes to take an existing building (a car wash), remodel it 
and construct an addition at the back of the building, which will contain 30 self-service storage 
units.  She noted that the drive to the north and the rear paved area will not be for customer 
use and will be signed accordingly, as the drive is too narrow to meet commercial standards 
as a two-way drive. Ms. Pezley discussed the changes to the building façade, enclosing the 
car wash bays with new building walls and windows. Staff recommends approval with any 
comments or direction from the Commission and conformance with all staff recommendations 
and technical requirements. 

 
 Gordy Sorensen, 1426 Lilac Lane, stated that the project is currently a carwash, where it is 

intended to add an addition on the back and have climate controlled storage. The small shop 
in the back will be solely for private use of the owner. The property is already zoned 
commercial. 

 
 Ms. Crisman feels that it is a good re-use of the building. Mr. Hartley stated that he feels it 

improves the look of the existing building as well.  
 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), 
and 0 nays. 

 
3.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was a zoning text amendment for daycare 

uses in the M-1, Light Industrial District. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that the City received an inquiry regarding an 
expansion of a daycare that is currently in the M-1 district. After investigation it was found that 
the building was built in 1999 and the daycare was established sometime thereafter. However, 
daycare uses are not an allowed use in that district and the daycare has asked if there is a 
way to allow them to expand and continue to operate in that location. Upon analysis, there is a 
critical need for daycare services in the community. The City’s Industrial and Technology 

3

Item 1.



 2 

Parks are large centers of employment and there is a need for daycare services in locations 
convenient to employment centers.  

 
 Ms. Howard discussed a number of reasons that allowing daycare uses may not be 

problematic.  She noted that the zone is intended for light industrial uses, not heavy industrial, 
so does not allow uses that create lots of dust, odors, noise, and other nuisances that might be 
found in a heavy industrial area. In addition to light industrial, the zone allows a variety of 
general commercial uses, such as restaurants and offices where people are likely to bring their 
children. She also noted that daycare uses are currently allowed if they are an accessory to an 
existing business, i.e. an in-house daycare. The specific daycare being discussed serves as a 
case study and she noted that there have been no issues of concern over the 20 years it has 
been operating.  

 
 Ms. Howard discussed some suggested standards to consider with regard to changing the 

ordinance. Staff recommends discussion of the petition to allow daycare uses in the M-1 
District and setting a public hearing date for March 9 for formal consideration and 
recommendation to Council. 

 
 Ms. Lynch stated that she does feel that there is a need for daycares in the Cedar Valley and 

would like there to be more options for families in the area. Ms. Moser agreed. 
 
 Ms. Lynch made a motion to set a public hearing. Ms. Moser seconded the motion. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), 
and 0 nays. 

 
4.) As there were no further comments, Ms. Lynch made a motion to adjourn. Ms. Saul seconded 

the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Leeper, 
Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:44 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Assistant 
 

4

Item 1.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: March 3, 2022 (Public hearing)  

 SUBJECT: Zoning Code Text Amendment – Allowing Daycare in M1 District (TA22-002) 
 

 
Background 
 
The City recently received an inquiry about expansion of an existing daycare center located on Nordic 

Drive in the M-1, Light Industrial District. After reviewing the zoning code to determine the standards and 

requirements for the proposed expansion, staff noticed that daycare uses are not an allowed use in the 

M1 Zoning District. The first item on the list of permitted uses in the M-1 District is “any use permitted in 

the C-3 District, except that no occupancy permit shall be issued for any dwelling, school, hospital, clinic, 

or other institution for human care, except where incidental to a permitted principal use. Apparently, 

when the daycare center was built in 1999 staff did not notice that “institutions for human care” were 

excluded from the M-1 Zoning District. Since the use was not allowed when it was established, it has no 

rights to continue or to expand. The owner’s representative has submitted a letter (attached) requesting 

consideration of a zoning code text amendment to allow daycare centers in the M-1 Light Industrial 

District.    

 
Analysis 
 
In the City’s 2019-2023 Consolidated Plan, which characterizes the current needs in the community for 

housing, safe and livable neighborhoods, public services, and opportunities for employment, daycare 

services were listed as a critical need in the community. Convenient access to quality daycare is 

essential to support the workforce in Cedar Falls and to attract new employers. The City’s industrial and 

technology parks are some of the largest employment centers in the community. Locating daycare 

centers in these areas helps to reduce travel times and provides more flexibility in work schedules.  

 

Zoning ordinances, particularly older zoning ordinances, often focus on the separation of land uses; in 

this case separating industrial uses from certain other uses. However, staff finds there are a number of 

reasons that allowing daycare uses in the light industrial zone is unlikely to be a concern.  

 The M-1 Zone already allows a wide variety of uses, including office, retail, fitness centers, 

restaurants and other uses where people may often bring their children.  

 The M-1 Zone is a light industrial zone intended for clean industry. The ordinance states that “no 

use shall be permitted or maintained which by reason of its nature or manner of operation is or 

may become hazardous, noxious or offensive owing to the emission of odor, dust, smoke, 

5

Item 2.



 
 

cinders, gas, fumes, noise, vibrations, refuse matter or water-carried waste.” These standards will 

help prevent nuisances and unhealthy conditions for daycare centers.   

 Market factors will discourage daycare uses from locating where clients are unlikely to bring their 

children.    

 Daycare uses are already allowed if accessory to an existing business in the M1 District. In other 

words, any industrial use could have an in-house daycare.  

 A daycare has been operating on this particular site in the M-1 District since 1999 without any 

issues of concern.  

 

Discussion of Solutions 

 

In order to allow daycare centers in the M-1 Zone, the zoning ordinance must be amended. Reasonable 

standards must be established for a daycare center within the context of the M-1 Zone. Staff 

recommends that the following changes be considered: 

 

 Amend paragraph (1)a. within Section 26-173, M-1 Light Industrial District, as follows (underlined text 

is new language. Other language remains the same):  

 

(1) Principal permitted uses. Permitted principal uses are as follows:  

a. Any use permitted in the C-3 district, except that no occupancy permit shall be issued for 

any dwelling, school, hospital, clinic or other institution for human care, except: 

i. Where said use is incidental to a permitted principal use; and 

ii. Daycare uses, with the following standards: Outdoor play areas shall not be 

located in the required front yard and must be set back a minimum of 10 feet from 

side and rear lot lines and fenced and screened from abutting properties with trees 

or shrubbery to achieve a continuous visual screen that at maturity reaches a 

minimum 6 feet in height.  

 

 Add a row for daycare uses to the dimensional standards table in paragraph (5) of Section 26-173, as 

follows:  

 

Use Front Yard 

depth 

Side yard 

width 

Rear yard 

depth 

 

Daycare 

 

25 feet 

 

10 feet 

 

25 feet 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the amendments to the Zoning Code outlined 

above.   

 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Discussion 
2/23/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a zoning text amendment for 
daycare uses in the M-1, Light Industrial District. Chair Leeper introduced the item and 
Ms. Howard provided background information. She explained that the City received an 
inquiry regarding an expansion of a daycare that is currently in the M-1 district. After 
investigation it was found that the building was built in 1999 and the daycare was 

6

Item 2.



 
 

established sometime thereafter. However, daycare uses are not an allowed use in that 
district and the daycare has asked if there is a way to allow them to expand and 
continue to operate in that location. Upon analysis, there is a critical need for daycare 
services in the community. The City’s Industrial and Technology Parks are large centers 
of employment and there is a need for daycare services in locations convenient to 
employment centers.  
 

 Ms. Howard discussed a number of reasons that allowing daycare uses may not be 
problematic.  She noted that the zone is intended for light industrial uses, not heavy 
industrial, so does not allow uses that create lots of dust, odors, noise, and other 
nuisances that might be found in a heavy industrial area. In addition to light industrial, 
the zone allows a variety of general commercial uses, such as restaurants and offices 
where people are likely to bring their children. She also noted that daycare uses are 
currently allowed if they are an accessory to an existing business, i.e. an in-house 
daycare. The specific daycare being discussed serves as a case study and she noted 
that there have been no issues of concern over the 20 years it has been operating.  

 
 Ms. Howard discussed some suggested standards to consider with regard to changing 

the ordinance. Staff recommends discussion of the petition to allow daycare uses in the 
M-1 District and setting a public hearing date for March 9 for formal consideration and 
recommendation to Council. 

 
 Ms. Lynch stated that there is a need for daycare in the Cedar Valley and would like 

there to be more options for families in the area. Ms. Moser agreed. 
 
 Ms. Lynch made a motion to set a public hearing. Ms. Moser seconded the motion. The 

motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Leeper, Lynch, Moser 
and Saul), and 0 nays. 
 

 
Discussion 
3/9/2022  

 
 

7

Item 2.



327 E. 4th Street, Suite 204                    Waterloo, Iowa 50703                     (319) 233-1163                      www.alignplc.com

February 8, 2022

Karen Howard
Planning & Community Services Manager
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa  50613

Re: Community United Child Care Center
Nordic Drive, Cedar Falls

Dear Karen,

Based on our recent conversations we would like to request that the city consider amending the 
current M-1 zoning district to allow for child care facilities. As we have discussed the existing 
Community United Care Center (CUCCC) on Nordic Drive has been a child care facility in the 
M-1 District for many decades as the building was used by Head Start providing child care at 
this location prior to CUCCC using it for their current child care facility. CUCCC would like to 
expand their building and services at this location to help address the shortage child care in our 
area.

CUCCC has just received grant funding from the state to expand their operations at this 
location. The grant does require some significant progress be made by June 30, 2022 so we 
would like to move forward as quickly as possible with an amendment if it is going to happen so 
that CUCCC can take advantage of the state grants.

Amending the M-1 district to allow child care facilities will be a benefit to all the typical uses that 
occur in this district. Having child care available in this zoning is a convenience for workers and 
saves time and travel by having child care near by peoples place of work. The child care 
function in this zoning will not be a detriment to any of the other allowed uses in the M-1 zoning. 
Child care providers being located in the M-1 zoning is a distinct amenity to all in the area by 
providing a much needed service.

This would also give large employers in the area the ability to provide separate on site child care 
facilities that could also benefit their employee recruitment and retention.

We feel this a beneficial amendment to the M-1 zoning district and request that you move 
forward with the processes necessary to amend the M-1 zoning district to allow child care as an 
approved use.

Sincerely,
Align Architecture & Planning, PLC

Jacob Bauer, AIA

8

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: March 3, 2022 

 SUBJECT: The Autumn Ridge Master Plan Amendment 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to approve revised Autumn Ridge Master Plan  

 
PETITIONER: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

West of Union Road and south of W. 1st Street 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to amend the RP master plan for the Autumn Ridge development, which was 
originally approved in 2001.  The proposed change includes the revision from previously platted 
Autumn Ridge 8th and 9th Addition in 2013 with single family dwellings to a mixture of single 
family dwellings and one unit bi-attached dwellings, thus increasing the density of the area. The 
proposed changes will be done in two phases, Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions, and will be 
the final area of development in Autumn Ridge. Since there have been a number of smaller 
changes over the years to the RP Plan, it is important to update the master plan for the entire 
development, so that it reflects changes made in previously platted areas. 
 
PREVIOUS DISCUSSION AT P&Z 
The applicant brought the master plan amendment to include Autumn Ridge 9th Addition for 
review at the November 24th 2020 Planning and Zoning meeting. At that time the proposal was 
to develop the area with 95 units (60 duplex units and 35 single family units), increasing the 
number of proposed units from the approved 58 single family units. At the meeting, staff 
proposed several conditions of approval of the amendment, including: 

 adding sidewalk along Union Road to comply with the subdivision code;  

 seeking an alternative solution to reduce the number and width of driveways and curb 
cuts in order to develop pedestrian friendly community and provide more room for street 
trees, and on-street parking; and  

 incorporating common usable open space/park space to comply with the intent of the 
original master plan and development agreement to provide usable open space for area 
residents per the subdivision code standards;  
 

9

Item 3.



 
These issues were discussed by the Planning and Zoning Commission. The Commission 
indicated that some changes should be made to address the issues. Meeting minutes from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission are included at the end of the report to sum up the 
discussion at P&Z, which also highlights several public comments. After the meeting, the 
developer put the development on hold while they worked through some of the issues.  Staff 
made suggestions for locations for some usable open space. The developer indicated they did 
not want to burden the homeowner’s association with maintenance of the open space, so staff 
approached the Parks and Recreation Commission in December of 2020 to discuss whether 
the City would consider accepting public park space in this area. The Parks and Recreation 
Commission agreed that public open space is needed in this area and indicated that the land 
dedicated would need to be located and graded and of a size that would provide usable 
neighborhood park space. The applicant now brings forward a revised master plan for this last 
area of development within Autumn Ridge for consideration, which is the first step necessary 
before approval of a preliminary plat for the area.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Autumn Ridge subdivision along Union Road has developed over the past 20 years beginning 
with a series of retirement condos and patio homes along Autumn Ridge Road coupled with an 
expansion of single family dwellings along Paddington Drive, Berry Hill Road and Shocker 
Road. A recent expansion in the Autumn Ridge Subdivision includes some single family 
dwellings and duplexes along Thresher Court and last year six six-plexes were also approved 
along Autumn Lane (Autumn Ridge 10th Addition), which are currently in construction phase.  In 
total, the entire Autumn Ridge development consists of approximately 105 acres of land 
reserved for a mixture of residential homes from single family dwelling units, retirement units, 
and condominiums.  
 
In 2013, the owner 
submitted and 
received approval of a 
preliminary plat for the 
remaining additions in 
the subdivision (see 
attached). However, 
the RP Plan and 
associated 
developmental 
procedures agreement 
were not updated at 
the time to reflect 
those changes. With 
this application, the 
developer has 
submitted a revised 
preliminary plat for 
Autumn Ridge 9th and 
11th Additions, which 
includes areas that 
were previously 
shown on the 

10

Item 3.



preliminary plat as the 8th and 9th Additions located in the northern portion of the development. 
The RP master plan and the developmental procedures agreement must be updated to reflect 
these proposed changes, prior to approval of the new preliminary plats for Autumn Ridge 9th and 
11th Additions. See image above highlighting the timeline of entire Autumn Ridge Development. 
For more details, the same image is also attached as an attachment to staff report.  
 
For any proposed development that is not consistent with the approved RP master plan, an 
amendment is required to be approved by Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. 
The proposed new master plan possesses significant change from the original master plan and 
development agreement in terms of density of residential units, common public space/amenities 
and street connections. Therefore, both the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council 
must first review and approve the revised RP master plan prior to the approval of the preliminary 
plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Addition in the northern part of the Autumn Ridge 
development. 
 
ZONING 
The purpose of the R-P Planned Residence District is to permit the establishment of multi-use 
and integrated use residential developments and to provide for the orderly planned growth of 
residential developments in larger tracts of land. The RP District allows flexibility in the types of 
dwellings, the lot sizes, building heights and setbacks. However, to ensure that the area is 
developed in an orderly manner, provides for efficient traffic circulation between neighborhoods, 
and includes the necessary infrastructure to meet the needs of the future residents, a master 
plan must be submitted with the rezoning, which is adopted through a  developmental 
procedures agreement.  
 
The entire Autumn Ridge development is about 105 acres and was rezoned to R-P, Planned 
Residential District from A-1, Agricultural Zoning District in 2001. As part of that rezoning, an RP 
master plan (shown below) along with a developmental procedures agreement was approved 
for the entire development area. The original master plan illustrates a mix of housing types, a 
proposed layout for the streets, and a 3 to 5 acre lake which would serve as both a storm water 
retention/detention facility for much of the 105 acre development and as shared community 
space and trails around the perimeter of the lake. These various elements were also identified in 
the developmental procedures agreement.   
 
 

 
 

Original 2001 RP Master Plan for Autumn Ridge 

11

Item 3.



 
Over the past 20 years, Autumn Ridge has been developed in many phases with increasing 
density in some areas and reductions in others, altering street connections and changing the 
types of housing as per the developer’s market strategy. There were amendments to the RP 
Plan in 2005 and 2006 to reflect changes south of the east-west drainage way (Autumn Ridge 
2nd, 3rd, and 4th Additions). However, the RP master plan was not updated in 2013 when 
significant changes were made with the preliminary plat for the 5th through 9th Additions. In 
particular, the lake surrounded by shared amenity space and trails shown on the master plan 
and called for in the developmental procedures agreement was eliminated from the proposed 
development. Over the years, other significant variations from the original plan include the 
elimination of the street connection across the drainage way, and changes to the housing types 
and locations.  
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
The Master Plan exhibit submitted with the current revised application highlights the two 
remaining phases (9th and 11th) in the subdivision in context with the rest of the development in 
Autumn Ridge. The updated RP master plan proposed by the developer is described below, 
with areas of change from the original plan highlighted and staff recommendations noted.  

 
Master Plan layout for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions: 
The last remaining area of development for Autumn Ridge is located just south of W.1st Street 
and north of the east-west drainage way that separates the subject area from the developed 
portion of Autumn Ridge. This area will be accessed from both W.1st Street and Union Road. 
Wynnewood Drive would be extended westward from Union Road and streets would be stubbed 

12

Item 3.



to the western boundary of the development to provide for future development to the west. The 
9th and 11th Additions are planned to include 58 lots for single-unit bi-attached dwellings, 34 
single-family lots and public park space. The area will be developed in two phases: Phase 1 will 
be Autumn Ridge 9th Addition, which will include 45 lots (19 single family units and 26 single-unit 
bi-attached dwellings); and Phase 2 will be Autumn Ridge 11th Addition, which will include 47 
lots (15 single family units, 32 single-unit bi-attached dwellings and a little over one acre of 
public park space).  
 

Street Connectivity 
While a street connection to the south was never realized with previous subdivision plats, the 
current proposal is well thought with provision of future street connection/access points to 
surrounding undeveloped areas, including a street stub (Braeburn Drive) to provide a 
connection to the undeveloped properties just north of the subdivision, a critical connection of 
Aronia Drive to 1st Street, and two stubs going west with continuation of Wynnewood Drive and 
Channel Drive, to allow future development west of Autumn Ridge. 

  
Residential Density and Housing Types  
The proposal includes an increase in density from the 2013 preliminary plat (see attached), as it 
only included proposal for 58 single family units whereas, the current proposal includes 34 
single family units and 58 single-unit bi-attached dwellings. However, as shown in the submitted 
master plan exhibit, the overall density of the Autumn Ridge development is not changing as 
approved in 2001, since areas developed in the southern portion of the development are lower 
in density than originally proposed.  

 
 

Proposed Autumn Ridge Additions 

Phases No. of Lots No. of Single-family 
units  

No. of single-unit bi-
attached dwellings 

9th 
Addition 

45 19 26 

11th 
Addition 

47 15 32 

Total 92 34 58 

 
Project Phasing: 
The applicant proposes final platting the area in two phases: Autumn Ridge 9th Addition in 
Phase 1, which is located in the northern section of the subdivision; and Autumn Ridge 11th 
Addition in Phase 2. Staff notes that Phase 1 is topographically higher in elevation than Phase 2 
which will require utilities to be installed through the Phase 2 area to serve Phase 1. This aspect 
will be discussed in more detail in the staff report for the preliminary plat.  
 
Street and Sidewalk Connections 

Over 20 years of time, there have been many changes in the subdivision. Street connectivity is 
important to provide good access to properties, distribute traffic and reduce congestion and 
emergency response times, and to provide opportunities for future development on abutting 
properties. In addition, establishing pedestrian connections throughout neighborhoods promotes 
walkability and safe passage for pedestrians.  

 
With a previous change to the RP Plan, the street connection across the drainage way was 
eliminated, which effectively separates the proposed 9th and 11th Addition, from the remainder of 

13

Item 3.



the development to the south. While this street connection has been eliminated, there is still an 
opportunity to connect the northern and southern sections of the neighborhood with a sidewalk 
along Union Road. The developer will be adding the sidewalks both along the Union Road and 
W 1st Street to comply by city’s subdivision ordinance. As noted at the P&Z meeting in 
November 2020, this will leave a small missing segment of the sidewalk along Union Road 
between Paddington Dr. and southern edge of proposed Autumn Ridge 11th Addition. After 
discussions with the developer, the City has agreed to construct this segment as a capital 
improvement project, and it is now listed in the recently updated Capital Improvements Program 
(CIP). 
While there are missing sidewalk segments in a number of areas within previous platted areas 
of Autumn Ridge, the subdivision code allows sidewalks to be installed as development occurs. 
Construction is ongoing in Autumn Ridge 6th Addition, Autumn Ridge 8th Addition and Autumn 
Ridge 10th Addition. Sidewalk segments will be constructed as homes are developed and will be 
required for the remaining areas as they are platted. City Staff notes the importance of following 
through on the commitment to install sidewalks as lots are developed to ensure better livability 
of the community.  
 

As per City Code Section 20.5 – C-(10) and section 20.5 – C-(11), public sidewalks shall be 
installed at the time of new building construction on new or recently platted lots or within five 
years following final subdivision approval. The deed of dedication with the subdivision notes the 
same as well. City staff notes that the public sidewalks will be installed by the developer to 
continue allowing connected pedestrian movement across the subdivision to ensure walkability 
throughout the subdivision. 

 

Residential Density and Mix of Housing Types 

The developer is proposing to increase the number of bi-attached dwellings and reduce some of 
the lot sizes for the single family units in the proposed Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Addition in 
response to market demand. The City supports the idea of additional density and a variety of 
housing types to serve the needs of the community. The proposed master plan shows that the 
single family units are proposed along the perimeter of the development including the lots 
abutting Union Road, W. 1st Street and along the western boundary of the development. The bi-
attached units are proposed in the central section of the proposed 9th and 11th Additions.  
 
Staff is supportive of the increased residential density. Providing a variety of housing types and 
sizes provide opportunities for people of all incomes and age groups to live in the community. 
For example, first time homebuyers, empty nesters, and retirees may find attached dwellings to 
be an attractive and affordable option to meet their needs. However, as currently proposed, all 
of the bi-attached units will have street-facing garages. This will result in an excessive number 
of driveway curb cuts (see attached driveway exhibit). With this many curb cuts, there will be 
little room for on-street parking, sidewalk continuity will be compromised and front yards will be 
largely paved. City Staff made a number of suggestions to the developer that could help 
alleviate this concern. The developer has indicated that they would like to move forward with the 
proposal with the street-facing garages, but to address the issue is proposing to add a clause in 
the developmental procedures agreement and deed of dedication stating that all lots equal to or 
less than 60 feet in width will be limited to maximum driveway width of 18 feet at the curb-line.  
 
Community Space/Shared usable open space: 
As per the original development procedural agreement at the time of rezoning, a reserved open 
space for community was shown to be developed to enhance the livability of the entire 
neighborhood. Staff notes that as per City Code Section 20-6 (g), “all residential subdivisions 

14

Item 3.



shall be so designed as to meet the neighborhood park and open space needs of its residents. 
Such needs may be met by dedication and acceptance of public park land/or by reservation by 
covenant of private open space.” City staff believes that having a usable park space in the 
Autumn Ridge is important to the livability of the area and aligns with both the minimum 
subdivision standards and with the principles of the R-P, Planned Residence District.  
 
While staff is not opposed to the elimination of the wet-bottomed retention stormwater basin 
(lake), elimination of the shared open space and amenities entirely is not recommended. In 
response, developer has included Outlot 1 in the proposed master plan, which is labeled as 
“Green Space or Park Space.”  The green space is proposed to be included in the second 
phase of development. This green space will need to be carefully graded and seeded to provide 
usable park space (more details about the proposed park space are included in the preliminary 
plat staff report). Staff also notes that the developer proposes a sidewalk connection to access 
the park space from the Union Road sidewalk, to provide easy accessibility to park space for all 
residents of Autumn Ridge, both north and south of the drainage way. This sidewalk connection 
will require the developer to collect and convey the previously established Union Road drainage 
ditch into a storm sewer pipe that will release southerly adjacent to the Union Road culvert 
structure. Additional grading will be done to tie the southerly limit of the park space into the 
existing stormwater detention facility.  
 
Notification of Surrounding Property Owners: 
City Staff sent a courtesy notice to the surrounding property owners on 1st March 2022.  
 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
A revision to the existing developmental procedures agreement will be required to make it 
consistent with the revision to the RP Master Plan. The agreement and the deed of dedication 
for the preliminary plat of Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions must also be consistent. The 
applicant has submitted a rough draft of the agreement, which is under review by City staff and 
the City Attorney.  
 
Staff is forwarding the proposal to amend the master plan for discussion, as any comments or 
suggestions for changes by the Commission may affect the provisions included in the 
developmental procedures agreement.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The introduction of this master plan amendment is for discussion and public comment. City staff 
recommends continuing the discussion to the next Planning and Zoning meeting.  
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Previous 
discussion 
at P&Z 
11/24/2020 
 
 

Chair Holst noted that he would need to recuse himself from the item and passed  
the item to Vice Chair Leeper. Vice Chair Leeper introduced the item and noted that  
the agenda items are all for public input and will not be voted on at this time. Mr.  
Atodaria provided background information explaining that the entire development is  
approximately 105 acres and has developed over a 20 year timeframe. An RP  
Master Plan was amended in 2001 and the entire area was rezoned from Agriculture  
to RP and there were five different areas created in the area. Mr. Atodaria showed a  
rendering of the development and explained the different kinds of development were  
planned for each area. There were other amendments made in 2005 and 2006 to  
reflect changes in the 2

nd
, 3

rd
 and 4

th
 Additions. In 2013 the developer submitted a  

15

Item 3.



preliminary plat for the 5
th
, 6

th
, 7

th
, 8

th
 and 9

th
 Additions that included a proposed 31  

lots in the 8
th
 Addition and 27 in the 9

th
, but the master plan was not updated at that  

time. He showed a rendering of the subdivision today and the breakdown of the 10  
additions. He described the units that are proposed to be added to the 9

th
 and 10

th
  

additions.  
 
Mr. Atodaria discussed the amendments to the 9

th
 Addition, noting staff concerns 

with excessive paving along street frontages that would add congestion to the 
streets, diminish on-street parking, create less sidewalk continuity and reduce room 
for landscaped front yards or street trees. Staff has provided suggestions that could 
alleviate the excessive curb cuts, such as bi-attached units or townhomes with alley 
loaded garages or common driveway for attached units and limited the size to two 
car garages. Staff also has noted concerns with sidewalk connections along Union 
Road and community space/shared usable open space. Mr. Atodaria discussed 
suggestions provided by staff for these issues.  
 
Mr. Atodaria then discussed the proposed amendment to the 10

th
 Addition and the 

number of units to be added in the area. He explained that staff has reviewed the 
master plan and recommends some changes to the Master Plan prior to approval. 
These include: 
 

 Providing a usable open space to enhance the livability of community 
in the 9

th
 Addition, as was anticipated in the original master plan.   

 Reduction of the number and size of proposed curb cuts for the 
proposed attached units in the 9

th
 Addition. 

 Provision of a public sidewalk along Union Road from the 9
th
 Addition 

to Paddington Drive to comply with the subdivision code and deed of 
dedication requirements. 

 
At this time, staff asked for comments and suggestions from the public and the 
Commission. 
 
Dennis Happel spoke about the lake detention that was taken out of the  
development early on as they felt that the uncontrolled runoff to the west on the farm  
ground would soon cause it to fall into disarray due to the siltation. During the review  
of Autumn Ridge 6

th
 and 7

th
 in 2016, it was taken out by City staff due to the large  

stormwater issue that needed to be addressed. The large stormwater detention that  
was put into those additions was to help curb the runoff issues being discussed.  
With regard to the sidewalk, it has gone through the approval of two plats for that  
area and at that time staff felt it did not need to be installed because of the large bike  
trail across the street. He stated that they are not opposed to putting the sidewalk in  
from across the 9

th
 Addition for a connection, but feels the City should be  

responsible for the rest. He discussed the parking issue that has been a concern  
and stated that there are other areas in town where similar concepts are used and  
there is not a problem with the on-street parking. They are trying to provide an  
affordable product for housing in the area and feel that adding an addition alley  
would create extra expense to the homeowners and costs for upkeep. They feel that  
housing mixture they have presented complements the area and is a good plan. 
 
Jesse Meehan, 4305 Berry Hill, lives near the drainage ditch between the properties 
and stated that their houses were built with low water entry points and with FEMA 
remapping the area, residents are not able to refinance without getting flood 

16

Item 3.



insurance. He believes that increasing the number of houses will create more runoff 
and problems. He asked if the duplex lots could potentially be single-family if that’s 
what the owner prefers and if the houses were going to be “cookie cutter” and look 
the same. He would like to see some uniqueness in the area. He feels that if green 
space is proposed, it shouldn’t be like the current green space. He also asked if the 
City is going to maintain a park if one is planned.  
 
Doug Stanford, President of the Fieldstone Homeowners Association speaking for 
the Board of Directors, explained that a letter was presented to Stephanie Sheetz 
expressing their concerns with the project. He noted that they are concerned with 
the increased housing density in Autumn Ridge 9

th
 and the traffic issues on Union 

Road. They feel that the increased density will intensify the traffic congestion and 
feels that it may be time to consider some upgrades to Union Road. The Board is 
also concerned with potential stormwater runoff issues with the addition of new 
construction that could potentially damage a pond in the development.  
 
Robert Zoulek, Autumn Ridge resident, asked how the developer will ensure that the 
elevations with the additional runoff will not worsen the current issues.  
 
Lyle Simmons, asked what impact studies have been done and how can they find 
the information regarding the potential effects of this project.  
 
Dennis Happel reiterated the planned housing units and explained that the 
stormwater issue was addressed in 2016 with the large detention area. It has been 
reviewed and the impact of these additional additions was addressed back in the 
planning of previous additions. He also stated that they will not be the only builder in 
the development so there should not be an issue with “cookie cutter” design. As for 
the traffic issues, the developer has provided all the access the city has asked for 
and explained that Union Road issues would be more of a city matter. He also noted 
that the damage to the pond was not a result of Autumn Ridge. 
 
Adam Daters, CGA Engineers, added that the traffic engineer for the project did 
simulations that showed that there was very little impact from the traffic increase.  
 
Cindy Luchtenberg, resident in the Autumn Ridge area, questioned the approval 
process of which builder can build in the addition. She stated concerns with the 
effect this project could have on their ability to hook up to city water and sewer and 
the costs involved.  
 
Mr. Meehan feels that the detention pond will not help with the issues that could 
arise. 
 
Willis Roberts noted that he feels there will be additional traffic flow problems based 
on the layout proposed. 
 
Mr. Happel explained that the developer or the building committee approve the 
configuration and design of the homes to keep the character of the neighborhood 
intact. He discussed the planned housing in the garden home area and explained 
that those are not geared to be rentals. He stated that the runoff has been 
addressed and numerous studies have been done and that it will not be an issue. 
He also addressed the comment regarding sewer hookup and explained that they 
have no control over how it fits someone’s property.  

17

Item 3.



 
Amber Hines feels that the proposed housing does not match the character of the 
current neighborhoods. 
 
Mr. Happel stated that they have mixed in multi-unit housing well in other areas of 
the neighborhoods and doesn’t feel it will be an issue. 
 
Mr. Schrad asked about the lot sizes proposed for duplexes. Ms. Howard explained 
that the lot line shown is for one side of the duplex as they are considered to be a 
“bi- attached” single-family dwellings, with each side on its own lot. Mr. Schrad also 
feels that there needs to be a park and asked if the City would take care of it. 
Planning staff spoke with the Parks Department and they would be amenable to 
looking at a proposal for a public park in that area.  
 
Mr. Larson asked if there were any metrics used to decide that this one parcel 
needed to have a park or what motivated the decision. He was under the impression 
that this area was going to be more senior driven and wondered how that would 
serve that community. Ms. Howard explained that the park would service the whole 
Autumn Ridge neighborhood as opposed to just one addition. A park would also fill 
the need for open space requirements. Mr. Larson asked about the proposal 
process for a park. Ms. Howard explained that the developer would need to submit a 
plan and the Parks Department would review the proposal. 
 
Vice Chair Leeper asked about stormwater setup for the area. Mr. Tolan explained 
that with this subdivision and subsequent subdivisions, regional detention was set 
up utilizing an existing culvert under Union Road and a secondary detention basin 
series. All detention for the entire area was already included in the 2012 study and 
has already been installed.  
 
Ms. Saul stated she is concerned with all the paving and driveways with regard to 
walkability and safety and asked if there is a way to mitigate that. Mr. Larson asked 
about the maximum allowable width when curb cuts are directly abutting. Mr. Tolan 
provided information in response.  
 
Vice Chair Leeper stated that he felt the developer should work with the City to 
address the concerns that have been expressed and then come back to the 
Commission after that.  
 
Mr. Larson asked about the continuation of the sidewalk from the previous phases. 
He would like to know if there is a legal obligation to put the paths in. Ms. Howard 
stated that there is a requirement in the subdivision code that allows sidewalks to be 
put in post-development and requires it to be completed within five years of the 
completion of the plat. Mr. Larson asked a few more questions. 
 
Vice Chair Leeper stated that he would like to hear more from the Commission to 
give some direction to the developer on whether they agree with the comments and 
recommendations from staff. Mr. Schrad stated that he agrees with the 
recommendations from staff but does recommend that the developer listen to the 
comments from neighbors. Mr. Larson felt the park and the sidewalk situations are 
important for further consideration. Ms. Saul and Ms. Lynch agreed. 
 
The item was continued to the next meeting.  

18

Item 3.



 

Discussion 
03/09/2022 

19

Item 3.



Pheasant
Ridge Golf

Course

Wynnewood Dr

Pheasant Dr

Berry Hill Rd

Paddington Dr

Thresher Ct

Shocker Rd

Autumn Ridge Rd

Cord uroy Dr

F ieldston e Blvd
Go

lde
n L

n

Au
tum

n L
n

Sa
ndahlwoodCir

Harvest Ln

N U
nio

n R
d

Un
ion

 Rd

W 1st St ®¬57µ40 C-1 R-1

R-1

R-5

R-1SU
RP

RP

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
March 9, 2022

Master Plan Amendment to 
Autumn Ridge Subdivision to include
9th and 11th Addition

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

20

Item 3.



95
2 95

1

95
0

94
7

94
8

94
6

W
E

S
T 

S
ID

E
 D

R
IV

E

WYNNEWOOD DR.

CHANNEL DR.

280.32' (282.97')
S89°26'25"E (S89°49'33"W)

39
2.

08
' (

39
1.

95
')

S
0°

14
'4

4"
E

 (
N

01
°0

4'
57

"W
)

987.24' (987.24')
S89°19'46"E (S89°49'11"W)

12
5.

76
' (

12
5.

76
')

S
9°

17
'0

3"
E

 (
N

10
°0

7'
36

"W
)

28
0.

60
' (

27
9.

96
')

S
0°

11
'3

0"
E

 (
N

01
°0

3'
21

"W
)

26
1.

94
'

S
7°

00
'3

7"
W

 (
N

06
°0

9'
47

"E
)

102.55' (102.54')

S74°41'46"W

(N73°50'56"E)

282.86' (282.83')N84°33'07"W (S85'23'57"E)

90.01' (90.00')
N89°19'55"W
(N89°49'15"E)

341.43' (341.40')

S82°00'02"W (N81°09'12"E)

456.35' (456.35')

S83°31'04"W (N82°40'14"E)

11
69

.2
6'

N
0°

11
'0

8"
E

 (
N

0°
40

'1
2"

w
)

425.29'
S88°48'20"E

428.11'

(4
3.

13
')

33
.4

9'
S

0°
11

'0
8"

W
11

7.
15

'
N

0°
11

'0
8"

E

LOT 1LOT 2LOT 3

LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6LOT 7LOT 8LOT 9LOT 10LOT 11LOT 12LOT 13LOT 14LOT 15

LOT 16

LOT 17

LOT 18

LOT 19

LOT 20

LOT 21

LOT 22

LOT 23LOT 24

LOT 25

LOT 26

LOT 27

LOT 28

LOT 29

LOT 30

LOT 31

LOT 32

LOT 33

LOT 34

LOT 35

LOT 36

LOT 37 LOT 38 LOT 39

LOT 40 LOT 41
LOT 42 LOT 43 LOT 44

LOT 45
LOT 46 LOT 47

LOT 48 LOT 49
LOT 50 LOT 51 LOT 52 LOT 53 LOT 54 LOT 55

LOT 56

LOT 57

LOT 58

LOT 59

LOT 60LOT 61LOT 62LOT 63LOT 64LOT 65LOT 66LOT 67LOT 68

LOT 69

LOT 70LOT 71LOT 72LOT 73

LOT 74

LOT 75

LOT 76

LOT 77

LOT 78

LOT 92LOT 91LOT 90LOT 89LOT 88LOT 87LOT 86LOT 85

LOT 84

LOT 83

LOT 82LOT 81LOT 80LOT 79

TRACT "A"

TRACT "A"

OUTLOT - 1
GREEN SPACE

OR PARK SPACE

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD
SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD

SD
SD

SD

SDSDSDSD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SDSDSD

SD
SD

SD SD SD SD

SD
SD

SD

SDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSD

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

E E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E E E E

E
E

E
E

G G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G G G G

G

G
G

G
G

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

SD

SD
W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

W W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W W W

W
W

W
W

San(D)

A
R

O
N

IA
 D

R
IV

E

WYNNEWOOD DR.

CHANNEL DR.

B
R

A
E

B
U

R
N

 D
R

IV
E

AUTUMN RIDGE
NINTH ADDITION

(PHASE 1)

AUTUMN RIDGE
ELEVENTH
ADDITION (PHASE 2)

AUTUMN RIDGE ELEVENTH ADDITION

PHASE
LINEAUTUMN RIDGE NINTH ADDITION

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

78
6\

dw
gs

\E
xh

ib
its

\5
78

6 
- M

as
te

r P
la

n 
20

22
-0

2-
22

.d
wg

 - 
M

as
te

r P
la

n 
-  

02
-2

3-
22

 - 
4:

00
pm

 - 
AC

D2
76

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
1 OF 1

5786

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA MASTER PLAN
NCB

SJC

MCH

10-20-20

05-18-20

MASTER PLAN - AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND
ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

A. - STREET RIGHT OF WAY

TRACTS

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

160'80' 240'

EX. 20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

EX. 20' STORM
SEWER EASEMENT

EX. 20' STORM
SEWER EASEMENT

EX. WALK (TYP.)

EX. TREE LINE

EX. TREE LINE

PHASE LOTS TRACT

1 45 "A" & "B"

2 47 "A" & "B"

TOTAL 92

LEGEND

ONE UNIT BI-ATTACHED
LOT = 58 TOTAL

SINGLE FAMILY/ONE UNIT
LOT = 34 TOTAL

GREEN SPACE OR PARK SPACE

1 - GREEN SPACE OR PARK SPACE
DEEDED TO THE CITY

OUTLOTS

NOTES:

1. ONE UNIT BI-ATTACHED DWELLINGS ARE SUBJECT TO
CHANGE AND SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES
ONLY.

1            CITY TECH REVIEW COMMENTS (2-16-22 MTG.)            ACD                       2-22-2022

21

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WYNNEWOOD DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 1ST ST./HWY 57

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. UNION RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: MARK J AND CYNTHIA S LUCHTENBURG UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: ANN L AND BRADLEY R PIERSCHBACHER UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: WATERLOO MSA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: LINDA S OSBORN UNPLATTED W  NE   12 NE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: AUTUMN RIDGE STORM WATER DRAINAGE ASSOCIATION  TRACT A AUTUMN RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1/2 NE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN RIDGE 5TH ADDITION  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDSTONE 3RD ADDITION  ZONED R-1SU

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: SAMUEL R RUNYAN  UNPLATTED ZONED C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDSTONE 1ST ADDITION  ZONED R-1SU

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: B.N.K.D., INC. PT. OF PARCEL "B"  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE PARCEL "B" DOC. NO. 2005-20714

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: B.N.K.D., INC. PARCEL "C"  ZONED RP



Autumn Ridge Autumn Ridge 2nd 
addition 

Autumn Ridge 3rd 
addition 

Autumn Ridge 4th 
addition 

Autumn Ridge 5th 
addition 

Autumn Ridge 6th 
addition 

Autumn Ridge 7th 
addition 

Autumn Ridge 8th 
addition 

Autumn Ridge 9th  
and 11th addition 
(proposed) 

Autumn Ridge 10th 
addition  

TIMELINE OF AUTUMN RIDGE DEVELOPMENT 

22

Item 3.



23

Item 3.



24

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

  Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II  

 DATE: March 3, 2022 

 SUBJECT: The Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Addition Preliminary Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: To approve Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Addition Preliminary Plat  

 
PETITIONER: BKND, Inc., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

The property is located west of Union Road and south of W. 1st Street in 
Autumn Ridge Subdivision 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to create 92 units, south of W.1st Street and west of Union road in the Autumn 
Ridge Subdivision. The proposed Subdivision of Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th addition includes 
development of 34 Single family units, 58 single-family bi-attached units and dedicating a public 
park space to City of Cedar Falls.   
 
PREVIOUS DISCUSSION AT P&Z 
The applicant brought the preliminary plat for Autumn Ridge 9th Addition for review at November 
24th, 2020 Planning and Zoning Meeting. At the time the proposal was to develop the area with 
95 units (60 duplex units and 35 single family units), increasing the number of proposed units 
from the approved 58 single family units during the amendment of R-P master plan in 2013 for 
the Autumn Ridge subdivision. At the meeting, the preliminary plat was just introduced and city 
staff advised that approve the R-P master plan amendment would be required prior to approval 
of the preliminary plat. Because the master plan amendment was not approved by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission, no detailed discussion of the preliminary plat of Autumn Ridge 9th 
addition was done except the initial introduction. This report provides a more detailed analysis of 
the current proposal for a preliminary plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions. It was divided 
into two Additions, since the development is proposed to be final platted in two phases.  
 
BACKGROUND 
BKND, Inc. has submitted a preliminary plat for review, subject to approval of the amendment to 
the master plan. This preliminary plat encompasses the final area of development in Autumn 
Ridge. Autumn Ridge subdivision along Union Road has developed over the past 20 years 
beginning with a series of retirement condos and patio homes along the Autumn Ridge Road 

25

Item 4.



coupled with an expansion of single family dwellings along Paddington Drive, Berry Hill Road 
and Shocker Road. A recent expansion in the Autumn Ridge Subdivision includes some single 
family dwellings and duplexes along Thresher Court and last year six six-plexes were also 
approved along Autumn Lane, which are currently in construction phase. In total, the entire 
Autumn Ridge development consists of approximately 105 acres of land reserved for a mixture 
of residential homes from single family dwelling units, retirement units, and condominiums. In 
2013, the owner submitted and got approval of a preliminary plat for the remaining additions in 
the subdivision. However, there was no Master Plan amendment done at the time.  
 
The developer now proposes to change the preliminary plat for the area shown on the 2013 
preliminary plat as the 8th and 9th Additions.  Since there has already been a final plat approved 
for an 8th Addition and 10th Addition, the subject area must be platted as the 9th and 11th 
Additions.  
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
ZONING 
The proposed Subdivision plat includes 92 lots on 22.75(approx.) acres of land which will be 
accessed from W.1st Street from the north and Union Road from the east. The property is zoned 
RP, Planned Residential which permits a variety of uses subject to an approved master 
development plan. In 2013 approved preliminary plat was approved for this area with 58 single 
family lots. As stated above, the applicant is requesting approval of a new preliminary plat of 
what was formerly approved as Autumn Ridge 8th Addition and 9th Addition. The proposed 
preliminary plat will reduce the number of single family lots from 58 to 34 with the remaining 
area proposed for 58 single-unit bi-attached dwellings, thereby changing the unit types and 
increasing the number of units.  
 
The purpose of the R-P Planned Residence District is to permit the establishment of multi-use 
and integrated use residential developments and to provide for the orderly planned growth of 
residential developments in larger tracts of land. The RP District allows flexibility in the types of 
dwellings, the lot sizes, building heights and setbacks. However, to ensure that the area is 
developed in an orderly manner, provides for efficient traffic circulation between neighborhoods, 
and includes the necessary infrastructure to meet the needs of the future residents, a master 
plan must be submitted with the rezoning, which is adopted through a  developmental 
procedures agreement. It is also intended that such planned residence districts be designed 
and developed in substantial conformity with the standards of the comprehensive plan and 
with recognized principals of civic design, land use planning and landscape architecture.  
 
Setbacks equal to what is required in the R-4 Zoning District are required around the perimeter 
of the RP District. Therefore, where lots back up to the perimeter of the development, the 
setback is 30 feet to match the rear yard setback in the R-4 Zone.  There is only one instance 
where the side lot line abuts the RP District boundary, Lot 37. For this lot, the R-4 side lot 
standard for single family unit of 10% of the lot width would apply. The perimeter setback of 30 
feet requirement does not apply to the southern boundary of the 9th Addition, as it does not abut 
a perimeter boundary of the RP District. The perimeter setback is shown on the Preliminary Plat, 
but staff notes that the same needs to be labeled as well. The deed of dedication, 
developmental procedures agreement along with the new revised Master Plan and preliminary 
plat will outline the minimum building setback standards for all lots in the subdivision. The lots as 
proposed satisfy minimum lot width and area criteria as specified in R-P, Planned Residential 
zoning district.  

26

Item 4.



 
SUBDIVISION PHASING 
 
The proposed plat includes two phases (Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions) which will be 
accessed from Union Road and W.1st Street. According to the phasing plan (attached), the 
development will proceed from north to south. When final plats are submitted, they must match 
the proposed phasing plan and will need to ensure that all infrastructure necessary to serve the 
specific final plat area will be constructed prior to approval.   
 
Developer proposes thirty-four (34) single family units and fifty-eight (58) bi-attached units for 
the proposed addition. The development is phased in two phases as highlighted below. 
 

Proposed Autumn Ridge Additions 

Phases No. of Lots No. of Single-family 
units  

No. of one unit bi-
attached units 

9th 
Addition 

45 19 26 

11th 
Addition 

47 15 32 

Total 92 34 58 

 
Details of the proposed single family lots: 
Proposed preliminary plat will include 34 single family units, with developing 19 units in the first 
phase and 15 units in the second phase. 
 
Setbacks:  
As per the R-P, Residential Planned zoning district, there is no minimum yard or height 
requirements except that the minimum yards, as specified in the R-4 residence district shall be 
provided around the boundaries of the planned residence district. The perimeter setbacks are 
described in the zoning section above. The developer proposes the following minimum setbacks 
for the development of single family units in the plat. 
 
Minimum Front Yard setback = 20 feet 
Minimum Side Yard setback = 10% of Lot width (at 20 feet setback)  
Minimum Rear Yard setback = 30 feet 
 
City staff finds that the setbacks will be appropriate for the development of proposed single 
family units. However, we note that the proposed single family lots along Aronia Drive are fairly 
shallow in depth. Shallow depth lots with rear drainage easements have caused some issues in 
other subdivisions. Homeowners often desire to fence their rear yards for privacy, but since 
fences are not allowed in drainage easements, the rear yard area may be smaller than 
homeowners anticipate. Home designs on these lots should be carefully chosen to ensure 
adequate rear yard space. City staff notes that the proposed setbacks should be mentioned in 
the deed of dedication. 
 
Lot size: 
As per the R-P, Residential Planned zoning district, the lot area requirements in the single family 
units area of planned residence district shall be similar to the one mentioned in the R-4 
Residence district.  

27

Item 4.



     Side Yard Width 4   

Use  
Lot  

Area  

Lot  

Width  

Lot 

Area  

per Unit  

Front  

Yard  

Depth 
1  

Least on  

Any One  

Side  

Minimum 

Sum  

of Both Sides  

Rear  

Yard  

Depth  

One-

unit  

6,000  

square  

feet  

60 

feet  

6,000  

square  

feet  

20 feet  
10% of lot 

width  
—  

30 

feet  

 
Proposed single family unit lot size varies from 6,596 sq.ft to 12,990 sq.ft in area, so meets this 
requirement of the RP District.  
 
Details of the proposed bi-attached lots: 
Proposed preliminary plat will include 58 lots intended for single-unit bi-attached dwellings, 
developing 26 units in the first phase and 32 units in the second phase. 
 
Setbacks:  
As per the R-P, Residential Planned zoning district, there is no minimum yard or height 
requirements except that the minimum yards, as specified in the R-4 residence district shall be 
provided around the boundaries of the planned residence district. Developer proposes the 
following minimum setbacks for the development of the bi-attached lots in the plat. 

 
Minimum Front Yard setback = 20 feet 
Minimum Side Yard setback = 20% of Lot width (at 20 feet setback)  
Minimum Rear Yard setback = 30 feet 
City staff notes that the proposed setbacks should be mentioned in the deed of dedication. 
 
Lot size: 
As per the R-P, Residential Planned zoning district, the lot area requirements in the one unit bi-
attached dwelling units area of planned residence district shall be similar to the one mentioned 
in the R-4 Residence district.  

     Side Yard Width 4   

Use  
Lot  

Area  

Lot  

Width  

Lot Area  

per Unit  

Front  

Yard  

Depth 
1  

Least on  

Any One  

Side  

Minimum 

Sum  

of Both 

Sides  

Rear  

Yard  

Depth  

One-unit bi-

attached 

dwellings  

4,000  

square  

feet  

30 

feet  

4,000 

square 

feet  

20 

feet  

20% of 

lot width  
 

30 

feet  

 

28

Item 4.



Proposed single-unit bi-attached dwelling lot size varies from 5,878 sq.ft to 12,855 sq.ft in area, 
so meets the requirements of the RP District. City staff notes that the developer has provided 
two examples of type of unit that they will be implementing (see below), In general, for the 
narrower lots intended for bi-attached units, the designs will need to be carefully planned to 
ensure that minimum side setback requirements can be met. 

  

  
 
City staff notes that the duplex units are all proposed with front-loaded garages. As described in 
the staff report for the RP Master Plan amendment, staff is concerned about the effect that so 
many driveways and curb cuts will have on the livability of the neighborhood, as there will be 
little room for on-street parking, street trees, or landscaped front yards. Driveway paving will 
cover a significant portion of the front yards and interrupt the sidewalk along the street.  

 
The developer has indicated that they would like to move forward with the proposal and to 
address the issue of wider driveways and curb cuts, developer is proposing to add clause in the 
deed of dedication stating that all approaches and driveway in the development be no more than 
18 feet wide at the front lot line. For lots with 3-car garages, driveways may then be flared out in 
a manner that meets the zoning code standards, so there is separation between the public 
sidewalk and any extended area beyond the 18 foot width. While staff is still concerned about 
this issue and the quality of the neighborhood streetscape it will produce, we are accepting of 
this solution.  
 
Public Sidewalks: 
To provide for pedestrian circulation public sidewalks are required along the west side of Union 
Road bordering the eastern boundary of subdivision and south side of W 1st Street bordering the 
northern boundary of subdivision.  These sidewalks must be installed with the 9th Addition. 
Public sidewalks, minimum 4-feet in width, must also be constructed along all internal streets 
within the subdivision to provide for pedestrian circulation.  A mid-block sidewalk connection will 
be constructed in the second phase of development (11th Addition) between the Union Road 
sidewalk and Channel Drive to provide easy access for residents in the southern part of Autumn 
Ridge to the park that will be developed in the 11th Addition.  
 
Community Space/Shared usable Open Space: 
In the November 2020 staff report, staff recommended amending the preliminary plat to include 
a minimum of 2 acres of shared open space to meet the subdivision code requirement for open 
space and to comply with the spirit of the originally adopted RP Master Plan and developmental 
procedures agreement, as described in more detail in the staff report for the proposed 
amendment to the RP Master Plan. In response, developer has included Outlot 1 (1.15 acres), 

29

Item 4.



which will be conveyed to the City of Cedar Falls to develop the area as a public park space. 
Outlot 1 will be developed in the second phase of development (11th Addition). City staff notes 
that the proposed park space must be graded so that most of the area is usable.  Outlot 1 
slopes toward the drainageway to the south. In order to create relatively level usable park 
space, the southern and western edge of the Outlot will need to be more steeply sloped. The 
deed of dedication will need to outline the conditions under which the City will accept this area 
as public park space. In general, it must be graded and seeded according to City standards to 
provide level park space for City staff to maintain after acceptance and conveyance to City. Staff 
also notes that the developer will be adding a sidewalk connection to access the Park from the 
Union Road, to provide good public access to the park. This sidewalk connection will require the 
developer to collect and convey the previously established Union Road drainage ditch into a 
storm sewer pipe that will release southerly adjacent to the Union Road culvert structure. 
Additional grading will be done to tie the southerly limit of the park space into the existing 
stormwater detention facility. 
 
Notification of Surrounding Property Owners: 
City Staff sent a courtesy notice to the surrounding property owners on 1st March 2022.  
 
The applicant has submitted the deed of dedication, which has been attached with the packet 
for reference. City staff notes that the draft deed of dedication is still under review and hopes 
that all the needed changes will be made before the next Planning and Zoning meeting.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Utilities - City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, 
electric, gas and communication services are available to the site. The developer is responsible for 
the construction of a properly sized water system from the existing 12” water mains on the east 
side of Union Road on Wynnewood Drive and the northwest end of Berry Hill Road in the 
easement to the north. Included in the installation are valves, fire hydrants and water service stubs 
for the new lots. Water main sizing and fire hydrant and valve placement locations will need to be 
finalized during water construction plan review. The developer is responsible for the cost of the 
streetlight installations required for any City streets.     
 
Stormwater Management – City Staff has concerns over public comments regarding localized 
flooding adjacent to previously established basins. These concerns were reviewed by the 
developers engineer and provided staff with a written memorandum outlining the existing 
detention volumes and rates were still acceptable and within tolerance from the originally 
designed stormwater facility. Secondly, concerns were raised by staff regarding the current state 
of the existing drainage facility regarding the need to clear and grub the basin to restore its 
capacity. After review by the developer’s engineer, the current drainage capacity is being met. 
However, the City will require that the drainage facility be cleared and grubbed in a manner 
acceptable to the City Engineer prior to any final plat approval.  Lastly, concerns were made by 
adjacent property owners on the southerly side of the drainage facility and the preliminary 
floodplain maps. Staff acknowledges the widening of the flood boundaries; however the 9th and 
11th Additions, the subject of this review, will not be constructed in a manner that will change the 
floodplain or affect the FEMA flood insurance rate maps.  
 
The petitioner’s engineer has previously submitted a storm water management plan to the City 
and it has been reviewed by the City Engineer. The City Engineer has determined that the plan 
meets the City’s subdivision requirements and also finds that the design will improve the 
drainage pattern that has developed over the years on this undeveloped parcel of land. 

30

Item 4.



Following is a summary of the proposed stormwater management system: 
 
A regional detention facility was constructed as a part of Autumn Ridge 5th addition that utilized 
an existing culvert structure under Union Rd. The stormwater facilities are platted currently 
under Autumn Ridge 5th Addition. However, the facility is sized to serve the additional area of 
Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions. For Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Additions, stormwater will 
be collected either in the street with intakes or captured by overland swales within protected 
drainage easements and will be conveyed to the regional detention area. Collection from street 
intakes will be captured and piped to the southern waterway previously established in Autumn 
Ridge 5th Addition. Likewise, the overland drainage swales will convey rear-yard drainage 
swales into intakes to be collected by the storm sewer network.  
 
During construction, it will be the responsibility of the developer to clear and grub around the 
existing detention facility by way of the established maintenance and repair agreement to 
ensure proper functionality. It will also be the developer’s responsibility to develop and maintain 
a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan that will limit onsite erosion from construction related 
activities, as outline by City Code. Compliance with these requirements will help to reduce 
sedimentation within the stormwater facilities.  
 
Sanitary Sewer - The sanitary sewer will be extended from an existing manhole located north of 
the existing Union Road culvert and along the West side of Union Road. The sanitary sewer will 
be extended northerly across Outlot 1, and then extended along the proposed street network to 
service each lot. The sanitary sewer will be extended to the limits of the plat on the westerly and 
northerly sides, per the City’s subdivision ordinance in order to accommodate future growth. 
 
Concerns on Phasing   
Staff is supportive of development starting on the north, so that street connections will be made 
to both Union Road and 1st Street to provide good traffic circulation.  However, staff notes that 
Autumn Ridge 9th Addition in Phase 1 is topographically higher in elevation than Autumn Ridge 
11th in Phase 2 which will require utilities to be installed through the Phase 2 area to serve 
Phase 1. This will require that all the utilities including storm sewers and storm water channels 
and the sanitary sewer must be extended from existing infrastructure from the south to the 
Phase 1 area. Staff notes that with the phasing as proposed all the necessary infrastructure 
must be installed from the south as necessary to serve the needs of the 1st Phase (Autumn 
Ridge 9th Addition).  An alternate phasing plan that would include within the 1st Phase the 
eastern edge of the development (the north-south leg of Channel Drive and abutting lots, 
including Outlot 1, which contains extension of the sanitary sewer connection) is recommended.  
However, regardless of the phasing, a final plat will not be approved unless all infrastructure is 
installed to meet City standards to serve the area being developed. This requirement shall be 
detailed in the draft deed of dedication.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The introduction of this preliminary plat is for discussion and public comment. City staff 
recommends continuing the discussion to the next Planning and Zoning meeting.  
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction& 
Discussion 
03/09/2022 

 

 

31

Item 4.



1st St Trail

Un
ion

Rd
Tra

il

â

Au
tum

n L
n

Co rduro yD r

Fieldstone Blvd

Pheasant Dr

Shocker Rd

Paddington Dr

Wynnewood Dr

Berry Hill Rd

N U
nio

n R
d

Un
ion

 Rd

W 1st St®¬57
C-1

R-1SU
RP

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
March 9, 2022

Preliminary Plat for Autumn Ridge 
9th & 11th Addition
(PP20-004)

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

32

Item 4.



Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

78
6\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
78

6 
- P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
.d

wg
 - 

1 
of

 6
 P

re
lim

 P
la

t -
  0

2-
23

-2
2 

- 3
:5

8p
m

 - 
AC

D2
76

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
1 OF 6

5786

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
PRELIMINARY PLAT -

COVER SHEET
NCB

SJC

MCH

5-20-20

05-18-20

LEGEND

SIGN

X X X X

105

W (*) W

San(*) San

StS (*) StS

M

C C

G (*) G

OH E OH E

E (*) E

T(*) T

T T

PRELIMINARY PLAT
AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND

ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

OWNERS OF RECORD
B.N.K.D., INC.
1603 RUBBLE ROAD
WAVERLY, IOWA 50677

SURVEY REQUESTED BY:

ZONING INFORMATION:
CURRENT: RP (PLANNED RESIDENCE DISTRICT)

SURVEYOR AND ENGINEER
MARC C. HOODJER, P.L.S.
ADAM DATERS, P.E.
CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES
P.O. BOX 754 - 16 E. MAIN STREET
MARSHALLTOWN, IOWA 50158
(641)752-6701

NOTE:
ALL BEARINGS ARE THE RESULT OF G.P.S. OBSERVATIONS
USING NAD83 IOWA STATE PLAN NORTH ZONE

CLOSURE:
- ALL SUBDIVISION BOUNDARIES ARE WITHIN THE 1:10,000 ERROR OF

CLOSURE REQUIREMENT
- ALL LOTS ARE WITHIN THE 1:5000 ERROR OF CLOSURE REQUIREMENT.

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SURVEY LEGEND
GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

(  )     RECORDED AS

PARCEL OR LOT CORNER MONUMENT FOUND

GOVERNMENT CORNER MONUMENT SET

ID CAP #22634
SET 1/2" x 30" REBAR w/YELLOW PLASTIC

1/2" x 30" REBAR w/YELLOW PLASTIC ID CAP #22634

AS NOTED ON PLAN

PROJECT
LOCATION

FLOOD ZONE
(ZONE X )
PANEL # 19013C0161F
EFFECTIVE DATE: JULY 18, 2011

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PARCEL "C" LOCATED IN THE E1
2 OF THE NORTHEAST 14 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M.,

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, EXCEPT THAT PART OF AUTUMN RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION RECORDED ON
INSTRUMENT #2014-00015466
AND
THAT PART OF PARCEL "B" LOCATED IN THE NORTHEAST 14 OF  SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH
P.M., CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF AUTUMN RIDGE 5TH ADDITION; THENCE NORTH  0°10'38" EAST, 57.20 FEET ALONG
THE WEST LINE OF SAID PARCEL "B" TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE SOUTH 88°48'20"E, 425.29 FEET ALONG THE
NORTH LINE OF SAID PARCEL "B" TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE OF TRACT A, AUTUMN RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION; THENCE SOUTH
83°31'04" WEST, 428.11 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF TRACT A TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.30 ACRES MORE
OR LESS.

THIS PARCEL CONTAINS 23.38 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

SETBACK DATA
FRONT YARD = 20 FT
REAR YARD =  30 FT
SIDE YARD* = 10% LOT WIDTH (AT 20' SETBACK)

*SIDE YARD SETBACKS FOR ONE UNIT DWELLING IS 10% OF
LOT WIDTH AND 20% OF LOT WIDTH FOR ONE UNIT
BI-ATTACHED DWELLING.

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

Signature Date

My license renewal date is December 31, 2022

Iowa License Number 22634

Marc C. Hoodjer, PLS

I hereby certify that this land surveying document was
prepared and related survey work was performed by me
or under my direct personal supervision and that I am a
duly Licensed Professional Land Surveyor under the
laws of the State of Iowa.

DATE PREPARED : 2/09/22

O
F E

N

EIS

ES O

ANO
I

L
WA I

GN

EDL

P
R

19579

EIC NS

E
R

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

Signature Date

My license renewal date is December 31, 2022

Iowa License Number 19579

Adam C. Daters, PE

I hereby certify that this engineering document was
prepared by me or under my direct personal supervision
and that I am a duly licensed Professional Engineer
under the laws of the State of Iowa.

AD

AM

A
D

C .

ET

R
S

NE SEDIL C

WAI O

P
R

O
F

E
SS IONAL L AND SUR

V
E

Y
O

R

OH

REJDO.CCRA
M

22634

B.N.K.D., INC.
1603 RUBBLE ROAD
WAVERLY, IOWA 50677

1 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 09-08-2020

N

CITY LIMITS

MAILBOX NOTES:
1. CLUSTER MAILBOX UNITS SHALL COMPLY WITH

ALL USPS STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS.

2. CONTRACTOR WILL CONSULT WITH THE CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

3. ALL CLUSTER MAILBOXES SHALL BE PLACED IN
THE R.O.W.

2 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 10-26-2020

SITE NOTES:
1. NO ABOVE GROUND UTILITIES TO BE PLACED ON OVERLAND FLOW PATHS AND ESTABLISHED DRAINAGE EASEMENTS.

2. ESTABLISHED STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AREA TO BE CLEARED OF DEBRIS, TREES AND SAPLINGS CLEARED AND
GRUBBED, RE-ESTABLISHED BANKS AND FLOWLINE, AND SUBMITTAL TO CITY OF AN UPDATED INSPECTION RECORDS AS
PART OF EXISTING MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR AGREEMENT.  ALL INSPECTION DOCUMENTATION TO BE SUBMITTED TO
ENGINEERING DIVISION.

3 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 11-12-2020

SHEET INDEX

NO. DESCRIPTION

1 COVER SHEET
2 OVERALL LAYOUT
3 OVERALL GRADING
4-5 UTILITIES, EASEMENTS AND DETAILED DIMENSIONS
6 HOUSE AND DRIVEWAY FOOTPRINT

1            CITY TECH REVIEW COMMENTS (2-16-22 MTG.)            ACD                       2-22-2022

33

Item 4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUBS (BUSHES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN (TYPE AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOUR LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEEHIVE INTAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURIED ELECTRICAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL BOX/TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL



W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

San(D)

95
2 95

1

95
0

94
7

94
8

94
6

A
R

O
N

IA
 D

R
IV

E

WYNNEWOOD DR.

CHANNEL DR.

280.32' (282.97')
S89°26'25"E (S89°49'33"W)

39
2.

08
' (

39
1.

95
')

S
0°

14
'4

4"
E

 (
N

01
°0

4'
57

"W
)

987.24' (987.24')
S89°19'46"E (S89°49'11"W)

12
5.

76
' (

12
5.

76
')

S
9°

17
'0

3"
E

 (
N

10
°0

7'
36

"W
)

28
0.

60
' (

27
9.

96
')

S
0°

11
'3

0"
E

 (
N

01
°0

3'
21

"W
)

26
1.

94
'

S
7°

00
'3

7"
W

 (
N

06
°0

9'
47

"E
)

102.55' (102.54')

S74°41'46"W

(N73°50'56"E)

282.86' (282.83')N84°33'07"W (S85'23'57"E)

90.01' (90.00')
N89°19'55"W
(N89°49'15"E)

341.43' (341.40')

S82°00'02"W (N81°09'12"E)

456.35' (456.35')

S83°31'04"W (N82°40'14"E)

11
69

.2
6'

N
0°

11
'0

8"
E

 (
N

0°
40

'1
2"

w
)

1320.04' (1319.92')
S89°19'47"E (N89°49'23"E)

425.29'
S88°48'20"E

428.11'

(4
3.

13
')

33
.4

9'
S

0°
11

'0
8"

W
11

7.
15

'
N

0°
11

'0
8"

E

ZO
N

E
 A

E

86
.9

3'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
82

.0
5'

85
.5

5'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

85
.5

5'

109.93'

109.93'

85
.9

8'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
72

.4
0'

74
.3

6'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

75
.3

3'

82
.9

4'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
63

.6
2'

110.21'

110.83'

112.59'

113.12'

112.66'

112.20'

111.75'

111.29'

51.00' 51.00' 48.50' 48.50' 57.00' 57.00' 62.00' 94.00' 89.00' 57.00' 48.50' 48.50' 62.00' 62.00' 91.21'

64
.4

2'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.7
5'

74
.5

0'

62.01' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 56.50' 56.50' 54.75' 54.75' 45.00' 45.00' 45.63' 62.12'

101.54' 51.00' 51.00' 48.50' 48.50' 57.00' 57.00' 62.00' 83.50' 78.50' 57.00'

110.56' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 56.50' 56.50' 54.75' 54.75' 45.00' 45.00' 45.67' 60.09'

120.56'

120.02'

119.47'

118.95'

107.57'
62.49' 62.49' 62.49' 62.49' 62.49' 62.49' 56.88' 56.68' 54.86' 54.78' 45.00' 45.00' 45.63' 44.06'

21
.6

8'
62

.0
0'

72
.6

8'

48.51' 48.54' 62.07' 62.05' 112.88'

13
7.

00
'

75
.6

4'
62

.7
5'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

73
.9

7'

13
4.

49
'

150.02'

150.02'

150.02'

40
.7

0'
62

.0
0'

144.89'

19
3.

11
'

13
5.

50
'

13
4.

97
'

18
5.

91
'

17
8.

71
'

13
4.

44
'

17
1.

50
'

13
3.

90
'

16
4.

30
'

13
3.

37
'

15
7.

10
'

13
2.

84
'

15
0.

54
'

13
2.

36
'

14
3.

97
'

13
1.

87
'

14
1.

60
'

13
1.

42
'

14
2.

12
'

13
0.

87
'

14
2.

44
'

13
0.

55
'

13
0.

17
'

14
2.

82
'

14
3.

27
'

13
1.

55
'

75
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
82

.5
3'

139.78'

62
.5

3'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

12
3.

51
'

12
2.

99
'

99.62'

109.93'

99.35'

99.53'

12
8.

24
'

13
7.

00
'

13
6.

71
'

13
5.

66
'

13
3.

67
'

13
0.

80
'

R10.5' R10
.5'

R10
.5'

R10.5'

R10.5' R10
.5'

R10
.5'

R10.5'

R80.0'

R20.0'

R
2970.3'

R
3030.3'

R
4030.3'

R
3970.3'

R
2030.2'

R
1970.2'

R
1970.2'

R
2030.2'

49.48'

31
.73

'

16
.23

'16.81'
16

.58
'

16
.30

' 17.12'

16.40'

16
.5

8'

58.52'
44.03'

22
1.

24

B
R

A
E

B
U

R
N

 D
R

IV
E

13
7.

00
'

60.00'

R10.5' R10
.5'

12
6.

51
'

12
6.

51
'

16.49'16
.49

'

20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

20'

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT
20

' D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
A

N
D

 U
TI

LI
TY

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

20' DRAINAGE
AND UTILITY
EASEMENT

20' DRAINAGE
AND UTILITY
EASEMENT

20' DRAINAGE
AND UTILITY
EASEMENT

20' DRAINAGE
AND UTILITY
EASEMENT

20' D
R

A
IN

A
G

E

A
N

D
 U

TILITY

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

20' DRAINAGE
AND UTILITY
EASEMENT

20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

77.40' 62.22' 61.16' 62.05' 62.01' 51.00' 51.00' 51.00' 51.00'
51.00' 51.00' 51.00'

51.01' 59.23' 59.41' 44.67' 44.65' 44.65' 44.65' 35.94'

16
9.

17
'

77.91'
68.30'

72.97'
62.01' 62.01' 51.00' 51.00' 51.02' 51.02' 51.02' 51.02' 51.02' 51.02' 46.31'

4.54'

51.00'34.46'

10.23'

44.81' 44.81' 44.81'
138.20'

15
1.

05
'

14
7.

31
'

14
3.

58
'

13
9.

62
'

13
7.

59
'136.54'

137.58'

139.63'

141.02'

142.41'

143.80'

145.18'

146.28'

146.31'

146.35'

146.40'

148.77'

153.13'

15
9.

57
'

LOT 1
12,990
SQ. FT.

LOT 2
8,026

SQ. FT.

LOT 3
8,199

SQ. FT.

LOT 4
6,532

SQ. FT.

LOT 5
6,606

SQ. FT.

LOT 6
7,806

SQ. FT.

LOT 7
12,171
SQ. FT.

LOT 8
12,855
SQ. FT.

LOT 9
8,495

SQ. FT.

LOT 10
7,810

SQ. FT.

LOT 11
7,810

SQ. FT.

LOT 12
6,645

SQ. FT.

LOT 13
6,645

SQ. FT.

LOT 14
6,988

SQ. FT.

LOT 15
6,988

SQ. FT.
LOT 16

8,342
SQ. FT.

LOT 17
6,997

SQ. FT.

LOT 18
6,999

SQ. FT.

LOT 19
6,971

SQ. FT.

LOT 20
6,942

SQ. FT.

LOT 21
6,914

SQ. FT.

LOT 22
6,885

SQ. FT.

LOT 23
9,120

SQ. FT.

LOT 24
9,504

SQ. FT.

LOT 25
6,596

SQ. FT.

LOT 26
6,596

SQ. FT.

LOT 27
6,596

SQ. FT.

LOT 28
6,596

SQ. FT.

LOT 29
6,596

SQ. FT.

LOT 30
6,596

SQ. FT.

LOT 31
9,424

SQ. FT.

LOT 32
9,330

SQ. FT.

LOT 33
6,596

SQ. FT.

LOT 34
6,596

SQ. FT.

LOT 35
6,596

SQ. FT.

LOT 36
9,424

SQ. FT.

LOT 38
10,167
SQ. FT.

LOT 39
10,101
SQ. FT.

LOT 40
9,150

SQ. FT.

LOT 41
9,079

SQ. FT.

LOT 42
7,464

SQ. FT.

LOT 43
7,462

SQ. FT.

LOT 44
7,439

SQ. FT.

LOT 45
7,370

SQ. FT.

LOT 46
7,299

SQ. FT.

LOT 47
7,228

SQ. FT.

LOT 48
7,157

SQ. FT.

LOT 49
7,075

SQ. FT.

LOT 50
7,476

SQ. FT.

LOT 51
7,519

SQ. FT.

LOT 52
6,178

SQ. FT.

LOT 53
6,326

SQ. FT.

LOT 54
6,495

SQ. FT.

LOT 55
6,662

SQ. FT.

LOT 56
9,198

SQ. FT.

LOT 57
9,301

SQ. FT.

LOT 58
9,301

SQ. FT.

LOT 59
10,941
SQ. FT.

LOT 60
8,172

SQ. FT.

LOT 61
5,903

SQ. FT.

LOT 62
5,878

SQ. FT.

LOT 63
5,881

SQ. FT.

LOT 64
7,179

SQ. FT.

LOT 65
7,205

SQ. FT.

LOT 66
7,462

SQ. FT.

LOT 67
7,489

SQ. FT.
LOT 68

8,250
SQ. FT.

LOT 69
8,283

SQ. FT.

LOT 70
8,315

SQ. FT.

LOT 71
8,348

SQ. FT.

LOT 72
8,381

SQ. FT.

LOT 73
8,414

SQ. FT.

LOT 74
8,979

SQ. FT.

LOT 75
7,457

SQ. FT.

LOT 76
7,424

SQ. FT.

LOT 77
7,480

SQ. FT.

LOT 78
9,605

SQ. FT.

LOT 92
9,090

SQ. FT.

LOT 91
6,439

SQ. FT.

LOT 90
6,422

SQ. FT.

LOT 89
6,409

SQ. FT.

LOT 88
7,832

SQ. FT.

LOT 87
7,946

SQ. FT.

LOT 86
8,406

SQ. FT.

LOT 85
8,703

SQ. FT.

LOT 84
9,968

SQ. FT.

LOT 83
10,415
SQ. FT.

LOT 82
10,861
SQ. FT.

LOT 81
11,308
SQ. FT.

LOT 80
11,754
SQ. FT.

LOT 79
12,201
SQ. FT.

TRACT "A"

TRACT "A"

LOT 37
12,722
SQ. FT.

OUTLOT 1
50,309 SQ. FT.

AUTUMN RIDGE
NINTH ADDITION

(PHASE 1)

AUTUMN RIDGE
ELEVENTH
ADDITION (PHASE 2)

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

78
6\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
78

6 
- P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
.d

wg
 - 

2 
of

 6
 P

re
lim

 P
la

t -
  0

2-
23

-2
2 

- 3
:5

8p
m

 - 
AC

D2
76

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
2 OF 6

5786

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
PRELIMINARY PLAT -

OVERALL LAYOUT
NCB

SJC

MCH

5-20-20

05-18-20

PRELIMINARY PLAT - AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND
ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

DATE PREPARED:5/20/20
SEE SHEET 3 OF 6 FOR EXISTING AND PROPOSED CONTOUR DATA.

TRACT A - STREET RIGHT OF WAY
OUTLOT 1 - PARK SPACE

NOTE:  ALL TRACTS AND OUTLOTS SHALL BE DEDICATED TO THE
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

TRACTS & OUTLOTS

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

160'80' 240'

FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY
(500 YEAR)

FLOODWAY BOUNDARY
(100 YEAR)

EX. 20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

31.00' ROADWAY (TYP.)

EX. 20' STORM
SEWER EASEMENT

EX. 20' STORM
SEWER EASEMENT

EX. WALK (TYP.)

4' WALK (TYP.)

31.00' ROADWAY (TYP.)

NW CORNER OF THE EAST 12 OF THE
NORTHEAST 14 SEC. 9, T89N, R14W.

FOUND MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT.

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

FOUND 12" IRON PIN WITH
WHITE PLASTIC CAP NO. 7034

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

NE CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 14
SEC. 9, T89N, R14W. FOUND MAG
SPIKE WITH WASHER.

SW CORNER PARCEL "C"
FOUND 5 8" IRON PIN WITH

ORANGE PLASTIC CAP NO. 12088,
1.4'± WEST OF LINE.

NW CORNER LOT 23
FOUND 12" IRON PIN

WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 21428

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 2697

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 2697

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC

CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC

CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC

CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

60' R.O.W. (TYP.)

60' R.O.W. (TYP.)

MATCH LINE SEE SHEET 4 OF 6

MATCH LINE SEE SHEET 5 OF 6

EX. TREE LINE

EX. TREE LINE

PHASE LOTS TRACT

1 45 "A"

2 47 "A"

TOTAL 92

1 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 09-08-2020

0.
38

'

CBU #1

MAILBOX NOTES:
1. CLUSTER MAILBOX UNITS SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL

USPS STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS.

2. CONTRACTOR WILL CONSULT WITH THE CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

3. ALL CLUSTER MAILBOXES SHALL BE PLACED IN THE
R.O.W.

4. 16 MAILBOXES PER UNIT WITH 92 LOTS TOTAL

5. CBU LOCATION SUMMARY:

· CBU #1: LOTS 1-15, 58-73; 31 MAILBOXES (2 UNITS)
· CBU #2:  LOTS 16-31; 16 MAILBOXES (1 UNIT)
· CBU #3: LOTS 40-57, 79-92; 32 MAILBOXES (2 UNITS)
· CBU #2 RELOCATED: LOTS  16-39, 74-78; 29

MAILBOXES (2 UNITS, 1 RELOCATED + 1 NEW)

6. CBU INSTALLATION PHASING:

· CBU #1 AND #2 TO BE INSTALLED WITH PHASE 1
· CBU #3 AND RELOCATED CBU #2 TO BE INSTALLED

WITH PHASE 2

2 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 10-26-2020

EX. BLDG

3 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 11-12-2020

CBU #2

CBU #3

CBU #2
RELOCATED

(FUTURE)

4            CITY TECH REVIEW COMMENTS (2-16-22 MTG.)            ACD                       2-22-2022

34

Item 4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: MARK J AND CYNTHIA S LUCHTENBURG UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: ANN L AND BRADLEY R PIERSCHBACHER UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: WATERLOO MSA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: LINDA S OSBORN UNPLATTED W  NE   12 NE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: AUTUMN RIDGE STORM WATER DRAINAGE ASSOCIATION  TRACT A AUTUMN RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1/2 NE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
WYNNEWOOD DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 1ST ST./HWY 57

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. UNION RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN RIDGE 5TH ADDITION  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDSTONE 3RD ADDITION  ZONED R-1SU

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: SAMUEL R RUNYAN  UNPLATTED ZONED C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDSTONE 1ST ADDITION  ZONED R-1SU

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: B.N.K.D., INC. PT. OF PARCEL "B"  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE PARCEL "B" DOC. NO. 2005-20714

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: B.N.K.D., INC. PARCEL "C"  ZONED RP



W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

San(D)

95
2 95

1

95
0

94
7

94
8

94
6

428.11'

(4
3.

13
')

280.32' (282.97')
S89°26'25"E (S89°49'33"W)

39
2.

08
' (

39
1.

95
')

S
0°

14
'4

4"
E

 (
N

01
°0

4'
57

"W
)

987.24' (987.24')
S89°19'46"E (S89°49'11"W)

12
5.

76
' (

12
5.

76
')

S
9°

17
'0

3"
E

 (
N

10
°0

7'
36

"W
)

28
0.

60
' (

27
9.

96
')

S
0°

11
'3

0"
E

 (
N

01
°0

3'
21

"W
)

26
1.

94
'

S
7°

00
'3

7"
W

 (
N

06
°0

9'
47

"E
)

102.55' (102.54')

S74°41'46"W

(N73°50'56"E)

282.86' (282.83')N84°33'07"W (S85'23'57"E)

90.01' (90.00')
N89°19'55"W
(N89°49'15"E)

341.43' (341.40')

S82°00'02"W (N81°09'12"E)

456.35' (456.35')

S83°31'04"W (N82°40'14"E)

425.29'
S88°48'20"E

97
0

96
9

97
1

97
2

973

97
0

97
5

975975
975
975

97
5

96
9

97
1

97
2

97
3

97
4

97
6

976

97
6

976

976

976

960

96
5

970

96196296
396

4

96696796896
9

976

975
974

972

970
972

969

969
968967

966
965

963

962

961

960

956

958

11
69

.2
6'

N
0°

11
'0

8"
E

 (
N

0°
40

'1
2"

w
)

33
.4

9'
S

0°
11

'0
8"

W
11

7.
15

'
N

0°
11

'0
8"

E

WYNNEWOOD DR.

CHANNEL DR.

LOT 1LOT 2LOT 3LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6LOT 7LOT 8LOT 9LOT 10LOT 11LOT 12LOT 13LOT 14LOT 15

LOT 16

LOT 17

LOT 18

LOT 19

LOT 20

LOT 21

LOT 22

LOT 23LOT 24

LOT 25

LOT 26

LOT 27

LOT 28

LOT 29

LOT 30

LOT 31

LOT 32

LOT 33

LOT 34

LOT 35

LOT 36

LOT 38 LOT 39
LOT 40

LOT 41
LOT 42

LOT 43
LOT 44

LOT 45
LOT 46

LOT 47
LOT 48

LOT 49 LOT 50 LOT 51 LOT 52 LOT 53 LOT 54 LOT 55

LOT 56

LOT 57

LOT 58

LOT 59

LOT 60LOT 61LOT 62LOT 63LOT 64LOT 65LOT 66LOT 67LOT 68LOT 69LOT 70LOT 71LOT 72LOT 73

LOT 74

LOT 75

LOT 76

LOT 77

LOT 78

LOT 92LOT 91LOT 90LOT 89LOT 88LOT 87LOT 86LOT 85LOT 84LOT 83LOT 82LOT 81LOT 80

LOT 79

TRACT "A"

TRACT "A"

A
R

O
N

IA
 D

R
IV

E

B
R

A
E

B
U

R
N

 D
R

IV
E

2.
1%

LOT 37

96
0

95
7

95
8

95
9

96
1

96
2

963
964

OUTLOT 1

ROADWAY LOW POINT AND
OVERLAND SWALES TO BE

SHIFTED/DESIGNED AS NEEDED
DURING FINAL DESIGN TO ALLOW

PROPER OVERLAND
CONVEYANCE ALONG LOT LINES

ROADWAY LOW POINT AND
OVERLAND SWALES TO BE

SHIFTED/DESIGNED AS NEEDED
DURING FINAL DESIGN TO ALLOW

PROPER OVERLAND
CONVEYANCE ALONG LOT LINES

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

78
6\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
78

6 
- P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
 3

 o
f 5

.d
wg

 - 
3 

of
 6

 P
re

lim
 P

la
t -

  0
2-

23
-2

2 
- 3

:5
9p

m
 - 

AC
D2

76

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
3 OF 6

5786

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
PRELIMINARY PLAT -

GRADING PLAN
NCB

SJC

MCH

5-20-20

05-18-20

PRELIMINARY PLAT - AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND
ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

DATE PREPARED:5/20/20

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

160'80' 240'

EX. 20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

31.00' ROADWAY (TYP.)

EX. 20' STORM
SEWER EASEMENT

EX. 20' STORM
SEWER EASEMENT

EX. WALK (TYP.)

31.00' ROADWAY (TYP.)

60' R.O.W. (TYP.)

60' R.O.W. (TYP.)

NOTES
1. THE EXTENT OF TOPOGRAPHIC CHANGES SHALL

CONSIST OF ROADWAY GRADING AND LOT
GRADING.

2. TRACT "A" IS PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BE
DEDICATED TO THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS.

3. SLOPES SHALL NOT EXCEED 4:1 IN ANY ACCESS
EASEMENT AREA

4. SEE SHEETS 4 AND 5 FOR ADDITIONAL LOT
DIMENSIONS AND NOTATIONS.

MATCH LINE SEE SHEET 4 OF 6

MATCH LINE SEE SHEET 5 OF 6

FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY
(500 YEAR)

FLOODWAY BOUNDARY
(100 YEAR)

4' WALK (TYP.)

NW CORNER OF THE EAST 12 OF THE
NORTHEAST 14 SEC. 9, T89N, R14W.

FOUND MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT.

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

FOUND 12" IRON PIN WITH
WHITE PLASTIC CAP NO. 7034

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

NE CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 14
SEC. 9, T89N, R14W. FOUND MAG
SPIKE WITH WASHER.

SW CORNER PARCEL "C"
FOUND 5 8" IRON PIN WITH

ORANGE PLASTIC CAP NO. 12088,
1.4'± WEST OF LINE.

NW CORNER LOT 23
FOUND 12" IRON PIN

WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 21428

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 2697

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 2697

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC

CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC

CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC

CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

1 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 09-08-2020

0.
38

'

2 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 10-26-2020

3 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 11-12-2020

MLO TABLE

LOT #
LOW POINT
ELEVATAION

SWALE 100
YR DEPTH (FT)

MLO
ELEVATION

1 971.34 0.15 972.49

2 973.19 0.15 974.34

3 973.60 0.15 974.75

4 973.15 0.45 974.60

5 972.69 0.45 974.14

6 972.16 0.45 973.61

7 972.00 0.45 973.45

8 972.00 0.45 973.45

9 971.71 0.45 973.16

10 972.02 0.45 973.47

11 972.31 0.45 973.76

12 972.59 0.45 974.04

13 972.84 0.45 973.29

14 973.08 0.45 974.53

15 973.32 0.25 973.57

16 973.44 N/A 974.44

17 973.16 0.25 974.41

18 971.87 0.25 973.12

19 970.32 0.25 971.57

20 968.79 0.25 970.04

21 967.22 0.25 968.47

22 965.67 0.25 966.92

23 963.69 0.25 964.94

24 967.02 0.40 968.42

25 967.46 0.40 968.86

26 967.76 0.40 969.16

27 968.06 0.25 969.31

28 968.54 0.25 969.79

29 969.91 0.25 971.16

30 971.79 0.25 973.04

31 973.38 0.25 974.63

32 975.26 0.20 976.46

33 974.66 0.20 975.86

34 973.59 0.20 974.79

35 972.06 0.20 973.26

36 970.22 0.20 971.42

37 962.91 N/A 963.91

38 962.01 N/A 963.01

39 960.50 N/A 961.50

40 959.06 N/A 960.06

41 957.63 N/A 958.63

42 956.79 N/A 957.79

43 956.42 N/A 957.42

44 954.61 N/A 955.61

45 954.44 N/A 955.44

46 953.66 N/A 954.66

MLO TABLE

LOT # LOW POINT
ELEVATAION

SWALE 100
YR DEPTH (FT)

MLO
ELEVATION

47 953.38 N/A 954.38

48 953.37 N/A 954.37

49 953.37 N/A 954.37

50 954.64 N/A 955.64

51 954.39 N/A 955.39

52 952.36 N/A 953.36

53 952.23 N/A 953.23

54 952.23 N/A 953.23

55 949.89 N/A 950.89

56 959.71 N/A 960.71

57 964.46 N/A 965.46

58 966.06 N/A 967.06

59 967.42 N/A 968.42

60 968.88 0.40 970.28

61 968.43 0.40 969.83

62 967.98 0.40 969.38

63 967.53 0.40 968.93

64 966.98 0.40 968.38

65 966.43 0.40 967.83

66 965.87 0.40 967.27

67 965.30 0.40 966.70

68 964.69 0.40 966.09

69 964.24 0.40 965.64

70 964.24 0.25 965.49

71 964.99 0.25 966.24

72 966.53 0.25 967.75

73 968.08 0.25 969.33

74 972.19 N/A 973.19

75 969.64 0.25 970.89

76 969.62 N/A 970.62

77 967.96 N/A 968.96

78 965.95 N/A 966.95

79 964.07 N/A 965.07

80 962.20 N/A 963.20

81 960.58 N/A 961.58

82 959.89 0.45 961.34

83 959.89 0.45 961.34

84 960.12 N/A 961.12

85 960.56 N/A 961.56

86 960.96 N/A 961.96

87 961.35 N/A 962.35

88 961.73 N/A 962.73

89 962.21 N/A 963.21

90 962.74 N/A 963.74

91 963.40 N/A 964.40

92 964.20 N/A 965.20

4            CITY TECH REVIEW COMMENTS (2-16-22 MTG.)            ACD                       2-22-2022

INTAKE/CULVERT TO BE INSTALLED
UPSTREAM OF PROPOSED SIDEWALK
ACCESS TO OUTLOT 1.  DESIGN TO
ACCOMODATE 10 YEAR STORM,
OVERFLOW TO UNION RD.  OUTLET
END OF CULVERT AND RECEIVING
SWALE TO BE DESIGNED DURING
FINAL SUBDIVISION DESIGN.

35

Item 4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WYNNEWOOD DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 1ST ST./HWY 57

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. UNION RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: MARK J AND CYNTHIA S LUCHTENBURG UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: ANN L AND BRADLEY R PIERSCHBACHER UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: WATERLOO MSA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: LINDA S OSBORN UNPLATTED W  NE   12 NE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: AUTUMN RIDGE STORM WATER DRAINAGE ASSOCIATION  TRACT A AUTUMN RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1/2 NE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: B.N.K.D., INC. PARCEL "C"  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN RIDGE 5TH ADDITION  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDSTONE 3RD ADDITION  ZONED R-1SU

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: SAMUEL R RUNYAN  UNPLATTED ZONED C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDSTONE 1ST ADDITION  ZONED R-1SU

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: B.N.K.D., INC. PT. OF PARCEL "B"  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE PARCEL "B" DOC. NO. 2005-20714



SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD
SD

SD

SD
SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SDSD

SDSD

SDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSD

E
E

G

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

SD SD

SD SDW W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

WW WW WW WW WW WW WW

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD
SD

SD

SD
SD

SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD SD

SDSD

SDSD

SDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSDSD

E
E

G

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E E

G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G G

SD SD

SD SDW W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

WW WW WW WW WW WW WW

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

WYNNEWOOD DR.970
970 971 972

969

975

971

972

973

974975

973

974

964

StS
StS

StS
StS

StS
StS

StS

St
S

St
S

20' BUILDING SETBACK (TYP.)

10' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP.)

20
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K
 (

TY
P

.)

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
(T

Y
P

.)

35' DRAINAGE EASEMENT35' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 &
 U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
(T

Y
P

.)
/2

0'
 P

E
R

IM
E

TE
R

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

30
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
(T

Y
P

.)

20
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K
 (

TY
P

.)

30
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

20
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 &
 U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
(T

Y
P

.)
/2

0'
 P

E
R

IM
E

TE
R

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

10' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP.)

86
.9

3'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
82

.0
5'

109.93'

85
.9

8'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
72

.4
0'

82
.9

4'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
63

.6
2'

110.21'

110.83'

112.59'

113.12'

112.66'

112.20'

111.75'

111.29'

51.00' 51.00' 48.50' 48.50' 57.00' 57.00' 62.00'
57.00' 46.00' 51.00' 62.00' 62.00' 91.21'

101.54' 51.00' 51.00' 48.50' 48.50' 57.00' 57.00' 62.00'
57.00'

110.56' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 56.50' 56.50' 54.75' 54.75' 45.00' 45.00' 45.67' 60.09'

46.01' 51.04' 62.07' 62.05' 112.88'

13
7.

00
'

75
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
82

.5
3'

139.78'

109.93'

99.09'

99.53'

12
8.

24
'

13
7.

00
'

13
6.

71
'

13
5.

66
'

13
3.

67
'

13
0.

80
'

49.57'

16
.23

'16.81'
16

.58
'16.40'

16
.5

8'

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San San
SanSanSanSanSanSanSanSan

WYNNEWOOD DR.

R10.5' R10
.5'

R10
.5'

R10.5'

R10
.5'

R10.5'

R
2970.3'

R
3030.3'

R
4030.3'

30' BUILDING SETBACK

20' DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP.)/20' PERIMETER SETBACK

B
R

A
E

B
U

R
N

 D
R

IV
E

A
R

O
N

IA
 D

R
IV

E

94.00' 89.00'

83.50' 78.50'

13
7.

00
'

60.00'

R10.5' R10
.5'

12
6.

51
'

12
6.

51
'

16.49'16
.49

'

SanSanSanSan

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

SanSan

280.32' (282.97')
S89°26'25"E (S89°49'33"W)

39
2.

08
' (

39
1.

95
')

S
0°

14
'4

4"
E

 (
N

01
°0

4'
57

"W
)

987.24' (987.24')
S89°19'46"E (S89°49'11"W)

12
5.

76
' (

12
5.

76
')

S
9°

17
'0

3"
E

 (
N

10
°0

7'
36

"W
)

11
69

.2
6'

N
0°

11
'0

8"
E

 (
N

0°
40

'1
2"

w
)

33
.4

9'
S

0°
11

'0
8"

W

20' D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 &

 U
TILITY E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T (TYP
.)/

20' P
E

R
IM

E
TE

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

10
' E

LE
C

TR
IC

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

20' PERIMETER SETBACK 20' PERIMETER SETBACK

30' BUILDING SETBACK

20' DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP.)/20' PERIMETER SETBACK

San

LOT 1LOT 2LOT 3LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6LOT 7LOT 8LOT 9LOT 10LOT 11LOT 12LOT 13LOT 14LOT 15

LOT 16

LOT 17

LOT 18

LOT 19

LOT 20

LOT 21

LOT 22

LOT 23LOT 24

LOT 25

LOT 26

LOT 27

LOT 28

LOT 29

LOT 30

LOT 31

TRACT "A"

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

78
6\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
78

6 
- P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
 4

 a
nd

 5
 o

f 5
.d

wg
 - 

4 
of

 6
 P

re
lim

 P
la

t -
  0

2-
23

-2
2 

- 3
:5

9p
m

 - 
AC

D2
76

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
4  OF 6

5786

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
PRELIMINARY PLAT -

UTILITIES AND EASEMENTS
NCB

SJC

MCH

05-20-20

05-18-20

PRELIMINARY PLAT - AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND
ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

DATE PREPARED:5/20/20

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

MATCH LINE SEE SHEET 5 OF 5

1 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 09-08-2020

2 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 10-26-2020

3 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 11-12-2020

4            CITY TECH REVIEW COMMENTS (2-16-22 MTG.)            ACD                       2-22-2022

36

Item 4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 1ST ST./HWY 57

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: MARK J AND CYNTHIA S LUCHTENBURG UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: ANN L AND BRADLEY R PIERSCHBACHER UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: WATERLOO MSA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: LINDA S OSBORN UNPLATTED W  NE   12 NE   14ZONED A-1



SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SDSDSDSDSDSD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SDSDSDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)

E E E E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E E E E E E

E
E

E
E

E

G G G G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G G G G G G
G

G

G
G

G
G

G

W
W

W
W

W
W

E
E

E
E

E
E

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

W W

W W

WW

WW

W W

W W

W W W WW W

W W W W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W W W W W W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

San(D)

San(D)

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD

SDSDSDSDSDSD
SD

SD
SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SDSDSDSD

SD
SD

SD
SD SD SD SD SD SD

SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)

E E E E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E E E E E E

E
E

E
E

E

G G G G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G G G G G G
G

G

G
G

G
G

G

W
W

W
W

W
W

E
E

E
E

E
E

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

W W

W W

WW

WW

W W

W W

W W W WW W

W W W W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W W W W W W

W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

San(D)

San(D)

95
2

95
1

95
0

94
7

94
8

94
6

CHANNEL DR.

428.11'

(4
3.

13
')

969

965 96
0

960 96
4 965

97
0

956

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

St
S

StS
StS

StS
StS

StS
StS

StS

10.00'

10.00'

10.00'

10.00'

10.00'10.00'

10
.0

0'
10

.0
0'

20'  STORM AND
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20' STORM

AND

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20'  STORM AND
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K
 (

TY
P

.)

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
(T

Y
P

.)

30
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K
 (

TY
P

.)

10
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
(T

Y
P

.)

20
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K
 (

TY
P

.)

30
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

20
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 &
 U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
(T

Y
P

.)
/2

0'
 P

E
R

IM
E

TE
R

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

20' BUILDING SETBACK (TYP.)

10' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP.)

30' BUILDING SETBACK (TYP.)

20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT (TYP.)

20' DRAINAGE EASEMENT (TYP.)

30' BUILDING SETBACK (TYP.)

10' UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP.)

20' BUILDING SETBACK (TYP.)

30' BUILDING SETBACK (TYP.)

20' DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT (TYP.)

ZO
N

E
 A

E

85
.5

5'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

85
.5

5'

109.93'

74
.3

6'
60

.0
0'

60
.0

0'
60

.0
0'

75
.3

3'

64
.4

2'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.7
5'

74
.5

0'

62.01' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 62.00' 56.50' 56.50' 54.75' 54.75' 45.00' 45.00' 45.63' 62.12'

120.56'

120.02'

119.47'

118.95'

107.57'
62.49'

62.49'
62.49'

62.49'
62.49'

62.49'
56.88'

56.68' 54.86' 54.78' 45.00' 45.00' 45.63' 44.06'

21
.6

8'
62

.0
0'

72
.6

8'

75
.6

4'
62

.7
5'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

73
.9

7'

13
4.

49
'

150.02'

150.02'

150.02'

40
.7

0'
62

.0
0'

144.89'

19
3.

11
'

13
5.

50
'

13
4.

97
'

18
5.

91
'

17
8.

71
'

13
4.

44
'

17
1.

50
'

13
3.

90
'

16
4.

30
'

13
3.

37
'

15
7.

10
'

13
2.

84
'

15
0.

54
'

13
2.

36
'

14
3.

97
'

13
1.

87
'

14
1.

60
'

13
1.

42
'

14
2.

12
'

13
0.

87
'

14
2.

44
'

13
0.

55
'

13
0.

17
'

14
2.

82
'

14
3.

27
'

13
1.

55
'

62
.5

3'
62

.0
0'

62
.0

0'
62

.0
0'

12
3.

51
'

12
2.

99
'

99.62'

31
.73

'

16
.30

'

17.12'

San

San

San

SanSanSanSan
San

San
San

San
San

San
San

San
San

San
San

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

San

R10.5' R10
.5'

R80.0'

R20.0'

R
3030.3'

R
3970.3'

R
2030.2'

R
1970.2'

R
1970.2'

R
2030.17'

22
1.

24
'

58.52'

44.03'

A
R

O
N

IA
 D

R
IV

E

28
0.

60
' (

27
9.

96
')

S
0°

11
'3

0"
E

 (
N

01
°0

3'
21

"W
)

26
1.

94
'

S
7°

00
'3

7"
W

 (
N

06
°0

9'
47

"E
)

102.55' (102.54')

S74°41'46"W

(N73°50'56"E)

282.86' (282.83')N84°33'07"W (S85'23'57"E)

90.01' (90.00')
N89°19'55"W
(N89°49'15"E)

341.43' (341.40')

S82°00'02"W (N81°09'12"E)

456.35' (456.35')

S83°31'04"W (N82°40'14"E)

425.29'
S88°48'20"E

11
7.

15
'

N
0°

11
'0

8"
E

10
' E

LE
C

TR
IC

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

30
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

20
' D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 &
 U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T 
(T

Y
P

.)
/2

0'
 P

E
R

IM
E

TE
R

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

20
' U

TI
LI

TY
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T/
20

' P
E

R
IM

E
TE

R
 S

E
TB

A
C

K

EX
IS

TI
NG

 O
.H

. E
LE

C.
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

San
San

San
San

Sa
n

Sa
n

Sa
n

LOT 32

LOT 33

LOT 34

LOT 35

LOT 36

LOT 37 LOT 38 LOT 39

LOT 40
LOT 41

LOT 42
LOT 43

LOT 44
LOT 45

LOT 46
LOT 47

LOT 48
LOT 49 LOT 50 LOT 51 LOT 52 LOT 53 LOT 54 LOT 55

LOT 56

LOT 57

LOT 58

LOT 59

LOT 60LOT 61LOT 62LOT 63LOT 64LOT 65LOT 66LOT 67LOT 68LOT 69LOT 70LOT 71LOT 72LOT 73

LOT 74

LOT 75

LOT 76

LOT 77

LOT 78

LOT 92LOT 91LOT 90LOT 89LOT 88LOT 87LOT 86LOT 85LOT 84LOT 83LOT 82LOT 81LOT 80

LOT 79

TRACT "A"

OUTLOT - 1
1.16 ACRES

WITHIN DASHED
BOUNDARY

20.00' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20.00' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

20.00' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT20.00'

DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20.00' DRAINAGE EASEMENT

77.40' 62.22' 61.16'
62.05'

62.01'
51.00'

51.00'
51.00' 51.00'

51.00'
51.00'

51.00'

51.01'
59.23' 59.41' 44.67' 44.65' 44.65' 44.65' 35.94'

12
6.

92
'

16
9.

17
'

77.91'
68.30'

72.97'
62.01'

62.01'
51.00'

51.00'
51.02'

51.02'
51.02'

51.02'
51.02'

51.02'
46.31'

4.54'

51.00' 34.46'

10.23'

44.81' 44.81'
44.81'

138.20'

15
1.

05
'

14
7.

31
'

14
3.

58
'

13
9.

62
'

13
7.

59
'136.54'

137.58'

139.63'

141.02'

142.41'

143.80'

145.18'

146.28'

146.31'

146.35'

146.40'

148.77'

153.13'

15
9.

57
'

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100'50' 150'

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

78
6\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
78

6 
- P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
 4

 a
nd

 5
 o

f 5
.d

wg
 - 

5 
of

 6
 P

re
lim

 P
la

t -
  0

2-
23

-2
2 

- 3
:5

9p
m

 - 
AC

D2
76

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
5  OF 6

5786

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
PRELIMINARY PLAT -

UTILITIES AND EASEMENTS
NCB

SJC

MCH

05-20-20

05-18-20

PRELIMINARY PLAT - AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND
ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

DATE PREPARED:5/20/20

N

MATCH LINE SEE SHEET 4 OF 6

1 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 09-08-2020

0.
38

'

2 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 10-26-2020

3 ADDRESS CITY COMMENTS SJC 11-12-2020

4            CITY TECH REVIEW COMMENTS (2-16-22 MTG.)            ACD                       2-22-2022

37

Item 4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. UNION RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: AUTUMN RIDGE STORM WATER DRAINAGE ASSOCIATION  TRACT A AUTUMN RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E1/2 NE1/4 SEC. 9-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: B.N.K.D., INC. PARCEL "C"  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN RIDGE 5TH ADDITION  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: B.N.K.D., INC. PT. OF PARCEL "B"  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE PARCEL "B" DOC. NO. 2005-20714

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: LINDA S OSBORN UNPLATTED W  NE   12 NE   14ZONED A-1



W
(D

)
W

(D
)

W
(D

)
W

(D
)

San(D)

OH EOH EOH EOH EOH E

OH E
OH E

OH E
OH E

OH E
OH E

OH E
OH E

OH E
OH E

OH E
OH E

OH E
OH E

LUCHTENBURG, MARK J

PIERSCHBACHER, ANN L

WATERLOO MSA

LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

St
S(

D)

St
S(

D)

St
S(

D)

95
2 95

1

95
0

94
7

94
8

94
6

A
R

O
N

IA
 D

R
IV

E

WYNNEWOOD DR.

CHANNEL DR.

280.32' (282.97')
S89°26'25"E (S89°49'33"W)

39
2.

08
' (

39
1.

95
')

S
0°

14
'4

4"
E

 (
N

01
°0

4'
57

"W
)

987.24' (987.24')
S89°19'46"E (S89°49'11"W)

12
5.

76
' (

12
5.

76
')

S
9°

17
'0

3"
E

 (
N

10
°0

7'
36

"W
)

28
0.

60
' (

27
9.

96
')

S
0°

11
'3

0"
E

 (
N

01
°0

3'
21

"W
)

26
1.

94
'

S
7°

00
'3

7"
W

 (
N

06
°0

9'
47

"E
)

102.55' (102.54')

S74°41'46"W

(N73°50'56"E)

282.86' (282.83')N84°33'07"W (S85'23'57"E)

90.01' (90.00')
N89°19'55"W
(N89°49'15"E)

341.43' (341.40')

S82°00'02"W (N81°09'12"E)

456.35' (456.35')

S83°31'04"W (N82°40'14"E)

11
69

.2
6'

N
0°

11
'0

8"
E

 (
N

0°
40

'1
2"

w
)

1320.04' (1319.92')
S89°19'47"E (N89°49'23"E)

425.29'
S88°48'20"E

428.11'

(4
3.

13
')

33
.4

9'
S

0°
11

'0
8"

W
11

7.
15

'
N

0°
11

'0
8"

E

B
R

A
E

B
U

R
N

 D
R

IV
E

LOT 1LOT 2LOT 3

LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6LOT 7LOT 8LOT 9LOT 10LOT 11LOT 12LOT 13LOT 14LOT 15

LOT 16

LOT 17

LOT 18

LOT 19

LOT 20

LOT 21

LOT 22

LOT 23LOT 24

LOT 25

LOT 26

LOT 27

LOT 28

LOT 29

LOT 30

LOT 31

LOT 32

LOT 33

LOT 34

LOT 35

LOT 36

LOT 38
LOT 39 LOT 40 LOT 41

LOT 42
LOT 43

LOT 44
LOT 45

LOT 46
LOT 47

LOT 48
LOT 49

LOT 50 LOT 51 LOT 52 LOT 53 LOT 54 LOT 55

LOT 56

LOT 57

LOT 58

LOT 59

LOT 60LOT 61LOT 62LOT 63LOT 64LOT 65LOT 66LOT 67LOT 68LOT 69LOT 70LOT 71LOT 72LOT 73

LOT 74

LOT 75

LOT 76

LOT 77

LOT 78

LOT 92LOT 91LOT 90LOT 89LOT 88LOT 87LOT 86LOT 85LOT 84LOT 83LOT 82LOT 81LOT 80LOT 79

LOT 37

OUTLOT - 1

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
5106 Nordic Drive

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph 319-266-0258
www.cgaconsultants.com

SHEET NO.

DRAWN:
CHECKED:

DATE:
DATE:

APPROVED: DATE:

PROJECT NO.DESIGNED: DATE:REVISIONNO. DATEBY DATEBYREVISIONNO.

J:
\5

78
6\

dw
gs

\S
ur

ve
y\

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y 

Pl
at

\5
78

6 
- P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
Pl

at
 6

 o
f 6

.d
wg

 - 
6 

of
 6

 P
re

lim
 P

la
t -

  0
2-

23
-2

2 
- 3

:5
9p

m
 - 

AC
D2

76

CGA AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
6 OF 6

5786

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
PRELIMINARY PLAT - HOUSE &

DRIVEWAY FOOTPRINT
NCB

SJC

ACD

10-23-20

05-18-20

N

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

160'80' 240'

EX. 20' SANITARY
SEWER EASEMENT

31.00' ROADWAY (TYP.)

EX. 20' STORM
SEWER EASEMENT

EX. 20' STORM
SEWER EASEMENT

EX. WALK (TYP.)

31.00' ROADWAY (TYP.)

60' R.O.W. (TYP.)

60' R.O.W. (TYP.)

EX. TREE LINE

EX. TREE LINE

NOTES:
1. ALL DRIVEWAY LOCATIONS ARE BASED OFF HOUSING

PRODUCTS PROVIDED BY THE DEVELOPER, BUT ARE
SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

2. ONE UNIT BI-ATTACHED DWELLINGS ARE SUBJECT TO
CHANGE AND SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES
ONLY.

3. SINGLE FAMILY FOOTPRINTS NOT SHOWN DUE TO
VARIABILITY IN THIRD PARTY DESIGNS, TYPICAL
DRIVEWAY LOCATIONS ARE SHOWN

FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARY
(500 YEAR)

FLOODWAY BOUNDARY
(100 YEAR)

4' WALK (TYP.)

NW CORNER OF THE EAST 12 OF THE
NORTHEAST 14 SEC. 9, T89N, R14W.

FOUND MAG NAIL IN ASPHALT.

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

FOUND 12" IRON PIN WITH
WHITE PLASTIC CAP NO. 7034

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

NE CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 14
SEC. 9, T89N, R14W. FOUND MAG
SPIKE WITH WASHER.

SW CORNER PARCEL "C"
FOUND 5 8" IRON PIN WITH

ORANGE PLASTIC CAP NO. 12088,
1.4'± WEST OF LINE.

NW CORNER LOT 23
FOUND 12" IRON PIN

WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 21428

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 2697

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 2697

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC

CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC
CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC

CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN
WITH YELLOW PLASTIC

CAP NO. 21248

FOUND 12" IRON PIN

0.
38

'
EXTEND SIDEWALK TO
PADDINGTON DRIVE.

PRELIMINARY PLAT - AUTUMN RIDGE NINTH AND
ELEVENTH ADDITIONS
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SIDEWALK RAMP LOCATIONS TO
BE ADJUSTED TO ALTERNATE
LOCATIONS AT LOT OWNER'S
EXPENSE  IF DRIVEWAYS ON

PROPOSED HOUSE CONFLICT
WITH PROPOSED SIDEWALK

RAMPS SHOWN

1            CITY TECH REVIEW COMMENTS (2-16-22 MTG.)            ACD                       2-22-2022

38

Item 4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: MARK J AND CYNTHIA S LUCHTENBURG UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: ANN L AND BRADLEY R PIERSCHBACHER UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: WATERLOO MSA LIMITED PARTNERSHIP UNPLATTED  ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: LINDA S OSBORN UNPLATTED W  NE   12 NE   14ZONED A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: AUTUMN RIDGE STORM WATER DRAINAGE ASSOCIATION  TRACT A AUTUMN RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WYNNEWOOD DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 1ST ST./HWY 57

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. UNION RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTUMN RIDGE 5TH ADDITION  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 14

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 13

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDSTONE 3RD ADDITION  ZONED R-1SU

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: SAMUEL R RUNYAN  UNPLATTED ZONED C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDSTONE 1ST ADDITION  ZONED R-1SU

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER: B.N.K.D., INC. PT. OF PARCEL "B"  ZONED RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE PARCEL "B" DOC. NO. 2005-20714



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

  Luke Andreasen, PE, Principal Engineer 

 DATE: March 3, 2022 

 SUBJECT: RP District Site Plan for the Cove at Spruce Hills Townhomes (SP21-013) 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
RP Site Plan of the Cove at Spruce Hills Townhomes  

PETITIONER: Brian Wingert (Developer); The Cove at Spruce Hills LLC (Owner);  
Snyder & Associates, INC. (Engineer)  
 

LOCATION: 
 

The 7-acre property is located north of Greenhill Road and east of Spruce 
Hills Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The developer is proposing to build 30, 2-story townhome units within six buildings (4 five-unit 
townhome buildings, one four-unit townhome building, and one six-unit townhome building) on 
the last remaining undeveloped area of Heritage Hills Estates 2nd Addition subdivision. The 
proposed development will be on Tract F of Heritage Hills Estates 2nd Addition subdivision, 
which was reserved for multi-family development as per the approved RP Master Plan for the 
area. The proposed six buildings will be accessed through the extension of Spruce Hill Drive to 
the east and Spruce Creek Drive running north-south, both of which would be private streets. As 
per the subdivision code, a tract can only be developed if the tract area is re-platted to create a 
developable parcel. It is anticipated that a minor plat will be forwarded to the Commission at the 
next meeting to establish the new lot for development. City staff notes that the proposed site 
plan cannot be approved before approval of the minor plat, but it is forwarded for introduction 
and discussion at this time. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the summer of 2004, the entire property of 19.12 acres (presently known as “Heritage Hills 
Estates Second Addition Subdivision”) was rezoned to RP, Planned Residence District, for the 
construction of one and two-family residences, multifamily dwellings, and condominiums for a 
density not to exceed 4.47 dwelling units per acre. In the winter of 2014, the RP plan (see below 
and attached) was amended to change the centralized area of multi-family dwellings to single-
family dwellings. This RP Master Plan reflected the proposed final subdivision plat and also 
established other proposed uses on the remaining acreage (i.e. multi-family and a commercial 
area). With the amendment, it was stated that the multifamily area will have a density ratio of no 

39

Item 5.



more than 6.30 units per acre. Also, a clause stating that the commercial area highlighted may 
be converted to multifamily at a later date if the use proves to not be viable. 

 
The preliminary plat for the Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition was approved by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on June 24, 2015 and the City Council on July 6, 2015.  
 
In 2017, a final plat was approved, included the development of 17 lots, Tract B, C, D, Melendy 
Lane (Tract A), expansion of Spruce Hills Drive eastward and expansion of Prairie Parkway 
northward.  
 
Last year, a site plan for Lot 17 of Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition was approved for the 
construction of three duplex residential structures, which was consistent with RP Plan. Now the 
last parcel, Tract F, is proposed for development. If the subject townhome project is approved 
and constructed on Tract F of Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition, the subdivision will be 
fully built out.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Zoning: 
As noted above, the subject property is zoned RP, Planned Residential District and a portion of 
the property is also in the Highway Corridor and Greenbelt Overlay District. RP Districts are 
established with a comprehensive development plan. The RP District is a “mixed-use” type of 
zoning classification that allows the establishment of a mixture of residential types as well as 
some commercial uses to create a more diverse neighborhood. The proposed site plan of multi-
unit residential townhomes matches the RP master plan for the area.  
 

40

Item 5.



Land Use and Density: 
As stated above, the subject parcel, Tract F, has an allowed residential density of no more than 
6.30 units per acre or 44 dwelling units. The proposal of 30 residential townhome units within six 
multi-unit buildings meets both the land use and density requirements as specified in the 
development procedures agreement, which was developed with the RP Master plan for the 
area. 
 
Proposed Layout of the Development: 
The RP Planned Residence District provides flexibility in establishing lot sizes, setbacks and 
general layout of the development, which then must be approved through the site plan review 
process.  In this case, the development is proposed as a condominium regime with 30 units on 
one lot. All the streets and infrastructure will be private and maintained by a Homeowner’s 
Association. The site layout is arranged with garages and pedestrian entries accessed from the 
private streets, but with attractive finished façades that face Greenhill Road and neighboring 
properties with doors leading to rear porches/patios.  This design gives the impression of two 
front facades – one facing the private streets and one that faces the public street and 
neighboring properties.  
 
The proposed site plan illustrates 25 foot front yard setbacks from the private street easement 
for all buildings along the Spruce Hills Drive and Spruce Creek Drive. The proposed six 
buildings are spaced at least 20 feet apart, which provides adequate open space between the 
buildings for privacy and provides breaks to reduce the monotony of facades.  The buildings will 
be setback at least 30 feet from the lot line along Prairie Parkway to be consistent with the 
approved final plat of Heritage Hills Estates Second Addition and will also meet the 30-foot 
required perimeter setback for the RP district. All the minimum required setbacks are provided. 
 
All infrastructure will be private, so are delineated with private easements on the site plan and 
will also be recorded with the plat.  A 45-foot easement will be established for the private streets 
(Spruce Hills Drive and Spruce Creek Drive), which will narrow down from the 60-foot public 
street right-of-way of Spruce Hills Drive as it enters the development.  An easement for public 
access and emergency vehicle access will need to be established over the private streets with 
the plat. Other private easements will be delineated for the private storm sewer and sanitary 
sewer. CFU will require an easement for the water main that will be extended to serve this 
development.   A 50-foot public utility easement has already been established along E. Greenhill 
Road. In addition, the proposed site plan shows the 10-foot public utility easements in 
appropriate locations.  
 
Site Access: 
The proposed development will be accessed through private streets, which will include the 
easterly extension of the Spruce Hills Drive to its intersection with another private street, Spruce 
Creek Drive, which runs north-south. The private streets are proposed to be 24 feet in width. Six 
parking stalls perpendicular to the roadway have also been included along Spruce Creek Drive 
to facilitate guest parking on the site, since there will not be much room for on-street parking 
with the multiple driveways and narrow street width. The proposed site plan includes sidewalks 
along the edge of the private streets to ensure pedestrian movements throughout the 
development. These will need to meet ADA requirements. Sidewalks meeting City standards will 
be required along all public street frontages, including Spruce Hills Drive, Melendy Lane, and 
Prairie Parkway.  
 
 

41

Item 5.



City staff notes that private streets are discouraged as per the city’s subdivision code for the 
following reasons:  

 Private streets are often proposed in order to save space and cost with pavement depths 
and rights-of-way and street widths that do not meet City street standards.  As a 
consequence, the City does not accept private streets as public improvements and all 
future maintenance cost falls to future owners/residents of the development, which can 
be a significant financial burden particularly once the pavement needs to replaced or 
reconstructed. If the homeowners association (HOA) hasn’t been set up to collect enough 
funds over time for future maintenance costs, these areas may experience disinvestment 
in the future and homeowners often turn to the City for assistance when that occurs.  

 Secondly, since the private streets are not built to City standards and dedicated to the 
City as public streets, the property owners or HOA will be responsible for services, such 
as garbage pick-up and snow removal.   
 

Staff has noted these issues to the developer and indicated that the deed of dedication and 
owners declaration of covenants will need to be carefully drafted to make sure future buyers are 
aware of these costs and responsibilities.  These documents will be reviewed with the minor 
plat.  Provided these issues are clearly addressed in the subdivision documents, staff is 
accepting of the private streets in this particular case due to the unique site constraints. The 
parcel is bounded by wetlands and floodplain to the north and east and no street connection will 
be allowed to Greenhill Road, which is an arterial street.  As a consequence the streets 
proposed will be dead end streets that will only serve this development and will not function for 
overall neighborhood traffic circulation. The developers are responding to the market for 
townhomes in the community.  With the proposal for townhomes instead of a larger multi-family 
building that might take up less land area, it is more challenging to provide a connected street 
layout, such as a loop street.    
 
As per code, cul-de-sacs or dead-end streets are also discouraged, but if allowed they must not 
exceed 600 feet in length and must be designed to meet Fire Code regulations for emergency 
vehicle access and turn around.  The City’s Fire Division has reviewed the proposed 
development and finds it acceptable.  
 
Landscaping: 
HCG Highway Corridor and Greenbelt Overlay Zoning District require the incorporation of 
landscaping standards to continue the orderly development of properties located within the HCG 
overlay district. Minimum required landscape area shall be 65 percent of the lot exclusive of 
buildings and the yard area be planted with combinations of trees and shrubs to achieve a 
minimum of 0.05 points per square foot of landscaped area. Additionally, a minimum of 0.75 
points per linear foot of street frontage must be achieved in the Right-of-way area to meet street 
tree planting points. And the inclusion of screening along the lot line adjacent to the boundary to 
screen the development from major arterial roads. Following is the table that summarizes 
required and proposed landscaping improvements as per code. 
 

Site Landscaping 

Overall Lot area 302.692 sq. ft. 

Total area of Building footprint on lot  31,350 sq. ft. 

Total area exclusive of building footprint 271,342 sq. ft. 

Min. landscaping points required  8,819 points (271,342 * 0.05)  

Landscaping points proposed  8,820 points (4,480 points – overstory trees, 

42

Item 5.



2400 points – evergreen trees, 1,020 points  – 
understory trees, and 920 points – shrubs) 

Street Tree Planting 

Min, street tree planting points required 0.75 points per linear foot of street frontage 

Required street tree planting points 447.75 points (597 ft * 0.75 points) 

Street tree planting points proposed 480 points (6 trees) 

Parking lot screening (provided in the proposed site plan) 

 
Proposed landscaping plan meets city standards. A detailed landscaping plan has been 
attached for reference in the packet.  
 
Building Elevations: 
The proposed site plan is to include six townhome buildings; four containing five units; one four-
unit building, and one six-unit building. All the townhomes look identical to one another. The rear 
elevation snapshot below will be the one that will be visible from peripheral areas of the site, 
including from Greenhill Road, and the front elevation snapshot below will be visible from the 
private drives in the development. Building materials include the use of cultured stone (minimal), 
three shades of lap siding, three shades of wood shakes and asphalt roofing shingles. The 
shades of wood shakes and lap sidings are nicely balanced and complement each other. 
 

 
 
Implications for future residents: 
The proposed project to include multi-family residential development is all on private drives 
meaning that the city will not undertake any maintenance of private drives or sidewalks. Also city 
will not provide services, such as snow removal and garbage pick-up for the area. The cost of 
maintenance of streets, sidewalks, garbage removal and snow removal will be all on a 
homeowner’s association, which will be established at the time of development. These items of 

43

Item 5.



responsibility must be stated in the Owner’s declaration of covenants and the deed of 
dedication.    
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, has the following comments 
on the proposed site plan. All basic utility services are available to the site. The developer is 
responsible for the construction of a properly sized, privately owned, and maintained water 
system from the existing 12-inch water main at the east end of Spruce Hills Drive. Water main 
sizing and fire hydrant and valve placement locations will need to be modified. This will be done 
as a part of the construction plan review. The developer is currently working with CFU personnel 
to address the comments. CFU also notes that the trees and other landscaping features 
proposed on the landscaping plan are within the utility easement area. And removal and 
replacement of the trees or any other landscaping located within these areas may be disturbed 
by utility maintenance, repair, or replacement is the responsibility of the property owner. 
 

The City Engineering Division staff members have reviewed the plans and have found them 
acceptable. Since the roads, storm sewer, sanitary sewer, and most of the sidewalks are private 
infrastructure, engineering staff has minimal input on the construction plans. Due to the 
proximity of the project site to floodplain, it was agreed that the detention was designed for 
stormwater runoff quality control purposes only and not designed for full storage. The City will 
not be responsible for any maintenance on the private infrastructure including snow removal. 
The sidewalks that are in the public right-of-way must meet city standards including ADA 
compliance. The landowner will be responsible for clearing snow and maintaining the public 
sidewalk adjacent to the property, which is the same for all public sidewalks throughout the city.  
 
Staff notes that the proposed project site needs to be platted to execute the proposed site plan, 
as currently the project site is termed as “Tract F” of Heritage Hills Estates 2nd addition 
subdivision. As per subdivision code, any tracts can only be developed if the tract area is re-
platted to create a developable parcel. As noted above, the applicant is preparing a Minor Plat 
and staff anticipates that the minor plat will be on agenda for next Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting for review, provided that applicant is able to resolve all comments received 
from the tech review meeting. Once the minor plat is approved, the site plan can be approved 
concurrently. City staff is working with the applicant on the deed of dedication/owner’s 
statements, which outlines number of things that are being shared between future residents and 
state maintenance responsibility of common shared areas, including the private streets.   
 
A courtesy notice informing about proposed site plan development to surrounding residents 
within 200 feet of the proposed project site was sent out on March 1st, 2022.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
The introduction of this site plan is for discussion and public comment. City staff recommends 
continuing the discussion to the next Planning and Zoning meeting. Staff notes that the site plan 
cannot be approved prior to approval of the minor plat.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
& 
Discussion  
3/9/2022 

 

 

44

Item 5.



Pinnacle Prairie Trail

Greenhill Trail

â

â

Bluegrass Ct

Prairie Pkwy

Heritage Rd

Stanwood Dr

Spruce Hills Dr

Ea
stp

ark
 Rd

Melendy Ln
Ste

wa
rt L

n

Maucker Rd

Bluegrass Cir

E Greenhill Rd

Prairie Pkwy

R-2

R-2

RP

MU

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
March 9, 2022

R-P Site Plan Review for
the Cove at Spruce Hills Townhomes 
(SP21-013)

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

45

Item 5.



SITE PLAN
FOR

THE COVE AT SPRUCE HILLS TOWNHOMES
MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

VICINITY MAP

PROJECT LOCATION

SCALE 1"=500'

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

N
A

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
10

0

121.0880.01

C100

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
TI

TL
E 

SH
EE

T
C

ED
A

R
 F

A
LL

S,
 IA

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 O
W

N
ER

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
  

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

  

JW
M

 J
FS  

1 2  

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
TS

H
.d

w
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, T

IT
LE

 S
H

EE
T,

 2
02

2/
02

/1
5,

 1
:4

3 
PM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

OWNER
THE COVE AT SPRUCE HILLS LLC
201 WASHINGTON ST
CEDAR FALLS, IA 5013

DEVELOPER
BRIAN WINGERT
2021 MAIN STREET, SUITE A
CEDAR FALLS, IA

ENGINEER
SNYDER & ASSOCIATES
2727 SW SNYDER BLVD
ANKENY, IA 50023
CONTACT:  ERIC CANNON

INDEX OF SHEETS

C100 TITLE SHEET
C200 PROJECT INFORMATION
C300 DIMENSION PLAN
C400 UTILITY PLAN
C500 GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C600 PLANTING PLAN
C601 PLANTING PLAN GENERAL NOTES

46

Item 5.



NOTES

1. NOTIFY UTILITY PROVIDERS PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY CONSTRUCTION
ACTIVITIES AND COORDINATE WITH UTILITY PROVIDERS AS NECESSARY
DURING CONSTRUCTION.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING EXISTENCE, EXACT LOCATION, AND DEPTH OF ALL
UTILITIES.  PROTECT ALL UTILITY LINES AND STRUCTURES NOT SHOWN
FOR REMOVAL OR MODIFICATION.  ANY DAMAGES TO UTILITY ITEMS NOT
SHOWN FOR REMOVAL OR MODIFICATION SHALL BE REPAIRED TO THE
UTILITY OWNER'S SPECIFICATIONS AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

2. CONSTRUCTION OF ALL STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS SHALL
CONFORM TO THE URBAN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENTS AND THE SOILS REPORTS PREPARED BY OTHERS.

3. LENGTH OF UTILITIES SHOWN ON PLANS ARE DIMENSIONED FROM
CENTERLINE OF STRUCTURE TO CENTERLINE OF STRUCTURE.

4. ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL SHALL BE PROVIDED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC
CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD).  WHEN CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES
OBSTRUCT PORTIONS OF THE ROADWAY, FLAGGERS SHALL BE
PROVIDED. FLAGGERS SHALL CONFORM TO THE MUTCD IN
APPEARANCE, EQUIPMENT AND ACTIONS.

5. NOTIFY OWNER, ENGINEER,CITY OF CEDAR FALLS AND CEDAR FALLS
UTILITY AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.

6. CONSTRUCT MANHOLES AND APPURTENANCES AS WORK PROGRESSES.
BACKFILL WITH SUITABLE MATERIAL AND COMPACT TO 95% MAXIMUM
DENSITY.

7. IN THE EVENT OF A DISCREPANCY BETWEEN THE QUANTITY ESTIMATES
AND THE DETAILED PLANS, THE DETAILED PLANS SHALL GOVERN.

8. ALL FIELD TILES ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
RECONNECTED AND NOTED ACCORDINGLY ON THE AS-BUILT
DOCUMENTS.

9. DIMENSIONS, BUILDING LOCATION, UTILITIES AND GRADING OF THIS SITE
ARE BASED ON AVAILABLE INFORMATION AT THE TIME OF DESIGN.
DEVIATIONS MAY BE NECESSARY IN THE FIELD.  ANY SUCH CHANGES OR
CONFLICTS BETWEEN THIS PLAN AND FIELD CONDITIONS ARE TO BE
REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT/ENGINEER PRIOR TO STARTING
CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
LAYOUT VERIFICATION OF ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION.

10. CONTRACTOR TO LOAD AND TRANSPORT ALL MATERIALS CONSIDERED
TO BE UNDESIRABLE TO BE INCORPORATED INTO THE PROJECT TO AN
APPROVED OFF-SITE WASTE SITE.

11. CONTRACTOR TO STRIP AND STOCKPILE TOPSOIL FROM ALL AREAS TO
BE CUT OR FILLED.  RESPREAD TO MINIMUM 6" DEPTH TO FINISH
GRADES.

12. ALL PROPOSED CONTOURS AND SPOT ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE
FINISHED GRADES AND/OR TOP OF PAVING SLAB (GUTTER), UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

13. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CLEANING DIRT AND DEBRIS
FROM NEIGHBORING STREETS, DRIVEWAYS, AND SIDEWALKS CAUSED
BY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES IN A TIMELY MANNER.

14. THE ADJUSTMENT OF ANY EXISTING UTILITY APPURTENANCES TO FINAL
GRADE IS CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO THE SITE WORK.

15. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR INSTALLING EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES AS NECESSARY.  CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING ANY EXISTING EROSION CONTROL
MEASURES ON SITE AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.  GRADING AND
SOIL EROSION CONTROL CODE REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE MET BY
CONTRACTOR.  A GRADING PERMIT IS REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT.

16. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE NATURAL GAS, ELECTRICAL, TELEPHONE
AND ANY OTHER FRANCHISE UTILITY SERVICES WITH UTILITY SERVICE
PROVIDER, POLK COUNTY, AND THE OWNER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

17. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY ALL UTILITY CROSSINGS AND MAINTAIN
MINIMUM 18" VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE BETWEEN
UTILITIES. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE UTILITY ROUTING TO BUILDING
AND VERIFY CONNECTION LOCATIONS AND INVERTS PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
TRACT "F", HERITAGE HILLS ESTATES SECOND ADDITION, AN OFFICIAL PLAT IN
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

PROPERTY ADDRESS
CORNER OF SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE/PRAIRIE PARKWAY AND GREENHILL ROAD

ZONING
RP - PLANNED RESIDENTIAL

BULK REGULATIONS
25' FRONT YARD (ALONG SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE/PRAIRIE PARKWAY)
30' BACK YARD (PERIMETER SETBACK ALL OTHER SIDES)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS
PARKING REQUIRED

1 GUEST PARKING SPACE PER EVERY 5 UNITS = 6 SPACES

PARKING PROVIDED
OPEN STALLS = 6 SPACES

ADDITIONAL PARKING PROVIDED
GARAGE STALL = 60 STALLS (2 PER UNIT)
DRIVEWAY STALLS = 30 (1 PER UNIT)

TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED
96 STALLS

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

N
A

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
20

0

121.0880.01

C200

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
PR

O
JE

C
T 

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 IA
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 O

W
N

ER
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

  

JW
M

 J
FS  

1 2  

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

NOTES

1. BUILDING LINES AND CORNERS ARE FOR USE IN PREPARING CIVIL SITE
PLAN DOCUMENTS.  BUILDING CORNERS AND BUILDING LINES SHOULD
BE SPECIFICALLY  VERIFIED, AS NECESSARY, PRIOR TO DESIGN FOR
CONSTRUCTION OF ANY PROPOSED EXPANSION OR CONNECTION OF
BUILDING COMPONENTS.

2. FOR CLARITY PURPOSES, SURVEY SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE NOT SHOWN
ON THIS SURVEY, BUT ARE CONTAINED WITHIN THE DIGITAL CADD FILES.

3. FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS SURVEY, STORM SEWER, SANITARY SEWER
AND WATER MAIN LINES ARE ASSUMED TO FOLLOW A STRAIGHT LINE
FROM STRUCTURE TO STRUCTURE.

4. UTILITY SERVICE LINES TO BUILDINGS ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY.  AN
INTERNAL BUILDING INVESTIGATION, EXCAVATION AND/OR SUBSURFACE
LOCATING/DESIGNATING WOULD NEED TO BE PERFORMED TO
DETERMINE THE LOCATION OF SERVICES ENTERING THE BUILDING.

5. UNDERGROUND PIPE MATERIALS AND SIZES ARE BASED UPON VISIBLE
EVIDENCE VIEWED FROM ACCESS MANHOLES/STRUCTURES.  DUE TO
THE CONFIGURATION AND/OR CONSTRUCTION OF THE STRUCTURE, IT
MAY BE DIFFICULT TO ACCURATELY DETERMINE THE PIPE MATERIAL
AND/OR SIZE.  THE SURVEYOR WILL USE THEIR JUDGMENT AND
EXPERIENCE TO ATTEMPT TO DETERMINE, BUT COMPLETE ACCURACY
CANNOT BE GUARANTEED.

6. BOUNDARY LINES SHOWN ON THE EXISTING SITE SURVEY ARE TO
FACILITATE DESIGN OR CONCEPT NEEDS AND ENABLE CREATION OF
SAID CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. THESE LINES DO NOT CONSTITUTE A
CERTIFIED BOUNDARY SURVEY AND MISSING MONUMENTS WILL NOT BE
SET.

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
TS

H
.d

w
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, P

R
O

JE
C

T 
IN

FO
R

M
AT

IO
N

, 2
02

2/
02

/1
5,

 1
:4

3 
PM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

UTILITY QUALITY SERVICE LEVELS

QUALITY LEVELS OF UTILITIES ARE SHOWN IN THE PARENTHESES WITH THE UTILITY
TYPE AND WHEN APPLICABLE, SIZE.  THE QUALITY LEVELS ARE BASED ON THE CI /
ASCE 38-02 STANDARD.
QUALITY LEVEL (D) INFORMATION IS DERIVED FROM EXISTING UTILITY RECORDS OR
ORAL RECOLLECTIONS.
QUALITY LEVEL (C) INFORMATION IS OBTAINED BY SURVEYING AND PLOTTING
VISIBLE ABOVE-GROUND UTILITY FEATURES AND USING PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT
IN CORRELATING THIS INFORMATION WITH
QUALITY D INFORMATION.
QUALITY LEVEL (B) INFORMATION IS OBTAINED THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF
APPROPRIATE SURFACE GEOPHYSICAL METHODS TO DETERMINE THE EXISTENCE
AND APPROXIMATE HORIZONTAL POSITION OF SUBSURFACE UTILITIES.
QUALITY LEVEL (A) IS HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL POSITION OF UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES OBTAINED BY ACTUAL EXPOSURE OR VERIFICATION OF PREVIOUSLY
EXPOSED SUBSURFACE UTILITIES, AS WELL AS THE TYPE, SIZE, CONDITION,
MATERIAL, AND OTHER CHARACTERISTICS.

UTILITY WARNING

THE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY
INFORMATION AND/OR RECORDS OBTAINED.  THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO
GUARANTEE THAT THE UTILITIES OR  SUBSURFACE FEATURES SHOWN
COMPRISE ALL SUCH ITEMS IN THE AREA, EITHER IN  SERVICE OR ABANDONED.
THE SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UTILITIES OR
SUBSURFACE FEATURES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED
EXCEPT WHERE NOTED AS QUALITY LEVEL A.

FEATURES EXISTING PROPOSED

Spot Elevation
Contour Elevation
Fence (Barbed, Field, Hog)
Fence (Chain Link)
Fence (Wood)
Fence (Silt)
Tree Line
Tree Stump

Deciduous Tree \\ Shrub

Coniferous Tree \\ Shrub

Communication
Overhead Communication
Fiber Optic
Underground Electric
Overhead Electric
Gas Main with Size
High Pressure Gas Main with Size
Water Main with Size
Sanitary Sewer with Size
Duct Bank
Test Hole Location for SUE w/ID

(*) Denotes the survey quality service level for utilities

Sanitary Manhole

Storm Sewer with Size
Storm Manhole
Single Storm Sewer Intake
Double Storm Sewer Intake
Fire Hydrant
Fire Hydrant on Building
Water Main Valve
Water Service Valve
Well
Utility Pole
Guy Anchor
Utility Pole with Light
Utility Pole with Transformer
Street Light
Yard Light
Electric Box
Electric Transformer
Traffic Sign
Communication Pedestal
Communication Manhole
Communication Handhole
Fiber Optic Manhole
Fiber Optic Handhole
Gas Valve
Gas Manhole
Gas Apparatus
Fence Post or Guard Post
Underground Storage Tank
Above Ground Storage Tank
Sign
Satellite Dish
Mailbox
Sprinkler Head
Irrigation Control Valve

LEGEND

○

1225
X    1225.25

●

X1225
    1225.25

FEATURES FOUND    SET
Section Corner
1/2" Rebar, Cap # 11579

(Unless Otherwise Noted)
ROW Marker
ROW Rail
Control Point
Bench Mark
Platted Distance P
Measured Bearing & Distance M
Recorded As R
Deed Distance D
Calculated Distance C
Minimum Protection Elevation MPE
Centerline
Section Line
1/4 Section Line
1/4 1/4 Section Line
Easement Line

UTILITY CONTACT INFORMATION
UTILITY CONTACT FOR MAPPING INFORMATION SHOWN AS RECEIVED FROM
THE IOWA ONE CALL DESIGN REQUEST SYSTEM, TICKET NUMBER 551903014.

G1-GAS MAIN CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES
FO1-FIBER OPTIC JERALD LUKENSMEYER
W1-WATER MAIN 319-268-5330
OE1-OVERHEAD ELECTRIC JERALD.LUKENSMEYER@CFUNET.NET
UE1-UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC
CO1-COMMUNICATION

S1-SANITARY CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
ST1-STORM TYLER GRIFFIN

319-273-8600
TYLER.GRIFFIN@CEDARFALLS.COM

CONTROL POINTS
IOWA REGIONAL COORDINATE SYSTEM ZONE 5 (WATERLOO)
NAD83(2011)(EPOCH 2010.00) IARTN DERIVED - US SURVEY FEET

CP100 N=8845220.04 E=15449012.26 Z=909.72
SET CUT "X" TOP CURB EAST OF 725 MELENDY LANE, EAST SIDE
ROAD, WEST OF HYDRANT, NW CORNER SITE. (AS SHOWN ON 
SURVEY)

CP101 N=8844857.76 E=15449204.29 Z=923.24
SET CUT "X" NORTH NOSE OF ISLAND OF PRAIRIE PARKWAY, 
NORTH OF GREENHILL ROAD. (AS SHOWN ON SURVEY)

CP102 N=8844882.76 E=15449851.30 Z=908.39
FOUND CUT "X" TOP CURB, SW CORNER OF TOWN HOME DRIVE
LANE, SE CORNER SITE. (AS SHOWN ON SURVEY)

CP103 N=8845264.81 E=15449871.15 Z=900.26
SET CUT "X" CENTERLINE CONCRETE FLUME NE CORNER SITE 
+-10' EAST OF WEST END FLUME. (AS SHOWN ON SURVEY)

BENCHMARKS
NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM OF 1988 (NAVD88 - GEOID12A)
IARTN DERIVED - US SURVEY FEET

BM500 ELEV=910.70
BURY BOLT ON HYDRANT EAST OF 725 MELENDY LANE. (AS
SHOWN ON SURVEY)

BM501 ELEV=918.65
ARROW ON HYDRANT LOCATED AT SE QUADRANT SPRUCE
HILLS DRIVE AND PRAIRIE PARKWAY. (AS SHOWN ON 
SURVEY)

DATE OF SURVEY
SEPTEMBER 10TH, 2021

POLLUTION PREVENTION NOTES
A. POLLUTION PREVENTION AND EROSION PROTECTION

1.   CODE COMPLIANCE: THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ALL
POTENTIAL POLLUTION AND SOIL EROSION CONTROL REQUIREMENTS OF THE IOWA CODE,
THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR) NPDES PERMIT, THE U.S. CLEAN
WATER ACT AND ANY LOCAL ORDINANCES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE ALL NECESSARY
STEPS TO PROTECT AGAINST EROSION AND POLLUTION FROM THIS PROJECT SITE AND ALL
OFF-SITE BORROW OR DEPOSIT AREAS DURING PERFORMANCE OR AS A RESULT OF
PERFORMANCE.

2. DAMAGE CLAIMS: THE CONTRACTOR WILL HOLD THE OWNER AND ARCHITECT / ENGINEER
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL CLAIMS OF ANY TYPE WHATSOEVER RESULTING FROM
DAMAGES TO ADJOINING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY, INCLUDING REASONABLE
ATTORNEY FEES INCURRED TO OWNER. FURTHER, IF THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO TAKE
NECESSARY STEPS TO PROMPTLY REMOVE EARTH SEDIMENTATION OR DEBRIS WHICH
COMES ONTO ADJOINING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY, THE OWNER MAY, BUT NEED NOT,
REMOVE SUCH ITEMS AND DEDUCT THE COST THEREOF FROM AMOUNTS DUE TO THE
CONTRACTOR.

B. STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT

1.   THIS PROJECT REQUIRES COVERAGE UNDER THE NPDES GENERAL PERMIT NO. 2 FOR
STORM WATER DISCHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES FROM THE IDNR,
AS REQUIRED BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY (EPA). THE GENERAL
CONTRACTOR AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH AND
FULFILLMENT OF ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE NPDES GENERAL PERMIT NO. 2 AS SPECIFIED IN
THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

2. ALL DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT, INCLUDING, BUT NOT
LIMITED TO, THE NOTICE OF INTENT, PROOF OF PUBLICATIONS, DISCHARGE AUTHORIZATION
LETTER, CURRENT SWPPP, SITE INSPECTION LOG, AND OTHER ITEMS, SHALL BE KEPT ON SITE
AT ALL TIMES AND MUST BE PRESENTED TO ANY JURISDICTIONAL AGENCIES UPON REQUEST.
FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE NPDES PERMIT REQUIREMENTS IS A VIOLATION OF THE CLEAN
WATER ACT AND THE CODE OF IOWA.

3. A "NOTICE OF DISCONTINUATION" MUST BE FILED WITH THE IDNR UPON FINAL STABILIZATION
OF THE DISTURBED SITE AND REMOVAL OF ALL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES.
ALL PLANS, INSPECTION REPORTS, AND OTHER DOCUMENTS MUST BE RETAINED FOR A
PERIOD OF THREE YEARS AFTER PROJECT COMPLETION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RETAIN A
RECORD COPY AND PROVIDE THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS TO THE OWNER UPON PROJECT
ACCEPTANCE AND/OR SUBMITTAL OF THE NOTICE OF DISCONTINUATION.

C. POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

1.   THE STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) IS A SEPARATE DOCUMENT IN
ADDITION TO THESE PLAN DRAWINGS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHOULD REFER TO THE SWPPP
FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS TO THE POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN
MADE DURING CONSTRUCTION.

2. THE SWPPP ILLUSTRATES GENERAL MEASURES AND BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP)
FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROJECT'S NPDES PERMIT COVERAGE.  ALL BMP'S AND EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES REQUIRED AS A RESULT OF CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES ARE THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO IDENTIFY, NOTE AND IMPLEMENT. ADDITIONAL
BMP'S FROM THOSE SHOWN ON THE PLAN MAY BE REQUIRED.

3. THE SWPPP AND SITE MAP SHOULD BE EXPEDITIOUSLY REVISED TO REFLECT CONSTRUCTION
PROGRESS AND CHANGES AT THE PROJECT SITE.

4. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE
GENERAL PERMIT AND SWPPP, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE FOLLOWING BMP'S
UNLESS INFEASIBLE OR NOT APPLICABLE:

a. UTILIZE OUTLET STRUCTURES THAT WITHDRAW WATER FROM THE SURFACE WHEN
DISCHARGING FROM BASINS, PROVIDE AND MAINTAIN NATURAL BUFFERS AROUND
SURFACE WATERS, DIRECT STORM WATER TO VEGETATED AREAS TO INCREASE SEDIMENT
REMOVAL AND MAXIMIZE STORM WATER INFILTRATION, AND MINIMIZE SOIL COMPACTION.

b. INSTALL PERIMETER AND FINAL SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SUCH AS SILT BARRIERS,
DITCH CHECKS, DIVERSION BERMS, OR SEDIMENTATION BASINS DOWNSTREAM OF SOIL
DISTURBING ACTIVITIES PRIOR TO SITE CLEARING AND GRADING OPERATIONS.

c. PRESERVE EXISTING VEGETATION IN AREAS NOT NEEDED FOR CONSTRUCTION AND LIMIT
TO A MINIMUM THE TOTAL AREA DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS AT ANY TIME.

d. MAINTAIN ALL TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EROSION CONTROL MEASURES IN WORKING
ORDER, INCLUDING CLEANING, REPAIRING, REPLACEMENT, AND SEDIMENT REMOVAL
THROUGHOUT THE PERMIT PERIOD. CLEAN OR REPLACE SILT CONTROL DEVICES WHEN
THE MEASURES HAVE LOST 50% OF THEIR ORIGINAL CAPACITY.

e. INSPECT THE PROJECT AREA AND CONTROL DEVICES (BY QUALIFIED PERSONNEL
ASSIGNED BY THE CONTRACTOR) EVERY SEVEN CALENDAR DAYS. RECORD THE FINDINGS
OF THESE INSPECTIONS AND ANY RESULTING ACTIONS IN THE SWPPP WITH A COPY
SUBMITTED WEEKLY TO THE OWNER OR ENGINEER DURING CONSTRUCTION. REVISE THE
SWPPP AND IMPLEMENT ANY RECOMMENDED MEASURES WITHIN 7 DAYS.

f. PREVENT ACCUMULATION OF EARTH AND DEBRIS FROM CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES ON
ADJOINING PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTIES, INCLUDING STREETS, DRIVEWAYS,
SIDEWALKS, DRAINAGEWAYS, OR UNDERGROUND SEWERS. REMOVE ANY ACCUMULATION
OF EARTH OR DEBRIS IMMEDIATELY AND TAKE REMEDIAL ACTIONS FOR FUTURE
PREVENTION.

g. INSTALL NECESSARY CONTROL MEASURES SUCH AS SILT BARRIERS, EROSION CONTROL
MATS, MULCH, DITCH CHECKS OR RIPRAP AS SOON AS AREAS REACH THEIR FINAL GRADES
AND AS CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS PROGRESS TO ENSURE CONTINUOUS RUNOFF
CONTROL. PROVIDE INLET AND OUTLET CONTROL MEASURES AS SOON AS STORM
SEWERS ARE INSTALLED.

h. RESPREAD A MINIMUM OF 6 INCHES OF TOPSOIL (INCLUDING TOPSOIL FOUND IN SOD) ON
ALL DISTURBED AREAS, EXCEPT WHERE PAVEMENT, BUILDINGS OR OTHER
IMPROVEMENTS ARE LOCATED.

i. STABILIZE UNDEVELOPED, DISTURBED AREAS WITH MULCH, TEMPORARY SEED MIX,
PERMANENT SEED MIX, SOD, OR PAVEMENT IMMEDIATELY AS SOON AS POSSIBLE UPON
COMPLETION OR DELAY OF GRADING OPERATIONS.  INITIATE STABILIZATION MEASURES
IMMEDIATELY AFTER CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY IS FINALLY COMPLETED OR TEMPORARILY
CEASED ON ANY PORTION OF THE SITE AND WHICH WILL NOT RESUME FOR A PERIOD
EXCEEDING 14 CALENDAR DAYS.

j. COORDINATE LOCATIONS OF STAGING AREAS WITH THE OWNER AND RECORD IN THE
SWPPP. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE, STAGING AREAS SHOULD CONTAIN THE FOLLOWING:
JOB TRAILERS, FUELING / VEHICLE MAINTENANCE AREA, TEMPORARY SANITARY
FACILITIES, MATERIALS STORAGE, AND CONCRETE WASHOUT FACILITY. CONTROL RUNOFF
FROM STAGING AREAS WITH DIVERSION BERMS AND/OR SILT BARRIERS AND DIRECT TO A
SEDIMENT BASIN OR OTHER CONTROL DEVICE WHERE POSSIBLE.  CONCRETE WASHOUT
MUST BE CONTAINED ONSITE.

k. REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AND SITE WASTE PRIOR TO
FILING OF THE "NOTICE OF DISCONTINUATION".

47

Item 5.



C1

N0°14'42"E 52.51'

N53°56'20"E 448.32'

S43°19'05"E 61.13'

S54°55'31"E 82.46'

S63°40'32"E 111.14'

S69°13'52"E 177.21'

N77°25'10"E 80.57'

S0
°1

5'
47

"W
 3

80
.6

9'

N89°36'59"W 596.68'

N
5°

25
'3

0"
W

 1
01

.1
3'

N
0°

24
'0

4"
E 

12
9.

73
'

N89°37'53"W 194.04'

302,756 SF
6.95 AC

LOT 1

30' B.S.L

30
' B

.S
.L

30' B.S.L

25' B.S.L

25
' B

.S
.L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

0'
 P

.U
.E

EXISTING 10' P.U.E

30' B.S.L

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT

30' EX SANITARY
EASEMENT

21

22
23

17

18
19

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

14

15

16

25
26

2728
29

30

24

BM500

BM501

   100

   101

   102

   103

Concrete

Spruce Hill Dr.

C
on

cr
et

e

Sp
ru

ce
 H

ill 
D

r.

Concrete
Parking
Area

Concrete
Parking
Area

Building

Concrete
Flume

Sidewalk

Edge
Vegetation

Field Tile
Intake=905.87
At Ground
Elevation

Sanitary
Cleanout=907.86

Field Tile
Intake=900.79
At Ground
Elevation

20.0'

18.0'TYP

18.0'
TYPR25.0'

20.0'

20.0'

25
.0

'

32.0' TYP

27
.0

' T
YP

31
.0

' B
/B

2.0'

2A

2A

2A

2B

2B

5.0' 1.0'

2E2F

2E

2E

2E

2H 2G

2C

2B

2C

2C

25
.0

' T
YP

3A

1A

1B

1C

1B

2I
TYP

2I
TYP

2I
TYP

2I
TYP

1B

1B

4A

STORM
 W

ATER

FACILITIES

EASEM
ENT

2I
TYP

2C
2E

18.0'TYP

27
.0

' T
YP

2I
TYP

25
.0

' T
YP

25
.0

' T
YP

18.0'TYP

27
.0

' T
YP

25
.0

' T
YP

27
.0

' T
YP

18.0'TYP

5.
0'

5.
0'

5.
0'

18
.0

'

9.0'

30.0' TYP

25.0' TYP

27.0' TYP18.0'
TYP

4.0'
1.0'

4.
0'

1.
0'

45' INGRESS/EGRESS, STORM
SANITARY & WATER

MAIN EASEMENT
10' P.U.E.

10' P.U.E.10' STORM SEWER EASEMENT

10' P.U.E.

45' INGRESS/EGRESS,STORM,
SANITARY & WATER MAIN EASEMENT

10' P.U.E.

2G

2B

STORM SEWER
EASEMENT

WATER MAIN
EASEMENT

30' SANITARY SEWER
EASEMENT

10' STORM SEWER
EASEMENT

2C

2C
2E

10' P.U.E.

5.0'
25.0'

5.0'2B

2D

2D

R
112.5'

1B

1B 1B

1B

R28.0'

R28.0'

R25.0'

R25.0'

R112.5'

R87.5'

R5.0'

R
5.0'

R
87.5'

10.0'

SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE

SPRUCE CREEK DRIVE

5A

DIMENSION PLAN CONSTRUCTION NOTES
1. EXISTING FEATURES, PROTECT THE FOLLOWING:

A. PAVEMENTS TO REMAIN.
B. PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES.
C. REMOVE SIGN.

2.   PAVEMENTS, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. DRIVES AND PARKING , 7" DEPTH PAVEMENT WITH 12" DEPTH PREPARED SUBGRADE COMPACTED TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR.
B. PCC SIDEWALKS, 4" DEPTH PAVEMENT ON 6" PREPARED SUBGRADE.
C. INTEGRAL SIDEWALK, 5" DEPTH PCC ON 6" PREPARED SUBGRADE. SEE DETAIL.
D. 6" PCC STANDARD CURB.
E. 3" PCC ROLL CURB.
F. TAPER CURB FROM 3" ROLL CURB TO 6" STANDARD CURB
G. PEDESTRIAN RAMP WITH A MAXIMUM SLOPE OF 8.33%. INSTALL DETECTABLE WARNINGS.
H. DRIVEWAY CONNECTION WITH SUDAS TYPE B CONNECTION (7030.102). SAWCUT TO FULL DEPTH EXISTING PAVEMENT AND MACH

EXISTING GRADE.
I. 8" PCC DRIVEWAY.

3. PAVEMENT MARKINGS, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. 4" WIDE PAINTED PARKING STALL LINES.

4.   SIGNS, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. PROVIDE STOP SIGN PER ADAGG REQUIREMENTS. DEVELOPER TO INSTALL.

5. SITE AMENITIES, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. 8" PCC CLUSTER MAIL BOX PAD. (SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET)

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

30

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
30

0

121.0880.01

C300

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
 P

LA
N

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 IA
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 O

W
N

ER
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

  

JW
M

 J
FS  

1 2  

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
D

IM
.d

w
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
 P

LA
N

, 2
02

2/
02

/1
5,

 1
:4

3 
PM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 30

PRIVATE DRIVE

TYPICAL STREET CROSS SECTION1
C300

25' B/B

Street
CenterlineL-1

L-1

2% Typ.
Varies 1.5% Varies

7" PCC C-4 Mix

6.25'6.25'

5' Sidewalk

Prepared Subgrade
(2-6" Lifts)(95% Compaction)
(-1% to +4% of Optimum Moisture Content)
(Proof Roll)NOTE:

A Geotechnical Engineer Shall Inspect the Subgrade Prior to
Concrete Placement to Verify Subgrade Compaction, Moisture
Content and Depth.

NO SCALE

PCC STANDARD CURB2
C300

2"R

1"R

7.5"
4.5"

VA
R

IE
S

6"

NO SCALE

3" PCC ROLLED CURB3
C300

2"R
1"R

.7'
.2'

VA
R

IE
S

.2
'

NOT TO SCALE

2%
 M

AX

CLUSTER MAILBOX PAD DETAIL4
C300

BACK OF CURB

5'x5' MAILBOX PAD
8" PCC

SIDEWALKFRONT FACE OF
MAILBOX CLUSTER

NOTES:
1. CLUSTER MAILBOX TO BE LOCATED ON THE NO

PARKING/STREET LIGHT SIDE OF THE STREET
2. DON NOT LOCATE AT INTERSECTION
3. LOCATE NEAR SHARED PROPERTY LINE PER

APPROVED PLAN.

48

Item 5.



C1

N0°14'42"E 52.51'

N53°56'20"E 448.32'

S43°19'05"E 61.13'

S54°55'31"E 82.46'

S63°40'32"E 111.14'

S69°13'52"E 177.21'

N77°25'10"E 80.57'

S0
°1

5'
47

"W
 3

80
.6

9'

N89°36'59"W 596.68'

N
5°

25
'3

0"
W

 1
01

.1
3'

N
0°

24
'0

4"
E 

12
9.

73
'

N89°37'53"W 194.04'

302,756 SF
6.95 AC

LOT 1

30' B.S.L

30
' B

.S
.L

30' B.S.L

25' B.S.L

25
' B

.S
.L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

0'
 P

.U
.E

EXISTING 10' P.U.E

30' B.S.L

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT

30' EX SANITARY
EASEMENT

21

22
23

17

18
19

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

14

15

16

25
26

2728
29

30

24

BM500

BM501

   100

   101

   102

   103

Concrete

Spruce Hill Dr.

Rim=909.26
F.L.=904.76 15" RCP W

Rim=912.33
F.L.=907.53 15" RCP W
F.L.=907.43 15" RCP S
F.L.=907.48 15" CPP E

Rim=912.21
F.L.=907.86 15" RCP N

Rim=914.72
F.L.=905.17 8" PVC W

Rim=916.05
15" RCP E
15" RCP N

Unable To Stick
Structure

Rim=916.15
W 15" RCP
Unable To Stick
Structure

Rim=915.78
F.L.=910.33 15" CPP S

F.L.=910.18 15" CPP W

C
on

cr
et

e

Sp
ru

ce
 H

ill 
D

r.

Concrete
Parking
Area

Concrete
Parking
Area

Building

Concrete
Flume

Sidewalk

F.L.=900.34
15" RCP N

F.L.=900.93
42" RCP SW

Edge
Vegetation

Field Tile
Intake=905.87
At Ground
Elevation

Sanitary
Cleanout=907.86

Field Tile
Intake=900.79
At Ground
Elevation

Rim=901.10
F.L.=892.15 8" PVC N
F.L.=892.25 8" PVC S

F.L.=891.67 8" PVC W

R200.0' HYDRANT COVERAGE

R200.0' HYDRANT CO
VERAG

E

R200.0' HYDRANT COVERAGE

R200.0' HYDRANT COVERAGE

MH NO.4, SW-301
RIM: 914.42
INV: 904.60 (OUT E)

MH NO.5, SW-301
RIM: 909.57
INV: 897.87 (IN W)
INV: 899.19 (OUT NE)

MH NO.1, SW-301
RIM: 909.45
INV: 898.02 (OUT NW)

MH NO.2, SW-301
RIM: 904.81
INV: 895.14 (IN SE)
INV: 895.14 (IN SW)
INV: 895.04 (OUT NW)

MH NO.3, SW-301
RIM: 903.20

INV: 893.39 (IN SE)
INV: 893.29 (OUT N)

EX MANHOLE, SW-301
RIM: 901.10
INV: 892.25 (IN S)
INV: 892.15 (OUT N)

288 LF OF 8" SANITARY SEWER @ 1.00%

165 LF OF 8" SANITARY SEWER @ 1.00%

104 LF OF 8" SANITARY SEWER @ 1.00%

192 LF OF 8" SANITARY SEWER @ 3.50%

10
1 

LF
 O

F 
8"

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

 @
 4

.0
0%

66 LF OF 24" RCP @ 0.40%

S-7, SW-502, Circular Single Grate Intake
T/C: 902.51
INV: 898.83 (IN SE)
INV: 898.73 (OUT NW)

131 LF OF 24" RCP @ 0.50%

S-4, SW-502, Circular Single Grate Intake
T/C: 903.63
INV: 899.58 (IN SE)
INV: 899.58 (IN SW)
INV: 899.48 (OUT NW)

151 LF OF 18" RCP @ 0.76%

S-3, SW-502, Circular Single Grate Intake
T/C: 904.36
INV: 900.82 (IN SE)
INV: 900.72 (OUT NW)

89 LF OF 15" RCP @ 1.10%

S-2A, SW-401, Circular Storm Sewer Manhole
RIM: 904.81
INV: 901.90 (IN SW)
INV: 901.80 (OUT NW)

S-2, SW-505, Double Grate Intake
T/C: 906.02
INV: 902.66 (IN SW)
INV: 902.56 (OUT NE)

S-6, SW-505, Double Grate Intake
T/C: 905.98

INV: 901.03 (IN SW)
INV: 900.93 (OUT NE)

81 LF OF 15" R
CP @

 6.00%S-5, SW-505, Double Grate Intake
T/C: 908.35

INV: 905.92 (OUT NE)

65 LF OF 12" N12 HDPE @ 1.00%

79 LF OF 12" N12 HDPE @ 1.10%

S-1A, 12in Nyloplast Drainage Structure
WITH SOLID LID

RIM: 907.79
INV: 903.41 (IN NW)

INV: 903.31 (OUT NE)

S-8, 30'' FES
INV: 898.47

S-1, 12in Nyloplast Drainage Structure
WITH DOMED GRATE

RIM: 907.32
INV: 904.28 (OUT SE)

S-10, 24 IN DIA CMP APRON
INV: 896.40

S-9, SW-513 (36in X 36in)
SW-513, Open-Sided Area Intake, Open 1 Side, INLET: 901.2

RIM: 901.95
INV: 896.60 (OUT N)

INV: 896.70 (OUT SE)
25 LF OF 3" HDPE CORRUGATED @ 0.50%

1A

1A1A

1A

1B
1C

1C

1D
TYP

1E

2C

2B
TYP

66
 L

F 
O

F 
15

" R
CP

 @
 1

.0
0%

39 LF OF 24" N12 HDPE @ 0.50%

45 LF OF 15" RCP @ 3.00%

1C 1B

3E

3F

1D

2B

TYP

TYP

1D

2B

TYP

TYP

1D

2B
TYP

TYP

1D2B
TYP

TYP

1D
2B
TYP

TYP

100 LF OF 3" H
DPE CORRUGATED @ 0.50%

1B

1B

3D

SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE

SPRUCE CREEK DRIVE

UTILITY PLAN CONSTRUCTION NOTE

1.   WATER SERVICES, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. PRIVATE 8" WATER SERVICE LINE.
B. HYDRANT ASSEMBLY PER CFU STANDARDS.
C. 8" VALVE.
D. 1" WATER SERVICE AND CURB STOP TO UNIT.
E. CONNECT 8" WATER SERVICE TO 8" PUBLIC WATER MAIN.

2.   SANITARY SEWER SERVICES; PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. 8" SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LINE AT MINIMUM 1.0%.
B. 4" SANITARY SEWER SERVICE TO UNIT.
C. CORE DRILL AND CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE WITH CONCRETE COLLAR.

3.  STORM SEWER, PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING:
A. PROVIDE STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS AS SHOWN AS PER 2020 STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC

IMPROVEMENTS AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS.
B. ALL STORM SEWER PIPE LENGTHS ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER OF STRUCTURE TO CENTER OF STRUCTURE AND INCLUDE FLARED

END SECTION.
C. ALL FOOTINGS FOR STORM SEWER STRUCTURES SHALL BE A MINIMUM 42 INCHES GELOW FINIHSED GRADE.  CONCRETE FILLET

INSIDE INTAKES AS NECESSARY TO FLOW LINES.
D. PROVIDE GASKETED RCPT STORM SEWER WITHIN 10' OF WATER MAIN.
E. INSTALL WATER QUALITY BASIN AS SHOWN.
F. INSTALL SUBDRAIN IN BOTTOM OF BASIN AS SHOWN IN DETAIL ON THIS SHEET.
G. ALL STORM SEWER GRATE STRUCTURES WITHIN PRIVATE STREET TO BE INSTALLED WITH MOUNTABLE CURB BOX ACCOMODATING

DRIVE CURB.

4.   CRITICAL CROSSING: CONTRACTOR TO MAINTAIN 18" MINIMUM SEPARATION BETWEEN UTILITIES. VERIFY SEPARATION PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION. AT CRITICAL  CROSSINGS, WHEN THE WATER MAIN IS LOCATED BELOW THE STORM SEWER, PROVIDE GASKETED JOINTS
FOR RCP LOCATED WITHIN 10 FEET OF CROSSINGS, PROVIDE C900 PVC WATER MAIN PIPE FOR THE 8" STORM SEWER PIPE LOCATED WITHIN
10 FEET OF THE CROSSING.

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

30

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
40

0

121.0880.01

C400

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 IA
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 O

W
N

ER
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

  

JW
M

 J
FS  

1 2  

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
U

TI
L.

dw
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

, 2
02

2/
02

/1
5,

 1
:4

3 
PM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 30

NOTES:
1   BACKFILL ALL SUBDRAIN WITH

POROUS BACKFILL (SUDAS 3010,
2.10).

2  PLACE PERFORATIONS DOWN
FOR ALL INSTRUCTIONS.
3  3" PERFORATED POLYETHYLENE
CORRUGATED TUBING.

3
2

1

6"
 E

AR
TH

BA
C

KF
IL

L

1.
5'

 D
EP

TH
 T

O
 F

L,
 O

R
 A

S
N

O
TE

D
 O

N
C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

S

2" M
IN

12" MIN

3" PIPE

FILTER SOCK

49

Item 5.



C1

N0°14'42"E 52.51'

N53°56'20"E 448.32'

S43°19'05"E 61.13'

S54°55'31"E 82.46'

S63°40'32"E 111.14'

S69°13'52"E 177.21'

N77°25'10"E 80.57'

S0
°1

5'
47

"W
 3

80
.6

9'

N89°36'59"W 596.68'

N
5°

25
'3

0"
W

 1
01

.1
3'

N
0°

24
'0

4"
E 

12
9.

73
'

N89°37'53"W 194.04'

302,756 SF
6.95 AC

LOT 1

30' B.S.L

30
' B

.S
.L

30' B.S.L

25' B.S.L

25
' B

.S
.L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

0'
 P

.U
.E

EXISTING 10' P.U.E

30' B.S.L

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT

30' EX SANITARY
EASEMENT

21

22
23

17

18
19

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

14

15

16

25
26

2728
29

30

24

BM500

BM501

   100

   101

   102

   103

Concrete

Spruce Hill Dr.

C
on

cr
et

e

Sp
ru

ce
 H

ill 
D

r.

Concrete
Parking
Area

Concrete
Parking
Area

Building

Concrete
Flume

Sidewalk

Edge
Vegetation

Field Tile
Intake=905.87
At Ground
Elevation

Sanitary
Cleanout=907.86

Field Tile
Intake=900.79
At Ground
Elevation

911

912

914

914915

913

915

918

916
917

918
919

920
921922

917 916
914 913 912 911

90
9

90
6

911913

915

908

902

902

901

899

898

901

901

91
4

928

927
926 925 924 923

922

921

920

919
918 917 916 915

914

913

912

911

923

922

921

920

919

917

916

915914

913

912

911

90
9 90

8 90
7

90
6 90

5 90
4 90

3 90
2 90
1

900

89
9

89
8

898

899

900

901

902

897
897

896
896

895

895

894

894

89
3

89
2

89
1

893

894

895

896

897

898

899

900

901

902

903

90
4

90
5

90
6

90
7

GFE=914.70

GFE=905.10

GFE=906.60

GFE=908.10

GFE=908.70

GFE=908.30

GFE=915.15

914.49

91
4.4

4

913.98

914.71CL

914.04CL

914.78

906.39

91
1.1

1

906.85

905.42

904.07

904.61

903.55

906.46

903.60

906.08

907.04

907.80

Rim=904.81

903.09

904.14

904.95

911.57

914.09

913.63

915.11

905.84CL

915.20

Rim=909.57

907.79

-2
.0

0%

4.
89

%

905.90CL

906.58

1.00%

915.44

-2.00%

-2.00%

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●
●●●

●●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●●

●

●

●

914

914

915

918919

910

909

91
0

908

908
907

90
5

90
8

908

907 906 905 904 903

902

90
6

906

90
5 905

904
903

902
901
900

899

90
4

903
902
901

900

914

910 909

908
907
906

905
904

903

909

907

908

90
8

91
3 91

2 91
1 91

0 90
9 908

907

906

910 90
9

90
8

912

91
3

91
4

91
5

911

910

909

908

907

906

912
913

914

904

905

906

907

905

906

908908

907

904.43

904.97

905.04

904.58

904.59

907.34

907.56

908.01

907.20

907.01

907.13

907.31

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

-0
.7

0%

906.54

906.08

Rim=906.98

Rim=907.69

906.60
907.31

Rim=914.42

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●●●●●●●●●●●

●
●

●

●
●

●
●

●●●●●●

●

●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●
●

●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●●

●

●

●

6.
75

%

1.
50

%

6.
71

%

10
.0

0%

1.
48

%

6.
76

%

1.
51

%

3.
68

%

10
.1

1%

1.
47

%

1.
51

%

10
.0

8%

898.32

898.82

SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE

SPRUCE CREEK DRIVE

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

30

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
50

0

121.0880.01

C500

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
R

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
A

N
C

ED
A

R
 F

A
LL

S,
 IA

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 O
W

N
ER

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
  

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

  

JW
M

 J
FS  

1 2  

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
G

R
D

.d
w

g 
JU

ST
IN

 S
TR

O
M

, G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
R

O
SI

O
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
AN

, 2
02

2/
02

/1
5,

 1
:4

4 
PM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 30

A. UTILITY WARNING: THE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD
SURVEY INFORMATION AND/ OR RECORDS OBTAINED. THE SURVEYOR
MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH
UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE SURVEY
FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE
EXACT LOCATION INDICATED.

B. PROTECT EXISTING UTILITIES FROM CONSTRUCTION DAMAGE. ANY DAMAGE
THAT OCCURS SHALL BE REPAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR TO THE OWNERS
SPECIFICATIONS WITHOUT ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION.

C. PRIOR TO GRADING, THE OWNER/ CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN A GRADING
PERMIT.

D. GRADES SHOWN ARE FINISHED GRADE AND/OR TOP OF PAVING SLAB
(GUTTER), UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

E. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SILT FENCE AROUND ALL STORM INTAKES
AND WHERE SHOWN ON THE PLAN. SILT FENCE AROUND STORM INTAKES
SHALL BE MAINTAINED UNTIL PAVING AND SEEDING/ SODDING ARE
COMPLETE.

F. INSTALL CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE AT PRIVATE DRIVE CONNECTION.

G.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFICATION AND
COORDINATION OF ALL SITE UTILITIES AND IMPROVEMENTS WITH THE
ARCHITECTURAL MECHANICAL/ ELECTRICAL/ PLUMBING SYSTEMS
INCLUDING ROUTING, CRITICAL DIMENSIONS, CONNECTIONS, AND INVERT
ELEVATIONS.

H. CONTRACTOR TO STRIP AND STOCKPILE TOPSOIL FROM ALL AREAS TO BE
CUT OR FILLED. RESPREAD TO MINIMUM 6" DEPTH TO FINISH GRADES.

I. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CLEANING DIRT AND DEBRIS FROM
NEIGHBORING STREETS, DRIVEWAYS, AND SIDEWALKS CAUSED BY
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

J. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE BELOW GRADE INLET PROTECTION IN ALL
STORM SEWER STRUCTURES.

K. G.F.E = GARAGE FLOOR ELEVATION.

GRADING NOTES

Post Spacing
(5'-0" max.)

Post Spacing
(5'-0" max.)

 

 

 

Variable (20'-0" for a normal 10'-0" wide ditch.)

TYPICAL SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK

Foreslope Backs
lope

1

2" min.

20" min.

ATTACHMENT TO POST

Fabric

Post

Wire or
Cable Ties

Insert 12 inches of fabric a minimum
of 6 inches deep (fabric may be
folded below the ground line).

Reduce post spacing to 5'-0" at water
concentration areas, or as required
to adequately support fence.

1

2

 

24"
36"

8'-0" Spacing

DETAILS OF SILT FENCE ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

1

2
Ground Line Fabric

 

See plans for spacing.

(Profile View)
TYPICAL SILT FENCE INSTALLATION ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

1

1

'T' Steel
Fence Post
4'-0" min.

Ground line

Fabric

Flow

SILT FENCE

200'-0" max. length per section
(600'-0" if slope is flatter than 5%)

(Plan View)
TYPICAL SILT FENCE INSTALLATION ON LONGITUDINAL SLOPES

Ground ContoursInstall parallel to
ground contour.

Install "J-hook" at each end of an
individual section of silt fence.

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

INLET PROTECTION (TYP)

FILTER SOCK (TYP)

FILTER SOCK (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

100 YR FLOOD
PLAIN

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

FILTER SOCK (TYP)

SILT FENCE (TYP)

SEDIMENT BASKET (TYP) FILTER SOCK (TYP)

10' WIDE EMERGENCY SPILLWAY,
TOP OF BERM @ 902.70, SPILLWAY @

901.95. 30 TON EROSION STONE 10'
WIDEx2'DEEP TO DITCH

50

Item 5.



C1

N0°14'42"E 52.51'

N53°56'20"E 448.32'

S54°55'31"E 82.46'

S63°40'32"E 111.14'

S69°13'52"E 177.21'

N77°25'10"E 80.57'

S0
°1

5'
47

"W
 3

80
.6

9'

N89°36'59"W 596.68'

N
5°

25
'3

0"
W

 1
01

.1
3'

N
0°

24
'0

4"
E 

12
9.

73
'

N89°37'53"W 194.04'

302,756 SF
6.95 AC

LOT 1

30' B.S.L

30
' B

.S
.L

30' B.S.L

25' B.S.L

25
' B

.S
.L

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

0'
 P

.U
.E

EXISTING 10' P.U.E

30' B.S.L

50' ELECTRIC EASEMENT

30' EX SANITARY
EASEMENT

21

22
23

17

18
19

20

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11
12

13

14

15

16

25
26

2728
29

30

24

BM500

BM501

   100

   101

   102

   103

Concrete

Spruce Hill Dr.

Grass
Median

C
on

cr
et

e

Sp
ru

ce
 H

ill 
D

r.

Sidewalk
Edge

Concrete
Parking
Area

Concrete
Parking
Area

Building

Concrete
Flume

Sidewalk

Edge
Vegetation

Field Tile
Intake=905.87
At Ground
Elevation

Sanitary
Cleanout=907.86

Field Tile
Intake=900.79
At Ground
Elevation

Bench

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

TYP.

1-CO 4-QR

1-GT

1-GT

1-GT

1-GB

3-AF

3-CK

3-AF

1-TA

1-GB

1-GB

1-GB

1-GB

1-CO

1-AF

3-UM

7-HF 4-PM

4-PM

J

E

E

E

E

J

J

J

F

1-TA

1-CO

H

3-PC

1-PA

1-PA 1-QR 1-QR

1-QR

1-QR

1-AF

1-QR

1-QR

2-UM

1-GB

3-PP
3-PP

3-PP

3-PC

3-PP 3-PP 3-PC

3-PC

3-PP

3-QB

2-MJ

2-MJ

2-MA 2-MA2-MA 2-MA

TYP.E

3-SR 3-SR

3-VL

3-VL

1-CK

1-CK

1-CK

3-PA

1-AF

1-AF
1-CO

1-CK

1-VL

1-VL

1-AG

1-AG

1-AG

1-AG

1-AG

1-AG

5-JM

1-CO

1-CO

1-CO

1-CO

1-TA

1-TA

1-TA

1-SR

1-SR

5-JM

2-HF

5-JM

2-HF

5-JM

2-HF

5-JM

2-HF

2-HF

5-JM

7-JL
2-VD

5-PM
2-VR

7-JL
2-VD

7-JL
2-VD

5-PM
2-VR

5-JC

5-JC

5-JC

5-JC

5-JM

7-PM

2-VR

2-VR

5-PM

9-PF

7-PF

9-PJ

7-PJ

7-ST

7-ST

2-VR

5-JL

5-JL

2-VD

2-VD

E

E TYP.

E TYP.

E
TYP.

E
TYP.

SPRUCE HILLS DRIVE

SPRUCE CREEK DRIVE

BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

30

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
60

0

121.0880.01

C600

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
PL

A
N

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S,

 IA
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 O

W
N

ER
R

EV
IS

ED
 A

S 
PE

R
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

  

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

  

JW
M

 J
FS  

1 2  

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
LN

D
.d

w
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, P

LA
N

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

, 2
02

2/
02

/1
5,

 1
:4

4 
PM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 30

51

Item 5.



BY
DA

TE
R

EV
IS

IO
N

M
AR

K
Sc

al
e:

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
:

T-
R

-S
:

SN
YD

ER
 & 

AS
SO

CIA
TE

S, 
INC

. 
|

C
he

ck
ed

 B
y:

En
gi

ne
er

:

D
at

e:

1"
 =

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o:
Sh

ee
t

Project No:

Sheet

50
10

 V
O

G
ES

 R
O

AD
M

AD
IS

O
N

. W
IS

C
O

N
SI

N
 5

37
18

60
8-

83
8-

04
44

 | 
w

w
w

.s
ny

de
r-a

ss
oc

ia
te

s.
co

m

ED
C

JW
M

ED
C

09
-2

7-
21

N
A

12
1.

08
80

.0
1

C
60

1

121.0880.01

C601

TH
E 

C
O

VE
 A

T 
SP

R
U

C
E 

H
IL

LS
PL

A
N

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

 G
EN

ER
A

L 
N

O
TE

S
C

ED
A

R
 F

A
LL

S,
 IA

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 O
W

N
ER

R
EV

IS
ED

 A
S 

PE
R

 C
IT

Y 
C

O
M

M
EN

TS
  

1-
21

-2
2

 2
-8

-2
2

  

JW
M

 J
FS  

1 2  

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

V:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
21

\1
21

.0
88

0.
01

\C
AD

D
\S

P_
12

10
88

0_
LN

D
.d

w
g 

JU
ST

IN
 S

TR
O

M
, P

LA
N

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

 G
EN

ER
AL

 N
O

TE
S,

 2
02

2/
02

/1
5,

 1
:4

4 
PM

, A
N

SI
 F

U
LL

 B
LE

ED
 D

 (3
4.

00
 X

 2
2.

00
 IN

C
H

ES
)

FEET

0 20

PLANTING PLAN GENERAL NOTES
A. UTILITY WARNING:

THE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY INFORMATION
AND/OR RECORDS OBTAINED.  THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE
UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN
SERVICE OR ABANDONED.  THE SURVEY FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE
UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED.

B. NOTIFY UTILITY OWNERS PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY CONSTRUCTION.
CONTRACTOR IS  RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING EXISTENCE, EXACT LOCATION
AND DEPTH OF ALL UTILITIES.  AVOID DAMAGE TO UTILITIES AND SERVICES
DURING CONSTRUCTION.  ANY DAMAGE DUE TO THE CONTRACTOR'S
CARELESSNESS SHALL BE CORRECTED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.
COORDINATE AND COOPERATE WITH UTILITY COMPANIES DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

C. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL AT LEAST MEET MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS SHOWN IN
THE "AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY STOCK" (ANSI Z60.1-LATEST EDITION).

D. CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ALL PLANT MATERIAL FOR A PERIOD OF ONE
YEAR FROM DATE OF INSTALLATION.

E. PROVIDE A MIN 3-FOOT PERIMETER RING OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH
AROUND ALL TREES AND PLANTINGS BEDS TO A DEPTH OF 3 INCHES. PROVIDE
VERTICAL CUT NATURAL EDGE TO A DEPTH OF 4-INCHES.

F. PROVIDE 2-INCH RIVER GRAVEL PLACED TO A DEPTH OF 4-INCHES WITH WEED
BARRIER FABRIC UNDERLAYMENT IN PLANT BED AREAS SHOWN ON PLAN.

G. SEED ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION WITH TYPE 1 SUDAS
PERMANENT LAWN SEED MIX, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

H. FURNISH AND INSTALL STORM DETENTION BASIN SEED MIX BY PRAIRIE MOON
NURSERY. WWW.PRAIRIEMOON.COM, 32115 PRAIRIE LANE, WINONA, MN 55987, OR
APPROVED EQUAL. SEEDING RATE: 11.48 LBS/ACRE.  INSTALL AS PER SUDAS
SPECIFICATIONS 9010 SEEDING.

FURNISH AND INSTALL REGREEN, Tricitum aestivum, SHORT-LIVED STERILE
PERENNIAL WHEAT/WHEAT GRASS HYBRID OR APPROVED EQUAL AS A COVER
CROP, TO BE INSTALLED AT THE SAME TIME WITH THE STORM DETENTION BASIN
SEED MIX. APPLY AT 30 LBS/ACRE.

J. PROVIDE MECHANICALLY BONDED FIBER MATRIX(MBFM) IMMEDIATELY
FOLLOWING SEED APPLICATION ON ALL AREAS SEEDED WITH A SLOPE OF 6:1 OR
GREATER. ACCEPTABLE PRODUCTS AND MANUFACTURERS:

PROFILE PRODUCTS LLC., 750 LAKE COOK ROAD - SUITE 400
BUFFALO GROVE, IL 60089
TEL: 1-800-366-1180
WWW.PROFILEPRODUCTS.COM OR APPROVED EQUAL.

SEE PLANTING PIT
DETAILS

GARDEN
HOSE FLAGGING

MATERIAL

1

STAKING PLAN
(TREES 2 1/2" DIA OR SMALLER)

STAKING PLAN
(TREES LARGER THAN 2 1/2" DIA)

1  WRAP TRUNK FROM GROUND TO FIRST BRANCH.

1 2 T
O

 2 3 T
R

EE
 H

EI
G

H
T

(4
'-0

" M
IN

)

1
4 TO 13

TREE HEIGHT
(2'-0" MIN)

6"

PLACE ON STAKE
TO SOUTHWEST

PLACE ON STAKE
TO SOUTHWEST

TYPICAL PLANTING PIT DETAIL

SLOPE PLANTING PIT DETAIL

SET ROOT COLLAR AND ROOT
FLARE 2" ABOVE FINISH GRADE.

DO NOT PLACE MULCH WITHIN
2" OF TRUNK. ROOT COLLAR IS
NOT ALWAYS LOCATED AT TOP

OF ROOTBALL

MINIMUM 6' DIAMETER,
3" DEPTH MULCH RING

3" HEIGHT WATER RETENTION
BERM BEYOND EDGE OF ROOT BALL
FINISH GRADE

SCARIFY SIDES OF PIT
REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL,
CONTAINERS OR OTHER MATERIAL THAT WILL
IMPEDE THE GROWTH OF THE PLANT MATERIAL.
REMOVE ALL TWINE. FOR BALLED AND BURLAP
(B&B) PLANTS REMOVE MINIMUM TOP 12 OF BURLAP
AND WIRE BASKET MINIMUM.
PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL

3X ROOTBALL
MINIMUM FOR TREES

2X ROOTBAL
MINIMUM FOR SHRUBS

D
EP

TH
 O

F
R

O
O

T 
BA

LL
O

R
 C

O
N

TA
IN

ER
R

O
O

T 
SY

ST
EM

3X ROOTBALL
MINIMUM FOR TREES

2X ROOTBAL
MINIMUM FOR SHRUBS

D
EP

TH
 O

F
R

O
O

T 
BA

LL
O

R
 C

O
N

TA
IN

ER
R

O
O

T 
SY

ST
EM

2:1 MAXIMUM
TRANSITION SLOPE.
BEGIN TRANSITION

AT EDGE OF
ROOT BALL

EXISTING
SLOPE

TREE OR SHRUB

SCARIFY SIDES OF PIT
REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL,
CONTAINERS OR OTHER MATERIAL THAT WILL
IMPEDE THE GROWTH OF THE PLANT MATERIAL.
REMOVE ALL TWINE. FOR BALLED AND BURLAP
(B&B) PLANTS REMOVE MINIMUM TOP 12 OF BURLAP
AND WIRE BASKET MINIMUM.
PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL

FINISH GRADE

3" HEIGHT WATER RETENTION
BERM BEYOND EDGE OF ROOT BALL

MINIMUM 6' DIAMETER,
3" DEPTH MULCH RING

SET ROOT COLLAR AND ROOT FLARE 2" ABOVE
FINISH GRADE. DO NOT PLACE MULCH WITHIN
2" OF TRUNK. ROOT COLLAR IS NOT ALWAYS
LOCATED AT TOP OF ROOT BALL

FINISH GRADE

SEE PLANTING PIT DETAIL
ENGINEERING FABRIC

IMPERVIOUS SOIL

SEPTIC GRAVEL

1  PERVIOUS SOIL
(IF PRESENT)

1  IF PERVIOUS SOIL IS ENCOUNTERED AT A
DEPTH LESS THAN 6-FEET, THE DRAINAGE
WELL MAY BE TERMINATED WHERE THE
WELL EXTENDS A MINIMUM OF 12-INCHES
INTO THE PERVIOUS SOIL LAYER.

NOTE:
TREE DRAINAGE WELL ONLY REQUIRED IF
IMPERVIOUS SOILS ARE FOUND DURING
INSTALLATION AS PER SPECIFICATIONS
AND AS APPROVED BY ENGINEER.

1

C601

DECIDUOUS TREE STAKING DETAIL
NO SCALE

2

C601

TREE DRAINAGE WELL  DETAIL
NO SCALE

3

C601

PLANTING PIT DETAILS
NO SCALE

PLANTING PLAN REQUIREMENTS:
LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS AND CALCULATIONS:
(AS PER CITY OF CEDAR FALLS CODE AND ORDINANCES SEC. 26-180 - HCG HIGHWAY CORRIDOR
AND GREENBELT OVERLAY ZONING DISTRICT)

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR DESIGNATED RESIDENTIAL ZONES:
302,692 SF (6.95 AC.) OVERALL LOT AREA
1,045 SF TOWNHOME UNIT X 30 TOTAL UNITS = 31,350 SF
302,692 (LOT AREA SF) - 31,350 (BUILDINGS SF) = 271,342 SF
271,325 x 0.65 (65% OF LOT EXCLUSIVE OF BUILDINGS) = 176,373
176,373 x 0.05 (0.05 POINTS PER SF OF LANDSCAPED AREA) = 8,819 POINTS

---- OVERSTORY TREES 2" CAL. AT 80 POINTS x (56) = 4,480 POINTS

---- EVERGREEN TREES 6' HT. AT 80 POINTS x (30) = 2,400 POINTS

---- UNDERSTORY TREES 1 12" CAL. AT 30 POINTS x (34) = 1,020 POINTS

---- SHRUBS (2 GAL. CONT.) AT 5 POINTS x (184) = 920 POINTS

TOTAL POINTS REQUIRED (8,819), TOTAL POINTS PROVIDED (8,820)

VEHICULAR USE PARKING AREA

PARKING AREA ON SITE OF LESS THAN 6,000 SF.
A COMBINATION OF TREES AND SHRUBS HAVE BEEN PROVIDED AROUND THE PERIMETER OF THE
PARKING AREA TO MEET THIS REQUIREMENT (2 TREES AND 15 SHRUBS). TREES WITHIN 50 FT OF
EACH PARKING SPACE.

STREET TREE PLANTING
0.75 POINTS PER LINEAR FOOT OF STREET FRONTAGE MUST BE ACHIEVED IN THE CITY PARKING
AREA (RIGHT-OF-WAY).

597 LINEAR FEET OF STREET FRONTAGE ALONG GREENHILL ROAD
597 x 0.75 = 447.75 POINTS REQUIRED

---- 6 TREES AT 80 POINTS EACH = 480 POINTS PROVIDED

PLANT SCHEDULE

QTY KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME INSTALL SIZE COMMENTS

CANOPY TREES

10 AF Acer x freemanii 'Jeffersred' AUTUMN BLAZE AUTUMN BLAZE MAPLE 2" Cal. B&B

7 CK Cladrastis kentukea YELLOWWOOD 2" Cal. B&B

8 CO Celtis occidentalis 'Prairie Pride' PRAIRIE PRIDE HACKBERRY 2" Cal. B&B

6 GB Ginkgo biloba 'Autumn Gold' AUTUMN GOLD GINKGO 2" Cal.  MALE ONLY, B&B

3 GT Gleditsia  triacanthos f. inermis 'Shademaster' SHADEMASTER HONEYLOCUST 2" Cal. B&B

5 PA Platanus x acerifolia 'Morton Circle' EXCLAMATION PLANETREE 2" Cal. B&B

5 TA Tilia americana 'Frontyard' FRONTYARD LINDEN 2" Cal. B&B

3 QB Quercus bicolor SWAMP WHITE OAK 2" Cal. B&B

10 QR Quercus rubra NORTHERN RED OAK 2" Cal. B&B

5 UM Ulmus 'Morton Stalwart' COMMENDATION ELM 2" Cal. B&B

EVERGREEN TREES

12 PC Pinus cembra BLUE TOWER SWISS STONE PINE 6' HT. B&B

18 PP Picea pungens f. glauca 'Fat Albert' FAT ALBERT COLORADO SPRUCE 6' HT. B&B

ORNAMENTAL TREES

6 AG Amelanchier x grandiflora 'Autumn Brilliance' AUTUMN BRILLIANCE SERVICEBERRY 1 12" Cal. B&B, MULTI-STEM, 6' HT.

8 MA Malis 'Adirondack' ADIRONDACK CRABAPPLE 1 12" Cal. B&B, 6' HT.

4 MJ Malus 'Jarmin' ROYAL RAINDROPS CRABAPPLE 1 12" Cal. B&B, 6' HT.

8 SR Syringa retifulata JAPANESE TREE LILAC 1 12" Cal. B&B, 6' HT.

8 VL Viburnum lentago NANNYBERRY TREE VIBURNUM 1 12" Cal. B&B, MULTI-STEM, 6' HT.

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS & ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

17 HF Hydrangea paniculata 'Fire Light' FIRE LIGHT PANICLE HYDRANGEA 36" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (9' O.C.).

16 PF Physocarpus opulifolius 'Fireside' FIRESIDE NINEBARK 36" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (4' O.C.).

16 PJ Physocarpus opulifolius 'Jefam' AMBER JUBILEE AMBER JUBILEE NINEBARK 24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (4' O.C.).

14 ST Spiraea betulifolia 'Tor Gold' GLOW GIRL SPIREA 18"-24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (4' O.C.).

10 VD Viburnum dentatum ARROWWOOD VIBURNUM 36" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (9' O.C.).

10 VR Viburnum trilobum 'Redwing' REDWING AMERICAN CRANBERRYBUSH 36" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (9' O.C.).

EVERGREEN SHRUBS

20 JC Juniperus chinensis 'Sea Green' SEA GREEN JUNIPER 24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (5' O.C.).

31 JL Juniperus chinensis 'Gold Lace' GOLD LACE JUNIPER 24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (5' O.C.).

35 JM Juniperus chinensis 'Maney' MANEY JUNIPER 24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (5' O.C.).

30 PM Pinus mugo 'White Bud' WHITE BUD DWARF MUGO PINE 24" Ht. 3 GAL. CONT (5' O.C.).

NOTE: QUANTITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY PLANT MATERIAL PRIOR
           TO BIDDING. IN THE CASE OF A DISCREPANCY, THE PLAN QUANTITY SHALL GOVERN.

52

Item 5.



1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

3

A301

8x8 POST

8x8 POST

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

S4

S3
S1

S1 S1 S1

S4 S4

S5

S2

CS CS CS CS CS

S1 S1 S1

R1
R1R1

S4 S4

CSCS

S3 S2 S2 S3
R1 R1 R1

R1 R1

S1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

1

A301

S1

S1

S3 S1 S2

S1

S1 S2 S3 S1

R1 R1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

8x8 POST

S4

S1

S1

CS

S3

R1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

8x8 POST

S4

S1 S3

S3

S1

S2 S3

R1

S1

CS

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"1
Front Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"4
Rear Elevation

R
O

C
K

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 

H
O

L
D

IN
G

S
, 

L
L

C

CONTENTS:

SHEET NO:

PROJECT NO:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

:

1

REVISIONS:

3

2

A201

20-009

V
il

la
g

e
 a

t 
A

s
p

e
n

 R
id

g
e
 E

s
ta

te
s

01 / 05 / 2021

Elevations

A
n

k
e
n

y
, 
IA

 5
0
0

2
3

P
la

t 
3
: 

4
 P

le
x
 -

L
o

ts
 6

-9
, 
1
0

-1
3

, 
1

4
-1

7
, 

1
8

-2
1

, 
4
4

-4
7

, 
4

8
-5

1
, 

5
7
-6

0

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"2
Right Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"3
Left Elevation

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

CS CULTURED STONE

R1 ASPHALT ROOFING SHINGLE

S1 7" LAP - WHITE

S2 7" LAP - GRAY

S3 7" LAP - CHARCOAL

S4 SHAKES - GRAY

S5 SHAKES - CHARCOAL

H
er

ita
ge

 H
ill

s 
T

ow
nh

om
es

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
A

 5
06

13

53

Item 5.



1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

3

A301

8x8 POST

8x8 POST

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

S4

S3
S1

S1 S1 S1

S4 S4

S5

S2

CS CS CS CS CS CS

S1 S1 S1
S3

S4

CS

S1

R1
R1R1

S4 S4

CSCS

S3 S2 S2 S3 S3
R1 R1 R1 R1

R1 R1

S1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

1

A301

S1

S1 S3 S1

S1

S3 S1 S2

S1

S1 S2 S3 S1

R1 R1

S1 S1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

8x8 POST

S4

S1

S1

CS

S3

S3

S3

S3

R1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

2ND HEADER
HGT. 7"-0"

8x8 POST

S4

S1 S3

S3

S1

S2 S3

R1

S1

CS

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"1
Front Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"4
Rear Elevation

R
O

C
K

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 

H
O

L
D

IN
G

S
, 

L
L

C

CONTENTS:

SHEET NO:

PROJECT NO:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

:

1

REVISIONS:

3

2

A201

20-009

V
il

la
g

e
 a

t 
A

s
p

e
n

 R
id

g
e
 E

s
ta

te
s

01 / 05 / 2021

Elevations

A
n

k
e
n

y
, 
IA

 5
0
0

2
3

P
la

t 
3
: 

5
 P

le
x

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"2
Right Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"3
Left Elevation

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

CS CULTURED STONE

R1 ASPHALT ROOFING SHINGLE

S1 7" LAP - WHITE

S2 7" LAP - GRAY

S3 7" LAP - CHARCOAL

S4 SHAKES - GRAY

S5 SHAKES - CHARCOAL

H
er

ita
ge

 H
ill

s 
T

ow
nh

om
es

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
A

 5
06

13

54

Item 5.



1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.
18' - 5"

FIRST FLOOR T.O.W.

9' - 1 1/8"

3

A301

8x8 POST

8x8 POST

S4

S3S1

S1 S1 S1

S4 S4

S5

S2

CS CS CS CS CS CS

S1 S1 S1
S3

S4

CS

S1 S1 S1

S4 S4

R1 R1

R1
R1

R1R1

S4 S4

CSCS

S3 S2 S2 S3 S3 S2
R1R1 R1 R1 R1

R1 R1

S1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

1

A301

S1

S1 S2 S1 S3 S1

S1

S3 S1 S2

S1

S1 S2 S3 S1

R1 R1 R1

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

8x8 POST

S4

S1

S1S2

S2

CS

S4

S2

S2

1ST FLOOR

0"

2ND FLOOR

10' - 3 7/8"

TRUSS BRG.

18' - 5"

8x8 POST

S4

S1 S3

S3

S1

S2 S3

R1

S1

CS

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"1
Front Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"4
Rear Elevation

R
O

C
K

 E
Q

U
IT

Y
 

H
O

L
D

IN
G

S
, 

L
L

C

CONTENTS:

SHEET NO:

PROJECT NO:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

:

1

REVISIONS:

3

2

A201

20-009

V
il

la
g

e
 a

t 
A

s
p

e
n

 R
id

g
e
 E

s
ta

te
s

01 / 05 / 2021

Elevations

A
n

k
e
n

y
, 
IA

 5
0
0

2
3

P
la

t 
3
: 

6
 P

le
x
 -

L
o

ts
 3

2
-3

7
, 

3
8
-4

3

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"2
Right Elevation

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"3
Left Elevation

MATERIAL SCHEDULE

CS CULTURED STONE

R1 ASPHALT ROOFING SHINGLE

S1 7" LAP - WHITE

S2 7" LAP - GRAY

S3 7" LAP - CHARCOAL

S4 SHAKES - GRAY

S5 SHAKES - CHARCOAL

H
er

ita
ge

 H
ill

s 
T

ow
nh

om
es

C
ed

ar
 F

al
ls

, I
A

 5
06

13

55

Item 5.



56

Item 5.



57

Item 5.



58

Item 5.



59

Item 5.



60

Item 5.



61

Item 5.



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planning III  
 

 DATE: March 2, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Master Plan Amendment Request: Pinnacle Prairie Business Center North, Parcel 
„B‟, Lots 16, and 21-31 (Wild Rye Way)  

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
REQUEST: 
 

To amend the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan from Multi-Family and Mixed Use 
to Western Home. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Western Home Communities 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The north and south side of Wild Rye Way between Prairie Parkway and 
Bluebell Road 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
Western Homes Communities has requested to amend the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan to allow 
the construction of 19 two-family dwellings on two lots The applicant has submitted a concept 
plan for the area. The property is zoned MU Mixed Use Residential District which allows a wide 
range of residential use as well as “neighborhood commercial” types of uses, therefore a 
change to the underlying zoning will not be necessary. A request for a preliminary and final plat 
for the area will be coming forward to the Planning and Zoning Commission in the near future. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2004, a Master Plan for Pinnacle 
Prairie was approved for approximately 
620 acres. The subject property was 
part of an area of approximately 64 
acres designated as mixed-use at the 
southeast corner of the intersection of 
S Main Street and Greenhill Road. The 
Mixed Use portion is outlined in black 
and the subject property in the 
amendment request is red (see right).  
 

Western Home Communities 

62

Item 6.



2 
 

In 2015 the Master Plan was revised 
with the lots along the south side of 
Wild Rye Way designated as Multi-
Family and the area north of Wild Rye 
Way as Mixed Use, which includes 
multi-family and townhome uses. The 
mixed use portion is outlined in black 
and the subject property in the 
amendment request is red (see right). 
This area was not changed in the 
recently approved update to the Master 
Plan in 2021.   
 
ANALYSIS  
This area of development has had a 
mixed use land-use designation since 
2004 and was amended in 2015 changing the lots south of Wild Rye Way to multi-family. The 
intent of mixed use is to provide a combination of neighborhood business uses to support a local 
residential population. Outside of the Fareway Market and Kwik-Star convenience store, most of 
the nonresidential development in the area has been office and medical uses. The area involved 
in the request has low visibility from Greenhill Road and limited visibility from Prairie Parkway, 
so may have limited viability for commercial development. Residential development in the 
community is in high demand, so changing the master plan to allow for additional residential 
development will help to meet the need and additional residents will provide support for the 
neighborhood-serving uses already located in the area.  
 
The current Master Plan does allow multiple unit development; however, the amendment to the 
plan would allow Western Home Communities to continue the development with a housing type 
that appeals to many in the community and has proven to meet the needs and desires of 
market. The proposal will provide a cohesive and seamless transition within the development. 
 
Amendment to the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan  
In a larger MU District, such as Pinnacle Prairie, which encompasses more than 600 acres, 
build out takes years and portions of the master planned area may be sold to other developers, 
who will prepare detailed site plans for their portion of the development. Therefore, in practice, 
our expectation is that the master plan would address each of these elements generally, with 
the specific requirements met during subdivision review and site plan review for specific building 
sites once development is imminent.  
 
Western Home Communities is proposing an amendment to the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan to 
allow a multiple-dwelling condominium development of 19 units on two lots. The 2015 
amendment to the master plan identified Western Home as a specific land use within the 
Pinnacle Prairie development. This area remained unchanged in the 2021 updated Master Plan 
(see attached). In 2016, the Pinnacle Prairie Design Guidelines incorporated guidelines for 
Western Home Community. The amendment to designate this area as “Western Home” will 
allow this development to use the guidelines that are in place for the Western Home property 
adjacent to the south. 
   

Western Home Communities 

63

Item 6.



3 
 

There are a number of elements listed in the zoning code that are required to be addressed in 
the master plan. A majority of these have been addressed as part of the overall development; 
however, the following items should be examined specifically to this amendment: 

(1) Building locations.  

(2) Streets, drives, accessways.  

(3) Pedestrian traffic plan, including sidewalks, bicycle paths.  

(4) Architectural renderings of all sides of each building, including accessory structures.  

(5) Residential recreation or park areas.  
 

The proposal consists of two lots on each side of Wild Rye Way, one on the north side of the 
street with ten two-family dwellings and one on the south side with nine two-family dwellings. As 
with their other residential areas, Western Home Communities plans to retain ownership of the 
land. The design and layout of the proposed dwellings will be similar to and complement the 
existing Western Home Community. All of the dwellings will have driveway access to Bluebell 
Road or Wild Rye Way, which have been constructed; however, there are four units which will 
have a private, shared driveway/access to Wild Rye Way, in order to utilize the deeper lots 
originally platted for commercial development and to avoid individual driveway access to Prairie 
Parkway, a major street corridor. It should also be noted that driveways are placed at least 75 
feet from the street intersections to provide for safer ingress and egress from these homes. The 
Coneflower Parkway Trail and the two sections of the Pinnacle Prairie Trail are adjacent to the 
proposed development, which provide good options for walking and biking for area residents.  
 
The applicant has provided renderings of the proposed dwellings, which are similar to the 
product used in the Western Home Community. There are two models proposed, a plan with an 
extended garage and a plan with a three car garage (see next page). 

 

 
 

64

Item 6.



4 
 

 
 
 

 
   Existing Dwellings   
  
The current land uses shown on the Master Plan are for multi-family and mixed use both of 
which would allow residential use.  This area has limited visibility from both Green Hill Road and 
Prairie Parkway and may have limited viability for commercial uses. The demand for residential 
development in the community is high and the proposed housing type appeals to many in the 
community. The proposed land use change to Western Home would allow the new development 
to integrate into the existing community using the design guidelines established for the Western 
Home Community.      
 
Technical Comments:  

1. A preliminary and final plat will be required prior to any development within the planned 
area.  
 

2. An amended Master Plan shall be provided before the public hearing at City Council.  

65

Item 6.



5 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
City staff has sent letters to the surrounding property owners notifying them of the Master Plan 
Amendment.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Community Development Department recommends that the Commission introduce the item 
for discussion, provide direction, and continue the discussion to the next meeting on March 23, 
2022 meeting. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
3/9/2022 

 

  

 

Attachments: 2021 Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan  
  Proposed concept plan for “Western Home Community” 
  Proposed Architectural Renderings for Dwellings 
  Applicant‟s letter requesting rezoning 
   

   

66

Item 6.



Cedar Falls Planning  & Zoning Commission 

March 9, 2022 

Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan 

Amendment 67

Item 6.



BIKE TRAIL

Townhome

GENERAL SITE DATA & KEY
Residential UseNon-Residential Use

Single Family

Multi-Family

Institutional

Water Tower Site

Commercial

Commercial / Office

Mixed Use

S.W.M. (Storm Water Management) Parks and Open Space
Common Area Use

Mixed Use Commercial

Mixed Use Multi-Family

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

Ac.

12.8

5.0

20.8

43.6

86.3

5.9

28.6

Ac.138.5

Ac.32.9

Ac.19.9

Ac.65.6 Ac.14.3

Office / Multi-Family Ac.7.0

*Included in "Mixed Use" total acreage

*Included in "Mixed Use" total acreage

Western Home Ac.103.0

Professional Services / Professional Offices Ac.62.4

Mixed Use Office Ac.51.8
*Included in "Mixed Use" total acreage Municipal Use

ACCESS POINTS

All Access Points are
full access unless noted
with "R.In/R.Out" for
Right in/Right out.

8.23 Miles of Trails
43,435 Linear Feet

R.O.W. (Dedicated Right of Ways) Ac.48.9

Commercial - Zoned HWY-1 Ac.64.4

Western Home - Zoned R-3 Ac.43.5

NOTE: All uses are zoned MU
unless otherwise noted.Parks, Open Space & S.W.M. - Zoned R-3 Ac.3.6

R.O.W. - Zoned HWY-1 Ac.4.5

S.W.M. - Zoned HWY-1 Ac.1.2

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 S

ch
op

pe
 D

es
ig

n 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s, 
In

c.
 2

01
4

D
IR

: P
:\3

09
\3

09
.0

01
\D

W
G

S\
2.

 C
O

N
C

EP
T 

PL
A

N
S\

C
D

P\
D

W
G

\3
09

.0
01

_M
P1

4.
dw

g

WAL-MART

MENARDS

COMMERCIAL  / OFFICE
              15.9 AC.

WATER
TOWER

5 AC.

COMMERCIAL / OFFICE
OR

MULTI-FAMILY
18.1 AC.

TOWNHOME
21.3 AC.

COMMERCIAL
OR

MULTI-FAMILY
14.0 AC.

OFFICE / MULTI-FAMILY
7.0 AC.

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH
3.1 AC.

SINGLE FAMILY
OR

MULTI-FAMILY
18.1 AC.

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TRACT C
OR

TOWNHOME
19.9 AC.

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TRACT A
20.1 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
(UNDER

CONTRACT)
7.9 AC.

COMMERCIAL
25.6 AC.

FARM & FLEET

WESTERN HOME
COMMUNITIES

146.5 AC.

HEARTLAND
VINEYARD
CHURCH

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

1.9 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
22.6 AC.

S.W.M.
8.7 AC.

BIOLIFE

S.W.M.
10.4 AC.

COMMERCIAL / OFFICE
9.6   AC.

S.W.M.
23.7 AC.

COMM.
2.4 AC.S.W.M.

1.0 AC.

 PROFESSIONAL OFFICES /
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TRACT B
OR

TOWNHOME
17.2 AC.

FULL
ACCESS

COMM.
4.4 AC.

COMMERCIAL
5.9 AC.

TOWNHOME  1.6 AC.

SINGLE FAMILY
15.8 AC.

MIXED   USE
86.3 AC.

SINGLE FAMILY
8.3 AC.

WHISPERING PINES
TOWNHOME

10 AC.

H U N T I N G T O N
R D.

V I K I N G   R D.

G R E E N H I L L     R D.

M
 A

 I 
N

   
 S

 T
.

5  8

V I K I N G   R D.

CEDAR   HG
TS.

P 
R 

A 
I R

 I 
E

S 
T.

R 
O

 W
 N

 D
   

 S
 T

.

O
 S T E R    P K W

 Y.

P R A I R I E      P K W
 Y.

P K W Y.

P R  A  I  R I  E

P R A I R I E        V I E W        R D .

COMMERCIAL
38.8 AC.

CONNECTION TO
OFF SITE TRAIL

CONNECTION TO
OFF SITE TRAIL

BLUEGRASS CT.

BL
U

EB
EL

L 
   

 R
D.

WILD RYE WAY

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

HYACINTH DR.

PARSLEY RD.

IRIS DR.

GREEN CREEK RD.

VIKING PL.

PK
W

Y.

CO
NE

FL
O

W
ER

DISCOUNT TIRE

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

GOLDENROD

W
AY

BETHANY BIBLE
CHAPEL
7.2 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
6.0 AC.

ARROWHEAD
MEDICAL CENTER

LOCKARD

MIDWEST
ONE BANK

PARK
3.5 AC.

PARK
3.6 AC.

H W
 Y.

S.W.M.
            1.2 AC.

O S 
T E

 R    
P K

 W
 Y.

  E
 X 

T.

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

FAITH     DR.

SINGLE FAMILY
96.3 AC.

S.W.M. 2.0 AC.

C E D A R    H G
 T S.

CONNECTION TO
EXISTING BIKE TRAIL

CONNECTION TO
EXISTING MAIN
STREET BIKE TRAIL

CONNECTION TO
EXISTING MAIN
STREET BIKE TRAIL

S.W.M.
18.5 AC.

OPEN SPACE
1.9 AC.

PARK
0.8 AC.

S.W.M.
0.6 AC.

PARK
2.6 AC.

S.W.M.
0.7 AC.

SHOOTING STAR WAY

CA
RA

W
AY

   
   

   
   

   
LA

N
E

DRAINAGE WAY

DRAINAGE WAY

S.W.M.
1.0 AC.

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

R.In/
R.Out

PARK
1.5 AC.

 PROF. OFFICES /
PROF. SERVICES

3.3 AC.

MULTI-FAMILY
12.0 AC.

Date: Apr. 9, 2015
Scale: 1" = 300'

Rev.: Sept. 29, 2020

30
9.

00
1_

M
P1

4

126 S. Main Street

p: 630 551-3355
Oswego, IL 60543

f: 630 551-3639
schoppedesign.netGraphic Scale0'

150' 600' 1200'

300'

North MASTER  PLAN

Prepared
By:

Prepared
For:

Cedar Falls, Iowa

Oster Partners

IMMANUEL
LUTHERAN

CHURCH
2.5 AC.

68

Item 6.



69

Item 6.



70

Item 6.



71

Item 6.



72

Item 6.



73

Item 6.


	Top
	Item 1.	P&Z minutes
	02-23-2022 P and Z Minutes

	Item 2.	Zoning text amendments to Allow Daycare in the M-1 District
	1 - Memo.PZ. text amendment.daycare in M1.ph
	2. M-1 Zoning amd Request

	Item 3.	RP District Master Plan Amendment to include Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Addition
	1 PZ Staff Report for Autumn Ridge Masterplan Amendment for 9th and 11th
	2 ZoningLocationMap 1
	3 5786 - Master Plan 2022-02-22
	4. Timeline of Autumn Ridge Development Aerial Map
	5. Master Plan 2001
	6. Prelimiary Plat in 2013

	Item 4.	Preliminary Plat for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Addition (PP20-004)
	1 P&Z Staff Report for Autumn Ridge 9th and 11th Addition
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 5786 Prelim Plat 2-23-2022

	Item 5.	RP District Site Plan for The Cove at Spruce Hills Townhomes (SP21-013)
	01 PZ staff report for Heritage Hills Townhomes Site Plan
	02 ZoningLocationMap
	03 SP_1210880 2-15-22 final
	04 Townhome Elevation Views
	05 Heritage Hills original RP Plan
	06 Heritage Hills revised RP Plan
	07 FINAL PLAT (8-22-17) 11X17

	Item 6.	Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan Amendment
	1 - PZ Staff Report for Western Homes Master Plan Amendment 3-1-22
	2 - Location
	3 - 2020 Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan
	4 - Concept Plan
	5 - Proposed Architectural Renderings Dwellings
	6 - Request Letter

	Bottom

